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Subject: Justware Software Maintenance Date
(RQDA165000005) January 15, 2016
Department Vendor Name
OFFICE OF PURCHASING Journal Technologies, Inc.
Department Head Name Contract Number
Michael Schlenoff A-07-2016
7}7? ment Head/Signature Contract Manager Name
( mwb . %&% Vita Virgilio, Buyer 1
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Narrative

Purpose: To authorize and award a Purchase Order for software maintenance of the Case Management
System for the Nassau County District Attorney.

Discussion: This purchase crder will allow the District Attorney to continue service by Journal
Technologies, Inc. for annual support & maintenance of the Justware Case Management System for the
period 12/1/2015 thru 11/30/2016. Contract includes Justware APl Support, Justice Web Annual
Support and Upgrades and Justware annual onsite assistance and training. This is a sole source contract
since the software system is proprietary to Journal Technologies, Inc.

Past Procurement History: Journal Technologies during the past year has provided technological
support and maintenance efficiently and without problems.

Impact on Funding: Annual contract amount is One Hundred Forty Six Thousand Sixty Five Dollars and
Fifty Cents (146,065.50) from general funds.

Recommendation: Office of Purchasing recommends awarding a purchase order to J ournal
Technologies, Inc, as the sole source for the software maintenance.

gl o S-aHae -

SREIIAL 40D e
jaﬁ“s; 3 SR g{){}i !
e
Al ELYESEL



COUNTY OF NASSAU

INTER - DEPARTMENTAL MEMO

TO: CLERK OF THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE A-07-2016

FROM:  MICHAEL SCHLENOFF ACTING DIRECTOR OFFICE OF PURCHASING
DATE: NOVERMBER 30, 2015

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION-NASSAU COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

THIS RESOLUTION IS RECOMMENDED BY THE DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF PURCHASING TO
AUTHORIZE AN AWARD AND TO EXECUTE A PURCHASE ORDER IN THE AMOUNT OF ONE
HUNDRED FORTY SIX THOUSAND SIXTY FIVE DOLLARS AND FIFTY CENTS ($146,065.50)
ON BEHALF OF NASSAU COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY TO JOURNAL TECHNOIOGIES,
INC. MEETING SPECIFICATIONS FOR ANNUAL SUPPORT AND MAINTENANCE OF THE
JUSTWARE CASE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM FOR NASSAU COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY.

THE ABOVE DESCRIBED DOCUMENT ATTACHED HERETO IS FORWARDED FOR YOUR
REVIEW AND APPROVAL AND SUBSEQUENT TRANSMITTAL TO THE RULES COMMITTEE
FOR INCLUSION IN ITS AGENDA.

L 7 { «:/(’()

/Y MICAEL SCHLEOFF
ACTING DIRECTOR
OFFICE OF PURCHASING

MS: br
ENCL: (1Y STAFF SUMMARY
(2) DISCLOSURE STATEMENT
{3) RESOLUTION
{4y SOLE SOURCE DOCUMENTS
(5 QUOTATION
{6) CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
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RULES RESOLUTION L/7 2016

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF NASSAU COUNTY OFFICE OF
PURCHASING TO AWARD AND EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF
NASSAU ACTING ON BEHALF OF NASSAU COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY AND

JOURNAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

Pasged by the Rules Committee
Nagsnan Coupty Legisinture
By Vsice Vote on_ 3~ 77(C
YOTIHG:
aysr - sayes ©  abstained O reensed O
T Lagisasers presents ?

WHEREAS, the Director is representing to the Rules Committee that the firm, JOURNAL

TECHNOLOGIES, INC. is a sole source provider and meets all specifications for the product described

in the said contract as determined by the Director of the Office of Purchasing.

RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County Legislature authorizes the Director,

Office of Purchasing to award and execute the said Purchase Order with JOURNAIL TECHNOLOGIES,

INC.



OFFICE OF PURCHASING FORMAL SEALED BID PROPQSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF NEW YORK '
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

CONSULTANT’S, CONTRACTOR'S AND VENDOR'S DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name of the Entity: Journal Technologies, Inc.

Address: 8435S 100W

City, State and Zip Code: Logan, Utah 84321

2 Entity’s Vendor Identification Number: 87-0626854

3. Type of Buginess: ©~  Publie Corp Partnership Joint Venture
corp
Lid. Liability Co Closely Held Corp Other (specify)
4. List names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of Ditectorsor

comparable body, all partuets and limited partners, 4ll corporate officers, all parties of Taint Ventures, and Al
members and officers of limited lability companies (attach additional shsets if necessary):

See attachement

5. List names and addresses of all shareholders, members, or partners of the firm. fthe shareholder is not
an individnal, list the individual shawholdres/partnm s/members. If a Publicly held Corporation include & copy
of the 10K in lieu of completing this section.

See attachment

ALl BTDS MUST BE F,0.B,1) : ELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS D‘I‘HERW CIFIED. .
BIDDER SIGN HERE r‘ COO

A
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OFFICE OF PURCHASING FORMAL SEALED BID PROPOSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF NEW YORK .

Page 2 of 4

5. List all affiliated and related companies and their relationship to the firm entered on line 1. above (if
none, enter “None™), Attach a separate digclosure form for each affiljated or subsidiary company that may take
part inn the performance of this confract. Such disclosure shall be updated to include affiliated or subsidiary
companies not previously disclosed that participate in the perforance of the contract.

None

b

7. List all lobbyists whose services were utilized at any stage in this matter (i.e., pre-bid, bid, post-bid,
ete.). The term “lobbyist” means any and every perscn or organization retained, employed or designated by any
client to influence - or promote a matter befors - Nassan County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department,
heads, legislators or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Comunittes
and Planning Commission. Such matters include, but sre not limited to, requests for proposals, development or
imptovement of real praparty subject to County regulation, procurements, or to otherwise engage in lobbying as
the tetm is defined herein. . The term “lobbylst” does not include any officer, director, trustee, employee,
counsel or agent of the County of Nassau, ot State of New York, when discharging his ox her official duties.

()  Name, title, business address and telephone number of lobbyist(s):

None

ALL BIDS MUS 0.B. DESTINATIONSND Iﬂu E BELTVERY WITHIN DOORS UNEFSS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.
BIDDER 51GN HERE ‘ CO0 .
“_/BIDDER T TiTLE




QFFICE OF PURCHASING : FORMAL SEALED BID PROFOSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF NEW YORK

Page 3 of 4

(b)  Describe lobbying activity of each lobbyist, Bee page 4 of 4 for a complete description of
Ichbying activities.
Nomne

(¢)  List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassan Cownty,
New Youk State);

None

8. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor
authorized as & sighatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statetnents and they
arg, to his/her lmowledge, true and accurate,

's I f
Dated: ! =157 b $igned: e
Print Name;__\Jopt Peek ~~
b
Title: CO0
ALL BING MUSY BE F.0.8, DESTINA% fDN Atk TNEfUDE DELTVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTH ECIFIED.
BIDDER SIGN MERE PRV COO
L J IDDER . TITIE
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BFFICE OF PURCHASING FORMAL SEALED BTD PROPOSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF NEW YORK

Page 4 of 4: i ’

The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: sny determination made by the Nagsau County
Legislature, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local
lepislation or resolution; any determination by the County Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove
any local legislation or resolution, whether of not such legislation hag been introduced in the Connty
Lepislature; any determination by an elected County official or an officer or employse of the County with
respect to the procurement of goods, services or construction, inchnding the preparation of contract
specifications, including by not limited to the preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or
administration of a contract or with respect to the solicltation, award or administration of a grant, loan, or
agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any determmination made by the County Executive,
County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads ox
committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Commuittee, the Planning
Commission, with respect to the zoning, use, development or irprovement of real property subject to County
regulation, or any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to requests tor
proposals, hidding, procurement ot contracting for services for the County; any deternmination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employes of the cownty with respect fo the terms of the acquisition or
disposition by the county of any interest in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real
property of or by the county, or with respect to a franchise, concession or revocable consent; the proposal,
adoption, amendment or rejection by an ageney of any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to
hold, timing or outcome of any rate making proceeding befors an ageacy; the agenda or any determination of a
board or comrmission;

any determination regarding the ealendaring or seope of any legislatvre oversight hearing;

the issuance, tepeal, rodification or substance of a Connty Executive Ordes; or any determination mads by an
elected county official or an officer or employes of the county to support or oppose any state or federal
legistation, rule or regnlation, including any deternination made to suppoit or oppose that is contingent on any
amendment of such legislaton, rule or regulation, whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced
_and whether or not such rile or regnlation has been formally proposed.

! I .
ALL BIDS MUST BE .ORB,D N AR EPELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED,

b o s
BIDDER S16N HERE L COQ

{ BIDDER TITLE




OFFICE OF PURCHASING EQRMAL SEALED BID PROPOSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF NEW YORK :

Page 1 of4 : .
COUNTY OF NASBAU ' >

LOBBYIST REGISTRATION AND DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name of lobbyist(s)/lobbying organization: The term “lobbyist” means any and every person or
organization retained, emrployed or designated by any client to fufluence - or promote & matter befors - Nassau
Coounty, its agencies, boards, commigsions, department heads, legislators or committees, including but not
limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning Cornrmission; or to otherwise engage in
lobbying activities as the term ig defined herein, Such matiers include, but are not limited to, requests for
nroposals, development or improvement of teal property subject to County regulation, procurements. The term
“lobbyist” does not include any officer, director, trustes, employee, counsel ot agent of the County of Nagsan,
or State of New York, when discharging his ot her official dutiss,

None

2 List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassan County, New
York State):

None

3. Name, address and telephone number of client(s) by whom, ot on whose behalf, the lobbyist is retained,
employed or designated:

None

BIDDER HIGN HERE

|
/” i
\ / BIDDER - TITLE
K 16




OFFICE OF PURCHASING FORMAL SEALED BID PROPGSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF NEW YORK

Page 2 of 4

4. Describe lobbying activity conducted, at to be conducted, in Nassau: Covnty, and identify clent(s) for
eqch activity listed. See paged for a complete deseription of lobbylug activities,

None

5 The pame of persons, organizations or governmental entitics before whom the lobbyist expects to lobby:

None

ALL BIDS MUST BE F.OLB. DPESTENAT

BIDDER SIGN HERE




OFFICE OF PURCHASING FORMAL SEALED BXD PROPOSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF NEW YORK h

Page 3 of 4 '.‘ L

VERIFICATION: The nndersigned affirms and 80 swears that he/she has read and understood the
foregoing statements and they are, to his/her knowledge, true and accurate,

Dated: / ‘"{;) j%”/ u/ Signed: Auy%j

Print Name: ‘x Hon Peek

Title: - COO

AL WITHIN DOORS UNLESS GTHER PECIFIED,
BIDDER SIGN HERE - _ C I
i/ DIDDER COTE
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DFFICE OF PURCHASING FORMAL SEALED BID PROPOSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAL STATE OF NEW YORK

:

Page 4 of 4.
YThe term lobbying shall mean any attempt to infloence: any determination made by the Nassau County
Legislature, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local
legislation or resolution; any determination by the County Execative to support, oppose, approve or disappreve
any local legislation ox resolution, whether or not such legislation has been introduced in the County
Legislature; any determination by an slected County official or an officer or employee of the County with
respect to the proemrement of goods, services or construction, including the preparation of coniract
specifications, including by not limited to the preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or
administration, of a contract or with respect to the solicitation, awsrd or administration of a grang, Toan, or
agreeinent involving the disbursenent of public monies; any determination made by the County Executive,
County Legislatore, or by the County of Nagsan, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or
committees, including but not limited o the Open Space and Parks Advisory Conmnittee, the Planning
Cominission, with respect to the zoning, use, development or improvement of real property subjeet to County
regulation, or any agencies, boards, conwnissions, department heads or cotnmittees with respect to requesis for
proposals, bidding, procurement or confracting for services for the County; any detetmination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employes of the connty with respect o the terms of the acquisition or
disposition by the county of any luterest in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real
property of or by the county, or with respsct to a franchise, concesaion or revocable consent; the proposal,
adoption, amendment or rejection by an agency of any rule having the forcs and effect of law; the decision to
hold, timing or outcome of any rate making proceeding before an agencey; the agenda or any defermination of a
board or comrrission;

any determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing:

fhe issnance, repeal, modification or substance of a County Brecutive Order; or any deterinination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employss of the county to support oy oppose any state or federal
legislation, tule or regulation, including any determination made to support or oppose that i confingent on any
amendment of such legislation, ruls or regulation, whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced
and whether or not such rule or regulation has been formally proposed.

R WITHEN DOORS UN[LESS STHERWISE SPECIFIED.
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Journal Technologies, Inc. Officers

Gerald I.. Salzman — President, Secretary, and Vice Chairman
915 E, 1% Street Los Angeles, CA 9CC12

213-229-5300

Jon Peek - Chief Operation Officer
843 § 100 W Logan, UT 84321

435-713-21C0

Kyle Kennington-Assistant Secretary
843 $ 100 W Logan UT 84321

435-713-2100




SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C, 20549

FORM 10-K
(MARK GNE)

B ANWUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) CF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

for the fiscal year enctodd Seplember 30, 2015

OR

[1 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR §5(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Cuomanissien File No, 0-14665
DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION

{Exact name of registrant ns specified in ifs charter)

South Carolina 95.4133299
{Statc ot other jurisdiction of {IRS Employer
incorperatlon or erganization) Tdentifteation No,)
915 East Flest Street
Los Angeles, California 90012
(Address of principal executive offices) [Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, inchiding avea code: {213) 229-5300

Scenritles vegistered pussuant ta Section 12(1) of the Act: Commeon Stock, The NASDAQ Stock Market,

Securittes registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None,

Indicate by check mark if the regisirant is a well-known seasoned issuer, a¢ defined In Rule 405 of the Securities Acl. Yes 0 Ne &
Indicate by check mark if the registzant is not required to file reports purswant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes 1 NolX

Tndficate by cheek mark whether the registeant (1) has filed a1l reports required ta be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and {2) has been subject to such filing vequirements for the past
90 days.

Yes No [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on jts corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be
subrnitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regufation S-T during the preceding (2 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and

post such files),
Yoa @ Neo O

Indicate by check mark iF disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant 1o Item 405 of Regufation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of
regisiranf's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by referetcs in Part TUT of this Form |0-K or any amendment o this Form 10-K: a

Tndicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accslerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the
definitians of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):
Large accelerated [ Accelerated filer B Non-accelerated filer O Smaller reporting company [

Tndicate by cheek mark whether the registrant is a sheil company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act):
Yes No®

As of March 31, 2015, the aggregate market value of Daily Journal Corporation’s voting stock held by non-afTiliates was approximately $198,239,000,

As of November 30, 2015 there were cutstanding 1,380,746 shares of Comimon Stock of Daily Journal Corporaiion.




Disclasure Regayding Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 10-K includes “forward-lacking statements™ within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, r& amencied, and Section 218 of the Securitles
Exchange Act of 1934, 5s amended. Cartain statements contained in thiz document, inetuding but not limited to those in“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations”, are “forward-looking” statements that involve visks and uncertainties thatmay cause actual future events or results to
differ materially from those described in the forward-laoking statements, Waords such as “expeots,” “intends,™ “anticipates,” “should,” “believes,” "will,” “plans,”
“gtimates,” “may,” variations of such words and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statomeats, We disclaim any intention or abligation
to revise any forward-loaking statements whether as & result of new information, future developments, or othenwise. There are many factors that could cause actual
vesults to differ matexially from those cantained in the forward-looking statements. These factors include, among others: dsks associated with seftware development
und implementation efforts; Journal Technalogies® relinnce on professional services engagements with justice agencies, fcluding California courts, for a substantial
portion of ils revenues; material changes in the costs of postage and paper; possible changes in the law, particubarly changes limiting or climinating the requirements
for public notice advertising; possible loss of the adjudicated status of the Company’s newspapers and thelr fegal autherity to publish public notice advertising; a
further decline in publie notice advertising revenues because of fewer foraclosures; a further decline in subseriber and sommercial advertising revenues; possible
security breaches of the Company's saftware or websites; the Company's reliance on its president and ¢hicf executive officer; changes in accounting guidance,
aterial weaknesses in the Company’s internal conirol aver financial reporting; and declines in the market prices of the sesurities awned by the Company. In addition,
such statements could be affected by general industry and market conditions, general economie conditions (particularly in California) and other factors. Although the
Company believes that the expectations reflecled {n such forward-looking slatements are reasonable, it can give no assurance that such expeclations wili prove 1o
have been correct. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements are diseussed in this Form 10-K,
including B conjunction with the forward-looking statements themselves, and in other documenis filed by the Company with the Securitics and Exchange Cominission.




PARTIY
Ttem 1, Dusiness

The Company publishes newspapers and web sites covering California and Arizona and produces several specialized inforination services, It also servesasa
newspaper representative specializing in public notics advertising, We often refer fo this as “The Traditional Business”™,

Journal Technelogies, Ine, (*Journal Technologies™), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, supplies case management software systems and retated
products to courts and other justice agencies, including administrative law organizations, county governments and bar associations. These organizations use the
Journal Technologies Family of products to help manage cases and infermation electronically, te interfuce with other critical justice partners and to extend sleotranic
services to the public, including a website to pay traffic citations enline, and bar members, These products are licensed to mors than 500 organizations in 41 siates and
internationally. Journal Technologies is the result of the October 1, 2014 merger of the Company’s three technology-related subsidiaries, which were previously
separate companics: Sustain Teshnologies, Tne. ("Sustain"}, & whelly owned subsidiary since 2008; New Dawn Technologles, Ine. (“New Dawn"), acquired in
December 2012; and 18D Technologies, Inc, {*ISD"), acquired in Sepletnber 2013.

Essentially all of the Company’s operations are based in California, Arizona and Utah, Financial information of the Company, including information about each of
the Company’s repartable segments, is set forth in Ttem & (“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data™).

Praducts and Services
The Tradifonaf Business

Newspapers and refated online pubiizations. The Company publishes |0 newspapers of general circulation. Bach newspaper, in addition to news of inferest to
the general public, has a particular area of {n-depth focus with regard to its news coverage, thereby attraeting readers inferested in obtaining information about that
aren through a newspaper format. Bffective October |, 2015, the Company has discontinued the publication of the California Lawyer magazine and the California
Directory of Altorneys. The Company alse disconfinued pubtication of the San Dicge Commeree on Seprember 19, 2015 and concurrently replaced it through a small
acquisition of The Daily Transeript, which serves the San Diege market. These changes are nol expected to materfally impact the Company’s financial results,

The publications are based in the following cities:

Mewspaper publications

Los Angeles Daily Journal
Daily Commerce

San Francisco Daily Journal
The Daily Recorder

The Inter-City Express

San Jose Post-Record
Crange County Reporter
The Daily Transeript
Business Journal

The Record Reporter

Base of publication

Los Angeles, California
Los Angeles, California
San Francisco, California
Sagramentn, California
Oakland, California

San Jase, Califomia
Santa Ana, California
San Diego, California
Riverside, California
Phoenix, Arizona




The Daily Jouraals, The Los Angeles Daily Journal and the San Frascisco Daily Journal are each published every weekday except certain holidays and were
ostablished in 1888 and 1893, respectively. In addition to covering stale and focal news of general inferest, these newspapers focus particular coverage on law and its
impact on sociely, (The Los Angeles Daily Journal and the San Francisco Daily Journal are referred to collectively hersin as *The Daily Jounals".) Generally The Daily
Journats seek to be ol special utility to lawyers and judges and to gain wide muitiple readership of newspapers sent to law firm subscribers.

The Daily fournals contain much material and render many servives ina common endeavor. The Los Angeles Daily Journal is the fargest newspaper published by
the Company, both in terms of revenues and eirculation, At September 30, 2015, the Los Angeles Dally Journal had approximately 5,300 pald subscribers and the San
Francisco Daily Journal had approximately 2,700 paid subsoribers as compared wilh total paid subseriptions for both of The Daily Journals of 8,200 al September 30,
2014, The Duily Journals catry commeroial advertising (display and classified) and public notice advertising required or permitted by law to be published ina
newspaper of geueral circulation. The main source of commereial advortisimy revenus has been focal advertisers, law firms and businesses in or wishing to reach the
legal professional community, The grass reveaues generated directly by The Daily Journals are atteibutable approximately 64% to subseriptions and 36% to the sale of
advertising and other revenues, Revenues from The Daily Journals constituled approximately 18% of the Company's (otal fiscal 2015 revenues, 19% in 2014, 23% in
2013, 28% in 2012 and 27% in 204 L,

Tt is the polkicy of The Daily Journals (1) lo take ne editorial position on the legal and political controversies of the day but instead to publish well-written editorial
views of otlers on many sides of a controversy and (2) to try to report on fastual events with technical competence and with objectivity and acouracy. It is believed
that this policy suits a professional readership of exceptional intelligence and education, which is the target readership for the newspapers. Moreover, The Daily
Journals believe that they bear a duty to their readership, particularly judges and justices, as a self-imposed public trust, regardless, within reason, of short-term
income penalties. The Company belleves that this pelicy of The Daily Journals js in the long-term Interest of the Company s shareholders.

The Deily Journals contain the Daily Appellate Report which provides the full text and case symmaries of atl opinions certified for publication by the California
Supreme Court, the Californin Courts of Appeal, the U.S. Supreme Court, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, the U.S. Bankruptcy Appellate Panel for the
Winth Circnit, the State Bar Court and selected epinions of the U,S. District Cousts in California and the Federal Circuit Court of Appeals, The Daily Journals alse
include a monthly court directory fn booklet form. This directory includes a comprehensive list of sitting judges in all California courts as well as courtraom
assignments, phone numbers and courthouse addresses, plus "Judicial Transitions” which lists judicial appointments, elevations, confirmations, resignatiens,
retirements and deaths.

The Daily Journals are distributed by mail and hand delivery, with subseribers in the Los Angeles and San Francisco areas usually receiving copies the same day.
Cortain subscribers in Los Angeles, San Francisco, Santa Clara, Afameda, Orange, San Diego, Riverside and San Bernardine counties receive copies by hand delivery.
The regular yearly subscription rate for gach of The Daily Journals is $783,




Much of the information contained in The Daily Journals is avadabla to subscribers onling al www.dailyjournaf.com.

Daify Counnerce. Published since 1917, the Dafly Commerce, bussd in Los Angeles, in addition to covering news of general interest, devoles substantial coverage
to items designed to serve real estate investors and brokers, parlicularly those interested in Southern California distressed propesties, The nature of the news coverage
gnhances the effectiveness of public notice advertising in distributisg information about foreclosures to potential buyers at foreclosures. The {eatures of the paper
include default listings and probate estate sales, The Daily Commerce carries both public notice and commercial advertising and is published in the afternoon each
buginess day.

The Datly Recorder. The Datly Recorder, based in Sacramento, began operations in 1911, It is published each business day. In addition to general news items, it
focuses on the Sacramento legal and real estate communities and on Catifornia state government and activities ancitlary to fl. Among the regular features of The Daily
Recorder Is news about government leaders and lobbyists, as well as the Caily Appsllate Repart for those who request it. Advertising in The Daily Recorder consists
of both commercial and public notice advertising.

The Inter-City Express. The Tnter-City Express (the "Express”) has been published singe 1909, It govers general news of tocal interest and focuses its coverage on
news about the real estate and legal communities in the Oakland/San Francisco ares. The Express carries both commercial and public notice advertising, (L is published
each business day.

San Jage Post-Record. The San Jose Post-Record (the "Post-Record") has been published since 1950. In addition 1o general news of Jocal [nterest, the Post-
Record, which is published each business day, focusss on legal and real estate news and caries commercial and public notice advertising.

Orange Connty Reporter. The Orange Gounly Reporter (Orange Reporter) has been an adjndicated newspaper of general circulation singe 1922, In additicn to
general news of local interest, the Orange Reparter reports logal and state legal, business and real estate news, and carries primarily public notice advertising, The
Orange Reporter is published three days a week.

The Daily Transcript. The Daily Transcript (San Diego) is published five days a week and caeries general news of local interest and public notice advertising and
has been an adjudicated newspaper of general circulation sinee 1909, The Daily Transeript also ssrves legal and real estate professionals in San Diego County.

Business Jowrned. The Business Journal, cstablished in 1991, publishes news of general interest and provides coverage of the business and professional
communities in Riverside County. It also carries public notice advestising and is published each business day.

The Record Reparter (Arizonaj, The Record Reporter has been in existence since 1914, In addition 1o general news of local interest, The Record Reporter, which is
published three days o week, focuses on legal news and public record information and carries primarily public notice advertising,

Information Services. The specialized information services offered by the Company have grown out of its newspaper operatiens or have evolved in response o a
desire for such services primarily from its newspaper subscribers,




The Company has several court rufes services. One is Court Rules, # multi-volume, loase-leaf set, Court Rules reproduces eourt rules for certain state and federal
courts in California, The Court Rules appeer in two versions, one of which covers Northern California courts (nine volumes) and one of which covers Southern
California courts (eight votumes). The Company updates Caurt Rules on s menthly basis, In addition, the Company publishes a single volume of rules known as Local
Rules for major counties of California, Six versions are published for Southern California, each a single bound volume for the rules of: (1) Los Angeles County; {2)
Orange County; (3} San Diego County; (4} San Bernardino Ceunty; (5) Riverside County; and (6) Ventura, Santa Barbara and San Luis Obispo counties. Aiso, the
Company publishes single-volume rules for the Federal District Coust in the Central Distriet of California and California Probate Rules. In Northetn California, three
versions of the Local Rules appear in loose-leaf books for Santa Clara/San Mateo, Alanteda/Contra Costa and San Francisco counties. The single volumes are normaliy
updated or replaced whenever therg are substantial rule changes,

The Judicial Profiles services contain information coneerning nearly all active and retired judges in California. Most of the profiles have previously appeared (n
The Daily Journals as part of 4 regular feature. The Judicial Profiles include biographical data and financial disclosure statements on judges and information supplied
by each judge regarding the judge's policies and views on various trial and appeilate procedures and the manner in which appearances are conducled in his or her
courtroom, Subscribers may purchase either the ten-volume set for Southern California or the eight-volume set for Nerthern California,

The Company also provides online foreclosure information to about 40 customers, This service primerily provides distressed property information, some of which
alse appears in same of the Company's newspapers, as well as expanded features, Consalidation of both newspapers and online products more effectively utilizes the
costs of pathering such information.

Advertising and Newspaper Represeniative, The Company's publications carry cemmereial advertising, and most also contain public natics advertising.
Commercial adverlising censists of display and classified advertising and constituted about 8% of the Company’s total revenues in fiscal 2015, 9% in 2014, 1% in
2013, 15% in 2012 and 14% in 201 1. Classified advertising has continued fo decline primarily dug to the continued downturn in the employment advertising marketplace
ant competition from onkine employment web sites.

Public netice advertising consists of many different {ypes of legal notices required by law to be published in an adjudicated newspaper of general circufation,
including notices of death, fictitious business names, frustee sale notices ang notices of governmenda] hearings, The major types of public notice advertisers are real
estate-related businesses and trustees, governmental agencies, attorneys and businesses or fndividuals fiting fictitious business narme statements, Many government
agenciss use the Company’s Internet-tased advertising system to produce and send their notices (o the Company. A ficlitious business name web site enables
individuals to send Lheir statements to the Company for fiting and publication and another web site enables attorneys and individuals to send probate, civil, corporate,
public sale and oiher lypes of public notices {0 the Company. California Newspaper Service Bursau ("CNSB"), & divizion of the Company, is a statewide newspaper
representative (commission-earning sefling agent) specializing since 1934 in public notice advertising. CNSB places public notices and other forms of advertising with
adjudicated newspapers of general circulntion, mest of which are not owned by the Company.




Public notice advertising revenues and related advertising and other service fees, including trustee sales legal adverlising revenues, constituted about 22% of the
Company's tolal revenues in fiscat 2015, 24% in 2014, 35% in 2013, 56% in 2012 and 58% in 2041, Most of these revenues were generated by (i) notices published in the
Company’s newspapers, (i1) commissions and similar fees received from other publications in which the advertising was placed and (iii} service {ees generated when
filing notiges with government agencies,

Trustee sales legal advertising revenues alone represented abeut 6% of the Company’s total revenues in fiscal 2015, 7% in 2014, 17% in 2013, 56% in 2012 and 58%
in 2011, For several years, these revenucs wors drivon by the large number of fareclosures In California and Arizona, for which publis notice advertising (s required by
faw, but the number of foreclosures has continued to decline. Tn addition, in many stages, including California and Arizona, legislatures have considerad various
proposals which would result in the elimination or reduction of the amount of public notice ndvertising required by statute. There is a risk that such laws could change
in & manner that would have a significant adverse impact on the Company's public notice advertising revenues.

Other revenues are atiributable (o service Fees from users of an onling foreclosure/fictitious business name database, fees from attorneys faking continuing legal
education “coltrses™ published in the Company's publications and other miscellancous fess.

Journaf Techuofogles

Jayrnal Technologies provides case management software and related services to courts and other justice agencies. lts operations constituted aboul 57% of the
Company's total revenues in (iscal 2015, 3% in 2014, 37% in 2013, 9% in 2012 and 9% in 201! (with the 20(1-2012 numbess reflecting Sustain only). Journal
Technologies sarns revenue from license and maintenance fees paid by customers to use its software produets; consylting fees paid by customers for installation,
implementation and training services; and fees generated by the use of seeure websites through which the general pubtic can pay traffic citations, Journai
Technologies has the following main products:

eCourt®, eProsecutor, eDefender and eProbation — browser-based case processing systerss that can be used by courts and other justice agencies for all case
types because Hs screens, data elements, business rules, work queues, searches and alerts are highly configurable, Journal Technologies also supports its prior
geteration Justice Edition software, which is a Windows-based system that also provides for customizable conligurability,

JustWare® -~ a family of case management software produets for use by courts and other justice agencies. JustWare® provides a standardized case management
system that includes business rules to automate tasks, document and report generation, digital signatures and shorteuts to speed data input. Journal Technologies
also licenses its JustoeWeb® public access software, which allows the public to view gertain case information, provides a means to create permisston-based access
for sensitive data, allows pro se fitigants and atiorneys fo e-file documents and {ncludes a way for case participants to make payments anline.

TCMS™ — 5 court case management sysiem, which was acquired as part of the acquisition of the ISI> assets. Journal Technologies alse licenses CASE™ — an
autorated probation case management system, including juvenils half detention management features.




eFile™ — a browser-based interface thal allows atiorneys and the generai public to electronically file decuments with Hie court from u personal computer using
the Internat at any time,

ePay[t™ — a service for the online payment of traffic citations, Users can pay traffic oitations using the Intsrnet at any time with a credit card, and ean obtain
traffic school and other information,

Almos! all of Journal Technologies’ customers are government agencies, and most new seftware installation and licensing projects are subject to competitive
bidding procedurss, Accordingly, the ability of Journal Teelmolegiss to get new customers is highly unprediciable. In addition, budget constraints, especially during
stressful economic thnes, could force governmental agencies to defer or forge consuiting services or ¢ven fo stop paying their annual software maintenance fogs. As a
technology-based company, Journal Teshnologies’ suscess depends on the continued improvement of its products, whish is why the costs to update and upgrade
themn consistently constifute such a significant portion of the Company's expanses,

The Company's revenues from Journal Technologies’ foreign customers were $278,000 in fiscaf 2015, $332,000 in fiscal 2014, and $301,000 in fiscal 2013, All of the
Campany’s other revenues in those years were attributable to the United Siafes.

Materials and Postage

After personnel cosis (inctuded in “Salaries and employse benefits™ and in *Cutside services” in the accompanying consolidated statements of comprehensive
income (loss)), postage and paper costs are typically the Company's next {wo largest expenses. Paper and postage accounted for approximately 6% of our traditional
publishing segment's operating costs in fiscal 2015, 7% in 2014, 7% in 2013, 6% in 2012 and 6% in 2011, Paper prices may fluctuate substantially in the future, and
periodic postal rate increases could significantly impaet income from operations. Further, we may not be able to pass en such increases to our customers,

An adequate supply of newsprint and other paper is important to the Company’s operations, The Company currently does not have a contract with any paper
supplier. The Company has always been able to obtain sufficient newsprint for its operations, although in the past, shortages of newsprint have semetitnes resulted in
higher prices. The price of paper remained unchanged during fiscal 2315, We anticipate the price of paper will remain unchanged at teast through June 2016,

We use the 1.5, Postal Servige for distribution of a majosity of our newspapers. During the past several years, the Company has instituted ¢hanges in an attampt
to mitigats higher postage costs. These changes have included contracting for hand delivery in selected sections of the San Francisco Bay area and in Santa Clara,
Alumeda, San Diego, Riverside, Sun Bernardino, Orange and Los Angeles counties, delivering pre-sorted newspapers 1o the post office on pallets, which facilitates
delivery and improves service, and implementing o metiod of bundling newspapers which reducas the per piece charges, In addition, the Company has an ink jet
labeler which eliminates paper labels ang enables (he Company to recefve bar code discounts from the postal service on some of its newspapers,

Postal rates are dependent on the operating efficiency of the U.S. Postal Service and on legislative mandates imposed upon the U.S, Postal Service, During the
past several years, the U.S, Postal Service has inoreased postal rates, There were decreases in the Company’'s postage costs during fiscal 2015 primarily due fo fewer
subseribers.




Marketing

The Company actively promoles its individual newspapers and its multiple newspaper network as well as Its other publications, The Company's staff includes a
number of employees whose primary responsibilities include altracting new subscribers and advertisers, The specializatlon of each publication creates both target
subseribers and target advertisers, Subscribers are likely o be attracted because of the nature of the information carried by the particular publication, and likely
advertisers are those interested in reaching such consumer groups. In marketing preducts, the Company also focuses on its ancillary products which can be of service
to subscribers, such as its specialized information services.

‘The Company receives, on a nen-exclusive basis, public notice advertising from a nuwber of agencies. Such agencies ordinarlly receive a commission of 15% {o
25 on their sales of advertising in Company publications. Commasreial advert{sing agentiss also place advertising in Company publieations and receive gommissions
for advertising sates.

Journal Technologies® staff includes employees wha provide markeling and consulting services which may also result in additional consuiting projects and the
licensing of products. Most of Journal Technologies' new projects coms [rom existing customers or from a competitive bidding process,

Competition

Competition for readers and advertisers is very Inlense, both by established publications and by new entries into the market, The Puily Journals face aggressive
competition, inctuding amazingly Tow prices for multiple copy subscriptions, from law-oriented newspapers in Los Angeles and San Francisco. All of the Company's
business publications and produets face strong competition from other publications and service companies. Readers of specialized newspapers focus on the amount
and quality of general and spegialized news, amount and type af advertising, timely delivery and price. The Company designs its newspapers to fill niches in the news
marketplace that are not cavered as well by major metropolitan dailies. The in-depth news soverage which the Company's newspapers provide along with general news
caverage attracts readers who, for personal or professiconal reasons, desire to keep abreast of topics to which & major newspaper cannot devofe significant news
space. Other newspapers do provide some of the sams subject coverage as doss the Company, but the Company beligves its coverage, particularly that of The Daily
Journals, is more complete and therefore aifracts more readers. The Company believes thal The Daily Journals are the most imporfant newspapers serving Californin
lawyers on a daily basis,

The Company's court rules publications face competition in both the Southern California and Northern California markets from online court rules services and the
courts themselves. Subseriptions to the multi-volume Court Rules and Local Rules volumes continued to decline during fiscal 2015, The Company's Judicial Profile
services have direct competition and also indirest competition, because some of the same information is available through other sourges, including the courts.




The steady decline in recen yoars in the number of subscriptions to The Daily Joumals and the Company’s courl rule pubiications is fikely to continue and will
certainly impact the Company's future revenues. The pricing of the Company's productsis reviewed every year, Subseription price increases have in recent years
exceeded inflation, as have advertising rale increases,

Lt attracting commercial advertisers, the Company competes with other newspapers and magazines, television, radio and other media, including eleatronic and
onling systems for employment-related classified advertising, Factors which may affect eempetition For advertisers are the cost for such advertising compared with
other media, and the size and characleristics of the readership of the Company's publications.

Internet sites devoted to recruitment have become sighificant conpetitors of our newspapers and web sites for classified advertising. In addition, there has been a
steady consolidation of companies serving the legal marketplace, resulting in an ever-smatler group of companies placing display advertising. Consequently, retaining
advertising revenues remains a challengs.

The Company competes with anywhere from one serious competitor to many competing newspapers for public notice advertising revenne in all of its markets.
Large metrapolitan general inferest newspapers normally do not carry a significant amount of legal advertising, although recently they too have solicited cerfaih types
of publie notice advertising. CNSB, the Company’s commission-earning selling agent, faces competition from & number of companies based in California, some of
which specialize in plaging certain types of hotices,

There is significant competiion among a |imited number of companies to provide services and soffware to the courts and other justice agencies, and some of
these companies are much larger and have groater access ta capital and other resources than Journal Technologles, Others provide services for a limited number of
customers, As part of the competitive bidding process, many customers will express a preference for, or even require, larger vendors,

Many customers desire Internet-based solutions to centralize operatians, facilitale efestronic filing and other interfaces with other justice partners and the public,
and publish certain informatien from case management systems, Journal Technelogies' produst Iines provide versions of these services, but there are many
uncertainties in the process of courls and other agencies migrating to newer Internat-based systems, including whether Journal Technologies” versions of case
management systems will find general acceptance and whether the update, upgrade and meditication of such systems can be done In a ¢ost effeciive manner. The
Company competes on 2 variely of faolors, fncluding price, technological capabilities and services to accommiodate the Individual requirements of each sustomer,

Employess

The Company has appraximately 320 full-lime empleyees and vontractors and about 30 part-time employces and contractors as of September 30, 2015, This
inchedes about 150 full-time employees and contractors and 20 pari-time employces and contractors of Journal Technologies, The Company is not a party to any
collective barpaining agreements. Certain benefits, Including medical insurance, are provided to all full-time employees, Mangement considers its employee relations
to be good.

The Company relies heavily on Gerald Salzman, who serves as president, ehiof execulive officer, chief financial officer, treasurer and assistant seeretary. If Mr.
Salzman's services were no Jenger available (o the Company, it is unlikeiy that the Compaty could find a single replacement to perform all of the duties now handled by
him, and it could have a significant adverse effect on the Company's business, The Cempany does not carry key man Hie insuranee, nor has it entgred into an
employment agreement with Mr. Salzman,




Working Capital

Traditionally, the Company has generated sufficient cash flow from operalions te cover all its needs without significant borrowing. To a considerable extent, the
Company benefits from the fact that subscriptions and some licenses, maintenance and consulting fees are paid in advance. In addition, the aggregate marke! valug of
the securities pwned by the Company has incressed significantly in recent years (although fiscal 2015 was an exception), providing the Company with even more
working capital, subject, of course, to the nonwal risks associaled with owning stocks and bonds. Iz December 2012, the Company borrowed $14 inillion from its
investment margin account to purchase all of the outstanding stock of New Dawn, and in September 2013, it borrowed unather $15.5 million to acquire substantially ail
of the operating assets and labilitics of ISD, in cach case pledging ifs marketable securities to obtain favorable financing.

The Company beligves it has suffieisnt cash and marketable sceuritios for the fareseeable future, If the Company’s overall cash needs exceed cash flow from
aperations and its current working capital, the Company mey still have the ability to borsow against i morketable securities on favorable lerms as it did for the New
Diwn and ISD acquisitions, ot it may attempt to secure additional financing which may or may not be available on acceplable lerms,

The Company extends unseoured credit to most of its adverlising customers. The Company maintains a reserve account for estimated losses rosulting from the
inability of these customers to make required payments, but if the finaneial conditions of thase customers were fo deseriorate or the Company’s judgments about their
abilities fo pay are incorrect, additionat allowances might be required, and the Company's cash flows and results of operations could be materially affected.

Inflation

The sffects of inflation are not significantly any more or less adverse on the Company's businesses than they are on ather publishing and software companies.
The Company has experienced the effects of inflation primarily through increases {n costs of personsel, newsprint, pestage and services. These costs have generally
been offset by periodic price increases for advertising and subseription vates, but with frequent exceptions during several years when the Company has experienced
substanlial itcreases in postage and newsprint sxpenses and additionsl costs related to acquisitions.

Access to Our Infermation

We file annual, quarierly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with {he Seeurities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"}). These filings are not
available on our website, wipw.daityjournal.cor, which is generally dedicuted lo the content of our publications, We will, however, provide these filings in electronic or
paper format free of charge upon request addressed to our Searelary at our prineipal executive offices. Qur SEC filings are also available Lo the public over the [nternet
at the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. The public may also read and copy any document we file at the SEC's public reference room located al 100 F Strect N.E,,
Washingtan, 1.C. 20549, Please call the SEC at 1-800-3EC-0330 for further information on the operation of the public reference room.




Tiem 1A, Risk [actors

The foregping business djscussion and the ether information included in this Form 10-K should be read in cenjunction with the following risks, trends and
unceriainties, any of which, either individually or in the aggregale, could materially and adversely atfect our business, operating results or financial condition.

Risks Associated with ‘The Traditional Business

A continuing reduction in the number of residential foreclosures in Califoraia and Artzona will resulr in fewer frustee sale notices being published in the
Company’'s Rewspapers,

For several years, the revenues of The Traditional Business were driven by the large number of foreclosures in California and Arizona, for which public notice
advertising is required by Taw, The number of foreclosures continued to decline in 2015 and is expeocted 1o continue to decling in 2016, Along with improvements in the
economy, the California Homeawne:'s Bill of Rights imposed new requirements effective January |, 2013 that have contribufed to the siowdown in foreclosures. We
expect this trend to continue, and it will significantly impact the sarnings of The Traditional Business because it will be impractical for the Company to offsel the
revenue loss with expense reductions,

Changes fn ihe legal requirement fo publish public notice adveriising or In the legal abilily of our newspaper's to publish those nolices wonld have a
significani adverse impact on The Traclitional Business.

From fime to time, the legislatures in Cafifornia and Arizana {and elsewhere) have considered various proposals that would vesult in the elimination or reduction of
the amount of public notice advertising in printed newspapers required by statute, These proposals typically foeus on the availability of allernative means of
providing public notices, such as via the Internet. Same proposals aiso question the need for public notices at afl. Should any of these proposals become law,
particularly in California, they would materially affect the revenues of The Traditional Business,

In addition, if the adjudication, which is what gives publisbers the legal abilify to publish public notice advertising, of one or mare of the Compaiy’s newspapers
was challenged and revoked, those newspapears would no longer be eligibie to publish public notice advertising, and it could materially affect the revenues of The
Traditionaj Business.

The Traditional Business faces sirong compelition in cach gf ity mavkets,

Competition for readers and advertisers is very intense, both fram established publications and from new entrants into the market, The Daily lournals face
agpressive competition, ineluding amazingly low prices for multiple copy subscriptions from law-oriented newspapers in Los Angeles and San Francisco. The
Company’s court rles publications face competition in both Northern and Southern California from online court rules services and the courts themselves. The steady
decline in recent years in the number of subscripliens to The Daily Journals and the court rule publications is likely to continue and will certainfy impact The
Traditional Business’ future revenues.




The Traditional Business alsc competes with anywhere from one serious competifor ta many competing newspapers for public notice advertising in all of its
markets. As the amount of this advertising has decreased due to the reduetion in the number of foreclosures discussed above, the compelition to publish the
remaining public notices has intensified and may result in a further decline in The Traditional Business’ public nolice advertising revenues.

The Traditional Business continnes (o experience challenges in matntaining itz commercial advertising and cireulation revenues, particularly dune to the
growth of Irfernet sites,

Internet sites devoted fo recruitment have become significant competitors of our newspapers and web sites for clussified advertising. In addition, there has been a
steady consolidation of companies serving the legal markeiplace, resulting in an ever-smaller group of companies placing display advertising. Furthermore,
newspapers like ours have been struggling to compete for display advertising generaily, given the many other forums (including Internet sites) that compete for
advertising dollars. These trends are expected to contibue and will adversely affect The Tradilional Business. B

Circulation revenues have continued to decline as more and more information has become avaitable from the internet. Law firm mergers have also reduced the
number of firms that purchase multiple subscriptions of our newspapers, It {s not practical to assume that we will be able to offsel the decline in subscriptions with
Increases in the subseription rate, and we expoct that our circulation revenues will continue to decline.

The Traditional Business is exposed (o risks asseciated with fluctuations in postage and paper costs.

After parsohinel costs, postage and paper cosls ars typically the Company's next (wo largest expenses. An adequate supply of newspelnt and other paper is
important to the operations of The Traditional Business, The Company currently daes not have a contract with any paper supplier, and in the past, shortages of
newsprint have sometimes resulted in higher prices, The price of paper has remained unchanged since fiseal year 2013, and we expect [t to remain unchanged at least
through June 2016,

The Traditional Business uses the U.S. Postal Seivice for distribution of a majority of its newspapers and magazine. Postal rates are dependent on the operating
efficiency of the U.S, Postal Service and on [egislalive mandates lmposed upon the U.5. Postal Service, During the past several years, postal rates have increased.
Postal rates anl faes may increase more I the future. Further, we may not be able to pass on increases in paper and postage costs to our customers.

Risks Associated with Journal Technologies
The sirecess of Journal Technologies depends in large part on the technologival wpdate and upgrade of #s software products.

Journal Technologies' suceess depends en the conlinued improvement of its producis, and the costs to update and upgrads those products consistently
represent g Jarge portion of Journal Technologies’ expenses, There are muny uncertaiaties in the process of courts and other justice agencies migrating to newer case
management systems, including whether Journal Technologies® versions of these systems will find general acceptance and whether the modification of such systems
can be done in & cost effective manner, The costs to update and upgrade Journal Technologies’ products are expensed as incurred and will impaet earnings at least
through the foreseeable future.




Journal Technologies faces significant compeiition from other case managewen soffware vendss,

There is significant competition smong a litmited number of companies (o provide services and software to courts and other justice ngencies, and some of these
companies are mugh larger and have greater access to capital and other resources than Journal Technotogies. Normally, the vendor is selected through a bidding
process, and often the customers will express a proference for, or oven require, larger vendars, A inability to suecessfully compete In this difficult market could
materialty affect the earnings of Journal Technologies,

The cusiomers of Jonrnal Technologivs are public secior entities, swhich ereale special lssues and visks.

Substantially all of the customers of Journal Technologies are courts, justice agenoies, and other government entities. Accordingly, we face special risks
associated with governmental budgel constraints, especially during stvessful economic fimes, which could force government eniities to defer or forego consulting
services or even stop paying their annual software license and mainterance fees. In addition, we encounter risks refated to a longer and more complicated sales cycle
than exists for commercial customers; political issues related to resource allocation, sdministration wmover and preferences for internal case management solutions or
for & particular vendor; complicated bidding prosedures; and flustuations in the demand for information technology products and services,

Jowrnal Technologies generally recognizes revenues far roftware fnstallations only upoit completion of the applicable services and customer acceplance of the
sofhvare system.

In most cases, the fees paid to Journal Technologies for instailation services and software licensas are at risk until the customer has indleated its satisfaction wilh
the instafled system and it has “gone [ive". Also, we lilize the completed contracl method of accounting because the customer’s acceptance is typically unpredictable
and reliable estimates of the prograss towards completion eannot be made. Accordingly, we do not secognize rovenues for instaliation services or ficenses or for most
other consulting services until after the services have been performed, and there are significant risks associated with our abilily to complete our services to the
satisfaction of our customers and to fulfill the requirements that entitle us to be paid. An inability to realize payment for servives performed could materially affest the
earnings of Journal Techhologies.

Risks Associated with Our Holdings of Marketable Securitles

A large portion of the Company's assels s held In publicly fraded securities, and the prices af those securities may decline,

As of September 30, 2015, the Company held marketable securitics worth approximalely $166,041,000, with an unrealized gain for financial statement purposes of
$111,498,000, While this portfolio has enabled the Company to borrow on very favorable torms for the New Dawn and ISD acquisitions and to better compete for case

management software epportunities that are usually limited t “large” firms, it is unuswal for a public company to invest a significant ampunt of its available eash in the
marketable securities of other public companics, The value of these securities could declie, which would adversely affect sharcholders® equity.
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Also, ns of September 30, 2015, the Company's heldings of marketable securities were concertrated in just seven companies and included two based in foreign
currencies. Accordingly, a significant decline in lhe market value and unfavorable changes in theforeign exchange rates of ong or more of the Company's holdings
may not be oftset by hypothetically better performance ol other holdings, This concentraticn of riskmay result ina more pronounced sffect on shareholders’ equity.

In certain oircinsiatices, the Company may be required fo recognize losses in @ particular sectwity for financial statenrent purposes even though the Company
s nof getnafly sold the security.

Bven if the Company’s markelable securities as a whole perform extraordinarily welt, for accownting rensans, an “other than temporary impairment” in a particutar
security may result in the need to recognlze a loss with respect to that security in the Company’s income statement [n a particular period. This has happened this fiscal
year and in the other two previous fiscal years prior to last year, and it may happen again in the future with respect to the same securities or other securities owned by
the Company. This requirement to recognize a loss coutd huve a malerial effect on the Company's catnings in a particular period. Also, at times, the Company may hald
marketable securitics denominated in currencies other (han the United States Doflar, When it dees, the Company may be at risk for significant fluctualions in the
applicable foreign currency exchange rates, which would affect the profitability of sueh marketable securities.

General Corporate Risls
The Company relies heavily on the services of Gerald Salzman,

Gerald Salzman, 76, serves as the Company's president, chief executive officer, chiel financiat officer, treasurer and assistant secretary. He is also the president,
chief cxacutive officer, chief financial officer and secretary of Joumal Technolagies. If Mr, Salziai’s services were no longer avaitable to the Company, It is unlikely
that the Company could find a single replacement to perform alf of the duties now handled by him, and it could have a significant adverse effect on the Company’s
business. The Company does not carry key tman life insurance, nov has it entered inte an employment agreement with M. Salzman.

Changes in deconnting gridance conld have  significant gffect on the Company's reported financial resulls,

Preparing consolidated financial statements requires the Company's managsment fo maks estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses, These estimates and assumptions are affocted by managemeni’s application of accounting policies and the prevailing accounling
guidance. The Company censiders fair value measorsment and disclosures, revenue recognition, accounting for seftware costs, accounting for business
combinations, testing for goodwitl and infangible impairments and income taxes fo be critical acoounting policies and estimates. A change in the accounting guidance
with respect ta one or more of these areas could materially atfect the Comparny's reported financial resulls.
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We cannol be snre that cirstomer inforination and sysiems ave fully profecied against secirity breaches.

Journal Technologies' software processes and stores customer [nformation in the conduct of its business, including in some cases by utilizing a eloud-based
system supplied by a third-party vendor. Despite our efforts to maintain up-to-date sseurity controls, it is possible ihat our system could be improperly used 1o access
of misappropriate customer systems or information, including personally identifiable ot other confidential information, A material security breach of this nature could
harm aur reputation, cause us ta lose current and potential customers, require us to allocate more resources 10 information security, or subjeet us or our customers to
liability, resulting in increased costs, foss of revenue, or both, The Traditional Business also operates eerlain websites that process and, in cerfain cases, slore
sustomer information. A miner seourity breach was discovered on a website operated by The Traditional Basiness in early fiseal 2015, and although it was remediated,
there can be no assurance that there will not be more material breaches in (he future. Also, our insurance may not cover all of the costs that we may incur as a resuft of
@ material security breach.

The Company has identified certain material weakpasses (n its infernal control over finaueial reporiing.

The Company has identified certain malerial weaknesses in {1 internal control aver finaneial reporting. The Cotapany's internal control over finanelal reporting has
been designed to provide managemen( and the Beurd of Dirsciors witl: reasonable assurance vegarding the preparation and fajr presentation of the Company's
consolidated financial statements. As & small company, we have eight experienced employees in thw aceounting department and three in the IT department,
Accordingly, we are not able to segregats duties to the extent we could if we had more people, and we have not suificienty designed and documented controls that
support an effeotive assessment of our internal controls relating to the prevention of fraud and possibie management everride of controls. Further, the Company dogs
not have sufficient technical expertise in assessing and applying accounting standards 1o complex and/or por-routine fransactions, reviewing the quarierty and annual
tax analysis and provision, and assessing the adequacy of disclosures in the quarterly and annual gonsolidated financial statements.

We belicve that our overall infernal conltro! enviranment is sufficient for a company of our size, However, the existence of material weaknesses means that there is
& reasonable possibility that a material misstatemenl of our financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. This may result in legal,
operational, financial and regulatory lssues. For more information regarding the material weaknesses, the mitigating controls used by the Company and certain remedial
steps being taken or considered, please see Part 11, tem #A Controls and Precedures,

Tiemn 1B, Unresolved Staff Comments

None.




Ttew 2, Praperties

The Company owns office and printing facilities in Los Angeles and office space in Logan, Utah and leases space for its olher offices under operaling lsases
which expire a1 various dates through 2020.

The main Los Angeles properly is comprised of a twe-story, 34,000 square foot building sonstructed in 1990, which is fully occupised by the Company.
Approximately 75% of the building is deveted to office space and the remainder to printing and preduction equipment and facilities. 1n 2003, the Company finished
building an adjacent 37,000 square foot building and parking lacilities on properties {t acquired in 1996 and 1998, This building provides additionat office, produstion
and storage space. The Company and Journal Technologies oceupy Ihis building’s first floor and wilt complete the build-out of the second floor as needed.

1n Novembar 2015, the Company purchased a 30,700 square foot office building constructed in 1998 on about 3.6 acres in Logan, Utah that had been previously
leased for Journal Teclinologies.

The Company leases approximately 6,200 square feet of office space (expiring in October 2019} in San Francisco. Journal Technelogies leases about 7,100 square
feet of office space (expiring in March 2017} in Covona, Califernia. In addition, the Company rents fasilities in each of the remaining cities where its staif {s located on a
month-lo-month basis or pursuant to leases gencrally el no longer than three years' duratien. The Company believes that it has adequate office spuce,

See Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Siafemenis for information conoeming rents paysble under leases.

Ttem 3, Legal Proceedings

From time to time, the Company is subject to litigaticn arising in the normal course of its business, While it is not possible ta predict the results of sueh: litigation,
management does noft believe the ultimate outsone of these types of matters will have a materisl adverse effect on the Company's financial position or results of
operations or cash flows.

Ttemn 4, Mine Safety Disclosures

ot applicable.




Part 11
Ttem 5. Market for Registrant's Comumon Equity, Related Stockliolder Matters and Tssuer Prrchases of Equity Securities

The following table sets Torth the sales prices of the Company’s ununon stock for the periods indicated, Quotations are as reported by the NASDAQ Capital
Market.

High i Low

Fiséal 2015
Quarter ended December 31, 20
. Quarter ended March 31,201,

v+ Quarter pnded y
Quarter ended June 30,

7 Quiirtes Ended Soptembe

As of Decernber 2, 2015, there were approximately 540 holders of record of the Company's common stock, and the last trade was at $212.54 per share.

The Company did not declare or pay any dividends during fiscal 2015, 2014 or 2013. A determination by the Company whether or not to pay dividends in the
future will depend on numerous factors, ingluding the Company’s sarnings, cash Dow, financial condition, capital requirements, future prospects, acquisition
opportunitics, and other relevant factors. The Board of Directors doss not expect that the Company will pay any dividgnds or other distributions to shareholders in the
foreseeable future.

The Company does not have any equity compensation plans, and it did not sef} any secusities, whether or not registered under the Securities Act of 1933, during
{he past three fiscal years.

From time [o titne, the Company has repurchased shares of its common stock and mey continue to do so, The Company maintains a common stack repurchase
program that was implemented in 1987 in combination with the Company’s Management Tncentive Plan. See Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
more information. The Company’s stock repurchase program remains in effect, but the Company did not repurchase any shares during fiscal 2015 or 2014.
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The. following graph shows a five-year comparison of cumulative total returnan the Company’s common stock, Standard & Poor’s 500 Composite Index, Standard
& Poor's Publishing MidCap Index and Standard & Poor’s Software & ServicesSelect Industry Index, assuming $10¢ was invested on Seplember 30, 2010, and all

dividends were reinvested. The Company has not declared a dividend in any of the. fiscal years shown,

Draily Journst Corporafion
Total Cumulative Shareholder Return for Five Years Ended September 30, 2055
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Itews 6. Selected Financial Batfa

The following sets forth selected financial data for the Company as of, and for sach of the five yeats ended Septembet 30, 2015, Such data should be read in
conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, the Company’s consolidated financial staternents and the notes thereto and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditien and Results of Cperations,” each included herein.

TFiscal Year Ended September 30
2015 2044 2013 2012 2011
(Dollar amounts In thousands,
except share and per share alrn_o_u_nts)

Consolidated Stotement of Comprehensive Tucome (Losdp =~ 17
Reve_nues

CTTMATE 8 19’,221‘ Co§ee L33
e e e s 6,346
& service fees and oifier 7

iConsulting Tees
Other public service fees

Cosls and expenses .
mpioyee banefits,

uncertam atd umecogmzcc] tax bénefi ts
_ Gains on sales of capital assets

R 12 0) M 1) IR

a0 7901
N R . S8y

$ S 541 3 7840

S 1380, s 138076
3 401§ 5.68

o Netingome - IR U G R ST+ 7 MRS T .=
Met change in uarealized apprecmnnn af mvesnucnts (net uf
taxes) @811 22393 2292 15,085 (3,627
Recl' ifigation jdjuistinen ofuther—th.m—lempormy lmpzurmcn” B R T S T R PA
- los: gmiaed in nét income - . T Ry~ P e S ST lOSl A TR0 e
Net changem comprehenswe mcnmc{uss) $ @771y § 230§ 26122 % 226§ 4,213
September 30
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Consolidated Balames Shept Datar <~~~ -1 7 U I T T e T Tk i T TR s T
Total assels $ 28196 % MIZTT % 203,063 B 120964 $ 90,316
Shareholders’ equity: - T : - C T ERE0R ST UL 3T TR s e AR
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Ttem 7, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finanetal Condition and Results of Operations
Results of Operations

The Company continues to operate as two different businesses: (1) The Traditional Business, being the business of newspaper publishing and related services
that the Company had before 1999 when it purchased a majority interest in Sustain, and (2) Journst Technologies, Inc. (“Journat Technologies™), a wholly-owned
subsidiary, which includes as of October |, 2014, the combined operations of Sustain Technologies, Int. (“Sustain®), a wholly-owned subsidiary since 2063; New Dawn
Technatogics, [ne. {“New Dawn™), acquired in December 2012, and 18D Technolagies, Inc. {“IS13"), acquired in September 2013, Journal Technologies supplies case
management softweare systems and related producls to courts, prosecuier and public defender offices, probation departments and other justice agencies, including
administrative law organizations, city and county governments and bar assecitions. These organizations use the Journal Technologies family of produots lo help
manage cases and information electronically, to Interface with other critical justics partners and fo extend clectronic seryices to bar members and the publie, including a

website'to pay traffic citations online. These products are livensed to more than 500 organizations in 4t states and internationally.

Fiscaf 2015 compared to fiscal 2014

Overall Resufts

During fiscal 2015, consolidated prefax lass was $310,000 as compared to a profil of $141,000 in the prior year, The Traditional Business segment’s pretax income
decreased by $2,037,000 (65%) fo $1,082,000 from $3,119,000, primarily resulting from decreases in trustee sale notice and related service fes revonues of $881,000,
conimerclal advertising revenues of $237,000 and elreulation revenues of $123,000, and increased expenses of $884,000 primarily for increased personnel costs and
legal, accounting and tax fees. Journal Technologies' business segment pratax loss decreased by $1,156,000 (20%) to $4,690,000 from $5,846,000 primarily resulting
from increased lieensing and maintenance fees and consuliing fees of $1,699,000 (10%), partially offset by increased parsonnel costs of $524,000, The Company’s non-
pperating income, net of expenses, increased by $430,000 (15%) to $3,298,000 primarily because of additional dividends and interest income from the Company's
imarketable seeurities. There were pretax other than temporary impairment [osses on invesiments of §376,000 in fiscal 2015 and none in fiscal 2014,
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Additional detail about each of the Company's reporiable segments, and its corporate income and expenses, is set forth below:

Overall Financial Results (000}
For the fwelve months ended September 30

Reportable Segments
Traditional Journal Corporate
Rusiness Technologies income and expenses
2014 ) 2015 ) 2014 2015 2014

Advertising
irdwation Lo Sl D T
Advertising service fees and
other

13984
L AT04 J
TRt A v (| I . |

24,858

16,260

“4.805°
7638 8297
18,0387 AT T 20450 L T P BRAN
1082 39 {dsody — (5309)

“% Total operating expenses’
Income {1oss) from operations

Other income (net), primarily
dividends and interest income
Other-ih irmiont
" Lobsscs oit inveshmients -~ -0

Interest and penalty expenses
acerued for uncertain and

ized tox benefils — -— (96} (537 — —

we (loss), ..t $oo0 L0BR §i T 30 T @eo0). § MR TEC  3a0R$ T Ra S
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{537)
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At September 30, 2013, the aggregate fair market vaive of the Company’s marketable securitics was $166,041,000, These securities had approximately $1 11,498,000
of unrealized gains before tares of $43,278,000 and generated approximately 33,825,000 in dividends and interest income during the year, which fowers the Company’s
cffective income 1ax rate bevause of the dividends reseived deduction.

Consolidated rovenues were $43,978,800 and $43,423,600 for fiscal 2015 and 2014, respectively. This increase of $555,000 (1%) was primsarily from additional Journal
Teshnologies licensing and maintenance and consulting revenues of $1,669,000, partially offset by the reduction in The Traditional Business's teustee sale notice and
related service foe revenues of $881,600, commercial advertising revenues of $237,000 and eirculetion revenues of $123,000, The Campany’s revenues derived from
Journal Technologies' operations constituied about 37% and 53% of the Company’s totai revenues for fiscal 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Cansalidated opernting costs and expenses increased by 1,877,000 (4% to $47,490,000 from $45,613,000, primarily resulting from additional expenses for Journal
Technologies. Total personnel costs increased by $748,000 (3%) Io $26,010,000 from $25,262,000 including additional personnel costs for Journal Technologies of
$524,000. Other general and administrative expenses inergased by $761 (8%) ic $9,882 Pram $9,121 mainly because of increased travel for instattation services and

selling expenses.




Thers was net incotme per share of $0,59 for fissal 2015 as compared with $0.46 per share in the prior year,
The Traditional Business

The Traditional Business segmen! advertising revenues, which declined by $933,000 (8%) to $10,502,000 from §11 435,000, are very much dependent on: the pumber
of California and Arizona foreclosures for which publis netice advertising is required by law, The number of foreclosue notices published by the Company decreased
by 2% during fiscal 2015 as compared to the prior year and accounted for aimest all of the decling in revenues, Bocawss this slowing is expected to continue, there will
be fewer foreclosure notice advertisements and declining revenues in fiscal 2016, and the Company’s print-based earnings will alsa likely decline significantly because
it will be impractical For the Company to offset all revenue loss by expense reduction. The Company's smaller newspxpers, those other than the Los Angeles and San
Francisco Daily Journals ("The Daily Journals"), accounled for about 92% af the total public notics advertising revenues in fiscal 2015. Public notice advertising
revenues and related advertising and other service fees constituted about 22% and 24% of the Company's total revenues for fiscal 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Because of this concentration, the Company’s revenues would be significansty affected if California (and to a lesser exent Arizona) eliminated the legal requirement to
publish public notices in adjudicated newspapers of general circulation, as has been propused from time to time. Also, if the adjudication of one or more of the
Company's newspapers was chatlenged and revoked, those newspapers would no longer be cligible to publish public notice advertising, and it could have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s revenues. Commereial advertising revenues decreased by $237,000 (6%) to $3,61 1,000 from $3,348,000 because of the continuing
challenges in the commercial advertising business,

The Daily Journals accounted for about 87% of the Company's total circulation revenues, which declined by $123,080 (2%} to $5,915,00¢ from 6,038,000, The court
rute and judicial profile services generated aboul 10% of the folal circulation revenues, with the other newspapers and services acoounting for the balance.
Advertising service fees and other are Traditional Business segment revenues, which include primarily (i) agency commissions received from outside newspapers in
which the advertising is placed and {ii} fess generated when filing notices with government agencies.

The Traditional Business segment operating expenses increased by $884,000 (5%) to $18,038,000 from $17,154,000 primarily due to increased personnel ¢osts of
$224,000 and addisionat legal, accounting and tax fees of $387,000,

Journal Technologies

Journal Technologies™ revenues increased by $1,708,000 (7%) to $24,858,000 from $23,150,000 in the prior yewr, Licensing and maintenance {ees increased by
$997,000 (8%) to $13,984,000 from $12,987,000. Consulting fees increased by $702,000 (18%) to 34,704,000 from $4,002,000. [x most cases, revenues from new installation
projects will only be recognized, if at nll, upon completion and acceptance of the services by the various sustomers. Deferved revenues on installation contracts
primarily represent the falr value of advances from customers of Journal Techaologies for software leenses and installation services. After a customer’s accepiance of
the completed project, the advances are generally no longer at risk of refund and are therefore considered camed. Deferred revenues on Heense and maintenance
contracts ropresent prepayments of annual lcenss and maintenanee fees and are recognized ratably over the maintenance period,

%




Journal Technologies' operating expenses, which included the amortization of intangible asseis of $4,8%5,000 and $4,866,000 in fiseal 2015 and 2014, respectively,
increased by $993,000 (3%) to $29,452,000 from $28,459,000 primarily due to increased personnel cosis of $524,000 and travel expenses of $376,000, ldentifiable
intangible assets, including customer relationships and developed teshnology, are being amortized on a straighi-line basis over five years due to the short i{fe eycle of
technology that custemer relationships depend on and over 15 years for tax purposes. Goodwill, which is sot amortized for financial statement purposes, is amorlized
over a 15-year period for [ax purposes, Goodwill represents the expected synergies i expanding the Company’s software business, Goodwill is evaluated for
impairment annually, or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the value may not be recoverable, Cansidered factors for potential goodwill
impairment evaluation include the currert year's business profitability before intangible amortization, fuctuations of revenues, changes in the market place, the stafus
of installation contracts and new business, among other things. The Company is continuing to update aud upgrade its software products. These costs are expensed as
incurred and will impact earnings at least through the foreseeable future,

Faxes

The Company recorded an income tax benefit of $1,120,000 an prefax loss of $310,000 in fisoal 201 5. The offective tax rate was lower than the statutory rate
primarily dug to the dividends received deduction, the domestic production activity deduction and a discrets benefit of approximately $400,000 related lo the California
Enterprise Zene hiring credits swhich resulfed from the Company’s filing amendex California tax retwras far fiseal 2010 throngh fiscal 2043, A benefit of this tax credit
was recognized in the fiscal 2014 amended 1ax return. Cn pretax incame of $141,000 for fiscal 2014, the Company recorded a tax benefit of $490,000. The Cempany's
effective tax rate was 361% and -348% for fiscal 2015 and 2014, respectively.

At September 30, 2015, the Company had an ascrued liability of approximately $2,991,000 for unceriain and unrecognized tax benefiis relating to an acquisition in
fiscal 2013, after n reduction of $253,000 resulting from the recognition of deferred revenues and from the anartization of goodwill for tax purposes. The Company does
not anticipate a significant incrense or decrease In this liability in the next twelve months. If recognized, it is expected that these unrecopnized fax benefits would not
have a significant impact on the Company’s effective fax rate. Al September 39, 2014, the Company evaluated a tax position taken on its prior year tax return
and determined that the position d¢id not meer the mere likely than not eriterin because that position taken was in contrary to the one accounted for in purchase
accounting. The Company thus accrued o liability of approximately $3,244,000 for uncertain and unrecognized tax benefits at September 30, 2014, Fhere was no such an
accrual in fiscal 2013.

During fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013, interest sxpense of approximately $96,000, $537,000 and $0, respectively, wes recorded as “inferest and penalty expense acerued
for uncertain and unrecognized tax benefits” in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss). The Company files federal income tax returns in the
United States and with various state jurisdictions and is no longer subject {o examinations for fiscal yesis before fiscal 2012 with regard fo federal income taxes and
fiscal 2011 for state income laxes,




Fiseal 2014 compared to fiscal 2013

During fiscat 2014, consolidated pretax income decreased by 54,428,000 (97%) to $141,000 {rom $4,569,000 in the prior year. The Traditional Business segment’s
pretax income decreased by $4,855,000 (619%) to §3,119,000 from $7,974,000, primarily resulting from a reduction in frustee sale notice and related servies fee revenues of
$2,825,000 and commercial advertising revenues of $423,000. Dividends and intsrest income increased by $460,000. There were pretax other than temporary impairment
losses on investments of §1,7(2,000 in (iscal 2013 but none in fiscal 2014. Journal Technologies business segmeni pretax loss increased by $1,611,000 (39%) primarily
because of the two soquisitions as further discussed below. (Journal Technologics inciuded 12 months of operations for Sustain, Mew Dawn and 15D in fiscal 2014, and
12 months for Sustain, less than 10 months for New Dawn and [ month for ISD in fiscal 2013.})

Consolidated revenues were $43,423,000 and $32,676,000 for fiseal 2014 and 2013, respestively. This increase of $5,747,000 (15%) was primarily from the additional
Journal Technologies® revenues of $9,304,000, partially offset by the reduction in trustes safe notice and related service fee revenues of $2,825,000 and commercial
advertising revenues of $423,000. The Company’s revenues derived from Journal Techneiogies' operations constiluted about 53% and 37% of the Company”s total
revenues for fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectivsly.

Consolidated operating costs and expenses inereased by $11,726,000 (35%) to $45,613,920 from $33,887,000, primarily for Jowrnal Technologies. Total personnet
costs increased by $6,026,000 (31%) to $25,262,000 from $19,236,000 including additional personnel costs for Journal Technologies of $4,645,000 and 4 reduced
decrease of §1,740,000 in the expenses relaled to the Campany®s Managemont Incentive Plan (“Inceniive Plan™). The reduced decrease in Incenlive Plan expense
consisted of a reduction of $840,000 In the Jong-term Incentive Plan accrual during fiscal 2014 due to reduced estimaled current and future consolidated prelax income
before this acorual versus a reduction of $2,580,000 in the prior comparable year, This redvciion sscurred because the Incentive Plan is based primarily on the pretax
income of the Company before adjustment for certain items, Depreciation and amartizaiion costs increased by 33,075,000 (126%) to $5.516,000 mainly resulting from the
additional amortization of Journal Technelogies’ intangible eosts of $3,001,000, Other general and administrative expenses aiso increased by §2,632,000 (41%) primarily
resulting from additional rent, sales and marketing expenses for Journal Techuologies and increased professional fees, ingluding those associated with the acquisitions
of New Dawn and 18D described below and the fiseal 2013 audit,

The Traditional Business segmenl adverlising revenues declined by $3,037,000 (219} to 311,435,000 from $14,472,000, The simber of foreclosurg notices published
by the Company decreased by 51% during fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2013, The Company's smaller newspapers, those other than the Los Angeles and San
Francisco Daily Journals (*The Daily Journals"), aceounted for about $6% of the total public netice advertising revenues in fiscat 2014, Public notice advertising
revenues and related advertising and other service fees constituted about 24% of the Company's total revenues in fiscal 2014. Commercial advertising revenues
declined by $423,000 (10%) to $3,348,000 from $4,271,000.

The Daily Joumals accounted for about 6% of the Company’s fotat cireulation revenues, which declined by $303,000 (5%) to $5,038,000 from $6,346,000. The court
rute and judicial profile services generated about 1% of the total circulation revenues, with the other newspapers and services accounting for the balance.
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The Traditional Business segment operating costs and expenses increased by §1,298,000 (8%) to §£7,154,000 from $15,856,000 primarily due lo annual salary
adjustments and & reduced decrease of $1,740,000 in sxpenses related (o the Incentive Plan,

Journal Technologies' revenues increased by $9,304,000 (67%) to $23,150,000 from $13,846,000 in the pirior gear, primarily due o the acquisitions of New Dawn and
ISD. Licensing and mainfenance fees incrensed by $3,045,000 (31%) 1o $12,987,000 from $5,942,000. Consulting fees increased by $596,000 {17%) to $4,002,000 from
$3,406,000, Other public service faes Increased by $5,663,000 from $495,000 {} morth only as ISD was acquired in September 2013 and accounts for most of these fees)
to $6,161,000.

Journal Technologies® operating expensss Increased by $10,428,000 (58%) to 328,459,000 from $18,031,000 in the prior year primarily due to the two acquisitions,
and included an increuse in the amortization costs of $3,001,000,

The Company recorded an income tax benefit of $490,000 on pretax income of $141,000 in fiscal 2014. The income tax benefit was higher than the amount
computed using the statutory rate because of the dividends received deduction and the domestic production aetivity deduction, On pretax income of §4,569,000 for
fiscal 2013, the Company recorded a tax provision of $790,000 which was lower than the amount computed usiag the statutory sate primarily because of the dividends
received deduction and the domestic production activity deductien. The Company's effzctive fax rate was -348% and 17% for fiscal 2014 and 2013, respegtively.

At Septomber 30, 2014, the Company accrued a liabilily of approximately $3,244,000 for unceriain and unrecognized tax benefits relating te an acquisition in fiscal
20H3. This was a result of the Company's evaluation of the tax position taken in its prior year tax return resulting in the conclusion that the tax position did not meet
mare likely than not eriteria. The prior year's income tax return which was filed in July 2014 reflected an income (ax position contrary to the one accounted for in
purchase accounting in fisoal 2013. Interest and penalties of appreximately $337,000 were recorded as “intorest and penalty expense accrued for uncertaln and
wirecognized tax benefits” in the statement of contprehensive income,

Al September 30, 2053 and 2012, there were no unrecogrized tax benefits for the uncertain tax pasitions as the Company settled the previously claimed research
and development credits in its tax returns for the fiscal 2002 to 2007 years with the Infernal Revenue Service in March 2012,

Nel incomne per share decreased (o $0.46 from $2.74,

[ EEEEREREREEE]
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Coamprehensive income (loss) includes net income and unrealized net {losses) gains on investments, nef of taxes, as summarized below:

Comypirehensive (Loss) Income
Fiscal Year Ended September 30

2015 2014 2013

PR NTT000
21,292,000

ek iricome R 2
Net (decreasa) increase in unrealxzed appre ents {nel of taxes)
Reclassxﬁcahou adjushnentof othwlhan—temporary lmp xm'ant losaes recogmzed m nef SRETS
. ingome {netof taxes) .. -l e ; A : s : Lt T T KL
3 (7 771,000y § 23024000 3§ 26,122,000
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The Company’s Traditlonal Business is one reportable segment and the other is Taurnal Technologies. Additionsl detail about cach of the

reportable segments is sef forth below:

Reportable Segments
Reportable Sagments
Corporate
Traditional Journal income
Business Technologies and expenses Total

Risenl 20155
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Reportable Segments

Corporale
Traditional Journf income
Busingss Technologies* and expenses Total
seal 201 E B -

Revenues
dvérising; nel. ,. i g i 9 DV §L 14 472,000
Circutation . i ) 5,346,000
L : : . 3012600... 5 3,512,000 7
9,942,000
- 34060007
— 458,000
133,887,000
3789000
-TI2,547000 7

s Opergting expenses :
Incotne (loss) from o_peralio:g:_

55000
L )
(1,719,000)

SURRERIR

il

Other-than-temporary impair
T pratax incomme (loss)
Ingome tax benefii (expense)
“: Ne¥ Tncoima {1955y -

063,000

" Capital Bxpanditure “ 780800
Amortization of intangible assets 1,865,000

* Includes (i) New Dawn’s financial results from December 3, 2012 through September 30, 2013 with revenues of $10,403,000 and expenses of $10,625,000

(ineluding intangible amortization expenses of $1,587,000), and (ii) I5D’s Seplember 2013 financial resulls with revenues of $784,000 and expenses of $694,000
{including intangible amortization expenses of $278,000).
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Disclosure of Contractunl Obligations
The following table sets forth eertain contractual obligations as of Seplember 30, 2015
Caontracteal Obligations (000)

Less fhau More than
1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 3 5 years Tatal

* Tho fong-term accrued liabilitiss are discounted to the present valye using a discount rate of 6%.

In addition, during fiseal 2013 the Company borrowed $29,453,000 from its investment margin account For the acquisitions of New Dawn and [SD. These
investment margin account borrowings do not mature, The {nterest rate for these investment margin account borrowings fluctuates based on the Federal Funds Rate
plus 50 basis points with inderest only payable monthly. The interest rate as of September 30, 2015 was 0.75%, and there has been no flyctuation in the interest rafe
since Decentber 2012, The Compary alse acerued a liability of approximately $2,991,000 for uncertain and unrecognized tax benefits relating to one of the acquisitions
in fiscal 2013.

Liguldity and Capifal Resourees

During fiscal 2015, the Company's cash and cash equivalents and marketable security positions decreased by $7.428.000 to $181,658,000. After selling markelable
securities for §4,044,000 and realizing a pretax gain of approximately $4,000, cash and cash equivalents were used primarily for the purchase of other marketable
socuritics of $10,977,000 and capital assets, including computer sofiware and offico equipment of about $565,000. The investments in marketable securities, which had
an adjusted cost basis of approximately $54,543,000 and had a market value of about $166,041,000 al September 30, 2015, generated approximately $3,829,000 in
dividends and interest incoms, which lowers the Company's ¢ffective income tax rafe because of the dividends received dedustion. As of September 30, 2015, there
were unrealized investment pretax gains of $111,498,000 as compared to $125,700.00 as of September 30, 2014, Most of the unrealized gains were in the common stocks
of theee (1.8, financial institutions.

The cash provided by operating activities of §7,753,000 included decreasos in deferred installation contracts, deferred maintenance agreements and others and
deferred subscriptions of $932,00C. Cash flows from operating activities increased by $3,248 000 during fiscal 2015 as compared to the prior year primarily because of
decreases in accounts receivable of $5,145,000 resulting from more collections, partiatly offset by Increases in accrued liabilities of $1,015,000,

As of September 30, 2613, the Cornpany Tad waorking capital of $122,947,000, including the liabilities for deferred subscriptions and deferred installation contracts
and deferred maintenance agreements and others of $18,109,000, which are scheduled to be eamed within one year, and the deferred tax liability of $43,278,000 for the
unrealized gains described above.

The Company believes that it will be able to fund ifs operations for the foreseeable future through its cash Fows from operating activities and its current working
capital and expects that any such cash fows will be invested in its businesses, The Company wmay ar may not have the ability to borrow against its markelable
securities on Favorable terms as & did for prior acquisitions. The Company also may entertain additional business acquisition opportunities. Any exeess cash flows
could be used to reduce e investment margin account liability or invested as management and the Beard of Directors deem appropriate at the time.
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Such investments may include additionsd securities of the companies in which the Company has already invested, securities of other companiss, governmeni
securities (including U.S. Treasury Notes and Bills) or afher instruments. The decision as 1o particular investments will be driven by the Company’s belief about the
risk/reward profile of the various investment choices al the time, and it may utitize government seomities as a default il attractive opportunities for a better return are
not avaitable, The Company’s Clisinnan of the Board, Charlas Munger, is also the vice chairman of Berkshirs Hathaway Inc., which maintains g substantial investment
portfolio. The Company's Board of Directors has utilized his judgment and suggestions, as well as those of J.P, Guerin, the Cotmpany’s vice chairman, when selecting
invesiments, and both of them will continue to play an important role in monitoring existing investents and selecting any futurs {nvestments,

As of September 30, 2015, the investments were concentrated in just seven companies, Accordingly, a significant decling in the market valug of one or more of the
Company’s investments may net be offset by the hypothetically betier performance of other investavents, and that could result in @ large decrease in the Company’s
shareholders’ equity and, under certain circumsiances, in the recognition of impairment losses in the Company’s income statement (such gs the other-than-temporary
impaiemuent losses of $376,000 recognized during this year, $1,719,000 recegnized in fiscal 2013 and $2.855,000 recognized in fiscal 2012},

Critical Accaunting Policies and Estimates

The Company’s financial statethents and accompanying notes are prepared in accordance with .3 generally accopted accounting principles. Preparing financial
statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affeer the reported amownis of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. These estimates
and assumptions are affeeted by management’s application of accouniing policies. Management believes that revenue recognition, accounting for software costs, fair
value measurenent and disclosures (including for the long-term Ineentive Plan liabilities), accounting for business combinations, testing for goodwill impairment and
income taxes are crifical accounting policies and estimates,

For the Traditional Business, proceeds from the salo of subseriptions for newspapers, sourt rele books and other publications and other services are recorded as
deferred revenue and are included in eamed revenus only when the services are provided, generally over the subscription term. Adverlising revenues are recognized
when advertisements ate published and are nel of commissians, An allowance for doubtful aceounts for receivable is recorded.

Journal Technologies recognizes revenues ih accordance with the provisions of Acceounting Standards Codification (“ASC") ASC 985605, Software—Revenne
Recognition and ASC 605-35 Constraction-Type and Production-Type Confrasls. Revenues from leases of software products are recognized over the life of the lease
while revenues from software product sales are generally recognized upon delivery, installation or aceeptance pursuant to a signed agreement, Revenies from annual
license and maintenance agreements generally call for the Company to provide software updates and upgrades to customers and are recognized ratably aver the
maintenance period. Consulting and ather services are resognized upon neceptance by the customers under the completed contract method. The Company slects to
use the completed contract method bacause each cusiomer’s acoeptance {s unpredictable and reliable estimates of the progress towards completion cannot be made.
Only after a customer’s acceplance of & comploted project are eusfomer advances generally no longer at risk of refund and are therefore considerad earned. Other
public service fees, as disclosed in the consolidated stalements of somprehensive income (Joss), are primarily service fees garned and recognized as revenues at the
time when the Company processes eredit card payments on behalf of the courts via its ePaylt seeure websites through which the general public can pay traffic
citations and obain traffic school informaticn.

3




The Company has established Vendor Spesific Objective Evidence {VSOE) of the fair value of annual maintemnce because 4 substantial majerity of Journal
Technologies' actua) maintenance renewals is within a narrow range of pricing as a percentnge of the underlying licanse fees Tor the legaey contracts and is deemed
substantive,

ASC 985.20, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Saftware (o be Sold, Leased, or Otherwise Markeied, pravides that costs related to the research and
development of & new software product are to be expensed as incurred until the technolegical feasibility of the product s established. Accordingly, cosls related to the
devetopment of new software products are expensed as Incurred until technological feasibility has been established, # which time such costs are capitalized, subject
to expected recoverability. In general, “technological feasibility” is achieved when the developer has established the necessary skills, hardware and technology to
produce a product and a detailed program design has been {1} completed, {ii) traced to (he product specifications and {i5F) reviewed for high-risk development issues,
The Company belioves its process for developing software is cssentinily completed coneurront with the establishment of technological feasibility, and accordingly, no
software development costs have been capitalized to date.

ASC 830, Fair Valve Meastrement and Disclosives, raquires the Company to (1) disolose the amounts of transfirs in and out of Level b and Lovel 2 fair value
measurements and the reasons for the transfers and {i1) present separately information about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements in the recanciliation of Lavel
3 measurements. This guidance also provides clarification of existing disclosures requiring the Company o determine each class of its investments based on risk and
to disclose the valuation techniques and inpuls used to measure fair valus for both Level 2 and Level 3 measurements, The Company mads no transfers in and out of
Level | and Level 2 measurements in fiscal years 2012, 2013 and 2014, During that time all of the Company’s investments have been quoted on public markets and,
therefore, all fair valus calcutations have been based on Level | measurements, The eslimated Incentive Plan's feture commitment is calculated using Level 3 inputs, as
defined in the fair value hisrarchy, based on an average of the current year and the current expectation of fiscal 2015 pustax earnings before certain items, dissounted to
the present value at 6% since sach granted Incentive Plan Unit will expire over its remaining life term of up to 10 years.

ASC 805, Business Combinations, requires the use of the purchase method of aceounting in connection with the acquisition of businesses, This requires all of the
gequired assets and [{abilities to bo recorded al their fair values and for the purchase price to be allocated accordingly. Furthermore, intangible assets must be
categorized and separated into fivo groups: thase with an identifiable remaining nseful 1ife and these with an indefinite useful life. The latler is classified as goodwill. In
fiscal 2013, the aequisitions of New Dawn and ISD resulted in the Company allocating $13,400,000 to gaodywill. The identifiable intangible assots acquired for New
Dawn and ISD were based on Level 2 fair value measurements using an income approach discounted fa the present value.
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The Company analyzes goodwill for possible impairment under ASC 350, [ntanglbies ~ Goadwill and Other, annually or whenever events or changes in
circumstances {ndicate that the value may not be recoverable, Considered factors for potential grodwiil mpairment evaluation for the reporting units inelude current
year's business profitability before intangible amortization, fiuctuations of revenues, changss in the market place, lhe status of installation coniracts and new
business, among other things, In addition, ASC 2011-08, Testing Goodwill for Impairment, attows for the option of performing a qualitative assessment before
caloulating the fair value of a reporling unit. If it is deterinined based on qualitative factors that there Is no Impairment to goodwill, then the fair value of & reporting unit
is not needed. If a quantitative analysis is required and the unit’s carrying amount exceeds its fair value, then the second step is performed to measure the amouat of
potential impaimment. The Company’s annual goadwill impairmens analysis in 2014 did not result it an impairment charge based on the qualitative assossment using the
above-mentioned considered factors for potential gacdwill impairment.

ASC 710, fncome Tuves, establishes financiaf accounting and reporting standards for the eftect of income taxes. The objectives of accounting for income taxes are
1o recognize the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and the deforred tax linbilities and assets for the future tax consequences of events that
have been recognized in the financial stafements or tax returns. This aceounting guidanse also prescribes recognition thresholds and measurement aftributes for the
financial staternents recognition and measurement of 4 1ax posilion laken of expacted to be taken in a tax return, Judgment is required in assessing the future tax
consequences of events that have been recogrized in the Company's financial statements or tax returns. Fluoctuations in the actual outcome of these future tax
consequences could materiatly impact the Company’s financial position or its results of operationy and {ts deferred tux liabilitics related to the net unrealized gains on
investments. See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Firaucial Statements for further discussion.

ASC 280-10, Segment Reporting, defines operaling segments as components of a public entity that has discrete financial information that is evaluated regularly by
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer 1o decide hiow to allocats resourges and to assess pecformance, In aceordance with ASC 280-10, the Company has lwo
reportable business segments which are: (i} Traditional Business and (ii) Journal Technologies.

The above discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the consofidated financial statements and the notes thercto included in this report.
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Liem 7A. Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk

In December 2012, the Company borrewed from its investment margin account the purehase price of $14 million for the New Dawn acquisition, and in Seplember
2013, it borrowed another $15.5 miilion for the IS scquisition, in each exse pledging its marketable seeurities as ¢ollateral, The interest rate For these investment margin
account borrosings fluctuales based on the Federal Funds Rate plus 50 basls points with interest only payable monthly. The interest rale as of September 30, 2015 was
0.75%, and there has been no fluctuation in the interest rate since December 2012, The Company was not subject to ey significant interest rate risk during such
period.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company holds foreign markeiable seourities based in South Korcan Won and Hong Kong Dollar that are subject to risk associated with changes in the
enchange rates of shese curcencies against the United States Dollar. The fair value of the foreign marketable security held in South Korean Won was $8,692,000, and the
adjusted cost was $10,977,000 as of September 30, 2015, The exchange rate of the South Korean Won against the United States Dollar was $0.00095 and $0.00084 at
Ocleber 1, 2014 and Septomber 30, 20135, respectively, The fair value of the foreign marketable security held in Hong ¥ong Dollar was $26,335,000, and the adjusted cost
was 39,697,000 as of September 30, 2015, The exchange rate of the Hong Kong Dollar agains! the United States Dollar was $0.12877 and $0.§2903 gt Oclober 1, 2014 and
Seplember 30, 2015, respectively. :

Equity Price Risk

The Company awns marketable securities and is subject fo equity prieo risk, The following fable summarizes our equity seeurities with significant eguity price risk
as of September 30, 2015 and 2014, The effects of & hypoihetical 30% incrense and a 30% docreass in market prices as of those dates arc also shown. The selected 30%
hypothetical changes do not reflect what could be considered the best ar worst ¢ase scenarios, Indeed, results could be Far betier or worse duge both te the naturs of
squity markets and the aforementioned cancentration {n our equity investment porifolio,

Equity Price Risk (000)
Hypothetical
Estimated Fair Vatuwe Percentape Increase
Hypothetical Price after Hypothetical (Drecrease) in
Change Change in Prices Shareholders’ Equily

Septofnbr 30, 2015+ TR T =
iti 206,317 37% increase

3%;,“?9_53' .. 206317 37% incre
CTUIENeE T 3% deoTeds

0% degres

0% ineréase 1545474 - 36% liicreas

30% decrease . ) 116,014 36% decrense
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Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Report of Independent Registered Publie Aecounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Sharcholders of Dally Journal Corperation

We have audited the accompanying conse!idated balance sheets of Daily Journal Corporation as of September 30, 2015 and 2014 and the related conselidatod
statements of comprehensive income (loss), shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility ol the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based onour audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan
and perferm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are froe of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statentents, assessing the accoumting principles used and significant estimates mads by
management, as well as svaluating the overalt financial statsment presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in il material respeets, the financial position of Daily Journal Corparation at
September 30, 2015 and 2014, and the results of its aperations and its sush flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generaily aceepted
in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accotdance with the standards of {he Public Company Accouniing Oversight Board (United States), Daily Journal Corporation’s internal

control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2015, based on criteria established in /nfernal Controf - Ittegrated Framework (1992) issued by the Comunittes of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Teeadway Commission {COSO) and our report dated December 14, 2015 expressed an adverse opinion thereon.

st BDO USA, LLP

Los Angeles, California
December 14, 2015
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The Board of Directars and Shareholders of Daily Journal Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consclidated stalements of comprehensive income, shareholders' equity, and cash flows of Dally Journal Corporalion for the year
ended September 30, 2013. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to sxpress an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We condueted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance abowt whether the financial statements ave fiee of matsrial misstatement, An audit includes oxamining, on 4 lest
basis, evidence supporting the amounis and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit afse includss assessing the aecounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasenable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred lo above present Tairly, in all material respects, the consokidated results of eperations and cash flows of Daily Journal
Corporation for the year ended September 30, 2013, in conformity with U.$. generally accepted accsunting principles,
{5 Ernst & Young, LLP

Los Angeles, Californiz
June 24, 2014
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DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

September 30

2045 2014

¥ Cashiand ash equivalents : T T15410,000 ]
Marketable securities, inciuding common stocks of §158,705,000 and borxls ot‘ 37, 336 000 at Scptember 0, 2018
and common stocks of $165,734,000 and bonds of 7,942,000 at September 30, 2014 ) ) ) 166,041,000 ) 173,676,000

o ABooUIS receivable, less: allowange for doubtlul accounts of $250,000 at September 30, 2015 4nd 2014: v 10 S 8,566,000.7

Inventories 51,000
i-Prepaid-expenses al 654,00 9'82],6{)9'"?;
Income tax recewab[e 765,000 2,051,000
i B328[ *. - 204,737,000,
12773000 ) ) _12814000
T2685,000% L RB000.
1,864,000 1,864,000
17292000 T 17567000
(8,335,000 (8,552,000)
“B.937,000° G 015,000 ¢

12,990,000

021,000 7981000
UDR96000 . § - -JALETI00 §

ak CREI000 T § S M0
Accrned liabilities 2,319,000 o 3118000
{+Defetred subsoriptions ;-2 “3474,000% 3381000
Deferred mstatlalwn cnntmcts 7.820,000 $,896,000

?' ' S5 BHEMH T T T 0aL0w
40,641,000 46,502,000

T65881000. ¢ ¢ < 7327,000

L ol auront bl

Long ferm linbilities

Invesiment margm account borrowmgs _- ., 7 ) ) 2-9,493,0(.}0. ' 7 ‘29,'49.3",000

; Deterded maintenance agreeiienis = 2851000 ., S 180,000
[ncome tax paynhie 2 991 000 3,244,000

- Acerved nterest wid pénalty Torunceripin and wirecognized tax benefis " AR - 11+ | SRR G « 11 )
Accrued liabilitics 47,000 730,000

~ -5 Tatal long tetw [iabilities ATl TR R R T e TR T T U SETIS000 34,234,000

Cémmitments And contingsheies (Notes 4.and §) . PR ST
: ar valu}; §Q§)&0 000 shales authorlzed and no s!mres 1ssued o - —

" Comimon stock, $.01 par vahue, 5,000,000 shares authonzed ISOS 053 shares sstied, mcludmg 424 307 rrﬂas S e T e T e

* shires, st SeptemberBO 20158nd 2014 - SR STl no LIS T o e T T 4,000
_Additional paid- in capital ] 7} 755 000 1755000

. Retained earnings - RIS 59 TIT000 -~ <= - 58,300,000
Acutmuldted other comprchenswe ingome 67,720,000 76,301,000

iTotal sharelolders’ equity - e RS 128 00,000 T 1363710000
3 228196000 3 243,877,000

See accompanying Notes o Consolidated Financial Statements
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DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

1015 2014 2013

RGN
43,423,000

25 262,000

l28l000

5 516 DUU.
B,121:500.
45 613,000

= Infetes expense o miprn Joans :
Inrerest and penalty GXpEnse accrued for uncenam and unreuogmzed tax benetzts

(376,000)

[EFOIIG T3 R CHALgp T 1,569,000:
1,120,000 490,000 (750,000}

T - T EAL000 8 R TI0 000
1,380,746

1,380,746 1,380,746
046§ AT

G 0S0ERS.

Comprehensive (iﬁ‘ss)_lnc:iihé"—

Neti fncome 810000 ¥

G100 5 78000

23393000 7. L. 232920000

" yespeetively 1 (8,811,000)
Reelassification 1dj1astmcnt of uther—than-tempurury |mpalrmcnt 1osscs recogmzed innet
income (net of taxes of $146,000, 30 and $668,000, res peclively) 230,000 — 1,031,000

. Sity R i e : . . ::__ - 7 S e - - '(7,771,{]00)}‘$ iy = 23:024‘000 4 $ - '_=_f:=:,_';-26,'122.0(}0
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DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OT SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Accumulated
Additional Other Total
Common Stock Treasury Stock Paid-in Retained Comprehensive  Shareholders'
Share Amount Share Amount Capital Earnings Ingome Equity
Balanco af September 30, 201277 - 1,805,083 .78 OO0 § T Ss000" 8T SaeeT,0007 F 31565000 1§ TET A5

Net income . - L - LT 7.,3;7799090.
: alized gum on; .- 2 : Tt

nvesiments, et

Reclassification adjustment of
other-than-temporary
impairment losses
recognized in net income

- - 1,051,000 1,051,000
Lt T E 53908000 - LIB3AT000
621000

1,305,053

Unrealized Iuss::s on
[nvestments, net

b Reclﬂsstﬁcatlon udjustment of

thcr-than—tempurary -

b .(net,ofta‘{es)‘_--‘ e S . e R e B
Balance at September 30, 2015 1805053 % 18,000 424307y § 4,000y § 1755000 § 58,111,000 3

770000 § 128500000

See accampanying Nofes to Conseliduted Financia) Statements
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DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash Nows from épefating nctivities -
Nei lncome .

2015 2014 2013

(1 283000)
@.000)
375000

Prepaid experises aind oiier assas
Income lax receivable

Treforred Bbseriphion
- Deferled installation contracts

7 Asquisitien o TS Teehnologi

Acquisition of The Daily ‘I'anseri 1 i

= Pureliases of propecty, plant snd Equiprion LA 5L (AAE00Y
Net cash usexl for lnvestmg activities (7,543,{)00) {435,000)

] (24 £12 000)_'

— WATI0C

Ihcr;:ase iﬁcash a:{d cash souivalents o . '_ 207000 ) 4,072,000 ' 1-0,353,006_

Caqh and cash equlvalcn!s )

i Beginning ¢fyear - 1985000

154100005 - 11,338000°

End of year 15617000 § 15410000 § 11,338,000
Tnterest paid during year 5 o400 5 wop0 3§ 97000

Income taes {refunded) paid during year - e I - (959,000) - §.- i T 280007 §o 0 o 1,354,000

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1, THE COMPANY AND OPERATIONS

Daily Jowrnal Corporation (the “Company"} publishes ncwspapérs and web sites covering California and Arizons, and preduges several speclalized inforination
services, It olso serves as a newspaper representative specfalizing in pubtic notice advertising.

Journal Techalogies, Inc. (“Journal Technologies™) it the result of the October 1, 2014 merer of the Company s three technology-related subsidiaries, which
were previously separate companies; Sustain Technologles, Inc. (“Sustain™), a wholly owned subsidlary since 2008, New Dawn Technologies, Tne, ("New Dwwn™),
acquired in December 2012; and ISD Technologies, Inc. ("ISD*"Y, acquired [n September 2033, The merger was coneluded in accordance with ASC 805-50-13, Business
Comblnations — Transactions Benveen Entities Under Commen Control, Since pushdown accounting had been applied at the tims of acquisitions, afl assets and
labilities of Sustain and 1SD were integrated into Journal Technologies at their carrying book values.

Journal Technslogies supplies case management software systems and related products to courts, prosecutor and public defendsr offiges, probation departments
and other justice agencies, including administrative law organizatians, city and counly governmenis and bar associations. These organizalions use the Journal
Technalogies Family of products to help manage cases and information electronically, to interface with other critical justice partners and ta extend electronie services to
bar members and the publie, including a website to pay traffic citations online, Thess products are licensed lo mors than 500 organizations in 41 states and
inteznationally.

Essentially all of the Company’s operations are based in California, Arizona and Utah.
2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Pressmation; The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and Journal Technologies, All intercompany aceoun(s and
transactions have been eliminated in consclidation.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year financial statement presentation.

Concentrations of Credit Risk: The Company extends unsecured eredit lo most of its advertising customers, The Company recognizes that extending credii and
selling apprapriate reserves for receivables is largely a subjective degision based on knowledge of the customer and the industry, Credit exposure also includes the
amount of estimated mnbilled sales. Credit limits, setting and maintaining credit standards, and managing the overall quality of the credif portfolio is targely centrilized,
The level of credit ia influenced by the customer's oredit and payment history which the Company meniters when establishing a reserve.

The Company maintains the reserve account for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers to make required payments. If the financial

conditions of its custommers wers to deferiorate or its judgments about their abililies to pay are incorrect, additional allownnees might be required and i1s resulls of
operations could be materially affected.
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Cash equivalents: The Company considers all highly liquid investments with insignificant risk of changs in value within thiee months fo be cash gquivalents.

Fair Valve of Financial tastrrnents: The carrying amounts of cash, accounls receivable and accounts payable approximate Fair value because of their short
maturities. In addition, the Company has investments in markefable securities, all categorized as “available-for-sale” and staled at fair market value, with the unrealized
gains and losses, nel of taxes, reported in “Accumulated other comprehensive income” (AOCT) in the accompanying consofidated balance sheets, 'The unrealized
gains and losses included in AOCI represent changes in the fair value of the investments dus to changes in both foreign curmency exchange rates and markel prices,
The Commpany uses quoted prices in active tarkets for identical assels (consistent with the Level | definition in the fair value hisrarchy) to measure the fair value of ils
investments on a recurring basis pursuant to Accounting Standards Cedifieation (“ASC”) Topic 320, Fair Vaine Measurement aud Disclostres, At September 30, 2015,
the aggregate Fair market value of the Company’s marketable securities was §166,041,000. These investments had approximately $§ 11,498,000 of unrealized gains before
taxes of $43,278,000. Most of the unrealized gains were in the common stocks of three U.3. financial inst{tutions. The bonds have o maturity date in 2039 and are
classified as “Current assets” becavse they are available for sale. At Scptember 30, 2014, the Company had marketable securilies at fair market valuo of approximately
$173,676,000, including approximately $123,700,000 of unrealized gains before taxes of $48,896,000.

Investrent in Finanefa! Instruments

September 30, 2015 Sepfember 30, 2014
Aggregale Amorttized/Adjusted Pretax Aggregate Amortized/Adjusted Pretax
fair value cost basis unrealized gains fair value cost basis unrealized gains

158705000 0604000 5 IDI0L00 S 16574000 § 43042000 §
Pl A ] 989,000 < 4 2,397,600 1,942,000 4,934,000
$ 166041000 $ 54543000 3 111493000 § 173676000 % 47,976,000

3,608,000
125,700,000

The Company performed sepazate evaluations for impaired equity securities quarlerly to determing if the unrealized tusses were other-than-temporary. This
evaluation considerad a number of factors including, bul net limited to, ths length of time and extent to which the fair value had been less than cost, the finaneial
condition and near ferm prospeats of the issuer and the Company’s ability and intent to hold the securitics until fair value recovers. The assessment of the ability and
intent to hold these sectrities ta recovery foouses on liquidity needs, assei/liability management and portfolio objectives. As of September 30, 2015, the Company
concluded that the unrealized losses related to the marketable sccurities of one issuer were other-than-temporary and thus recorded impairment losses of $376,000
{$230,000 net of taxes). U.S, GAAP requires that the Company recoghize other-than-temporary impairment Josses in earnings rather than in accumutated comprehiensive
income when the security prices remain belaw cost for a perlod of lime that may be doemed excessive even in {natances where the Company possesses the ability and
intent to hold the security. However, the recording of these impairment losses does not necessarily indicate that the loss in value of these securities is permanent. In
fiscal 2014, there were no unvealized losses refated to the markelable securities.
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Aequisitfons: T December 2012, the Company purchased all of the outstanding stock of New Dawn for $14,000,000 in cash. The results of operations of New Dawn
from December 5, 2012 through September 33, 2013 were includsd in the Company’s Consalidated Financial Statemnents for fiscal 2013: revenues were $10,403,000,
expenses were $10,625,000 (including intangible amortization expenses of $1,587,000), and its prelax boss was $222,000. On September §3, 2013, the Company acquired
substantially all of the operating assets and liabilities of ISD Corporation for about $16,000,000 in cash. The results of operations of [SD for the month of September
2013 were also included in the Company's Consolidaled Financial Siatements for Fiscal 2013: revenues were $784.000, expenses were $694,000 {including intangible
amortization expenses of $278,000), and its pretax income was $90,00¢. Both acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase method of aceounting in accordance
with ASC 805, Business Combinatians. The Company incurred legal and tax feeg of approximaiely $96,000 for the New Dawn acquisition and approximately $202,000 for
the 1SD acquisition during fiscal 20¢3. These costs were included in “Other general and administrative expenses” on the Company’s consolidated Siatemants of
Comprehensive Income (Loss) in fiscal 2013, The Company acquired New Dawn and 13D to expand its case managsmenl saftware business and to broaden its
customer base in key markets,

On July 25, 2014, the Company fnalized its valuation of ISD, which resulted In an allocatien of §1,700,000 to goodwill and 2 reduction of the same amont in its
intangible assets. The Company allocated the ISD purchase price {o tangible assets {34,410,000 inchucling cash of 32,546,000; accounts receivable of $1,636,000; fixed
assets of $141,000; and prepaid assets of $87,000), identifiable intangible assets (purchased software and customer relationships of $14,975,000 pursuant to the results
of a third party valuation) and liabilities (§3,112,000 including accounts payuble and acerued expenses of $2,270,000 and deferred maintenance agreements of
$2,842,000) based on their fair values with the remaining balance in exvess of the net assets allocated to goedwill ($1,700,000).

Deferred revenues on installation contracts primarily represent the fair value of advances from customers of fournal Technologies for software licenses and
installation services. After a customer’s acceptance of the completed project, the advances are generally no longer at tisk of refund and are therefore considered
earned. Deferred revenues on maintenance contracts represent prepayments of annual license and maintenance fees.

The Company has determined that it is impracticable to provide supplemental pro ferima information regarding the revenues and earnings of New Dawn and I8D
as if the acquisitions had ooeurred on October |, 2011 because neither New Dawn not 1SD previously maintained its books en an acerual basis in accordance with
GAAP, and New Dawn's and 1SD's owners further operated cach of the entities as an § corporation. As & vesult, the Company is unable to produse meaningful pro
forma numbers through the use of reasonatle efforts. Had the aequisitions pecurred on October §, 2011, the Company would have recorded additional interest
expenses of $133,000 in 2013, ralated to the margin ageount borrowings meurred (o fund the acquisitions, and would have recarded additional intangible amortization
of $3,370,000 in 2043,
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Intangible Assefs: Al September 30, 2015 and 2014, intangible assets were composed of (i) cusinmer relationships of $11,698,000 and $15,946,000 (net of the
secumulated amortizalion expenses of $10,406,000 and $5,004,000), respectively, and (i1) developed technology of $1,292,000 and $1,798,000 {net of accumulated
amortization expenses of $1,233,000 and $727,000), respestively. These intangible asses are being amertized over five years or less based on their estimated useful
lives. Future annual inlangible amoriization costs are estimated to be approximately $5,037,000 for fiscal 2016, $54,895,000 for fisonl 2017 and $3,058,000 for fiscal 2015
and none [hereafter. Intangible amortization expense was $4,907,000, $4,866,000 and $1,865,000 for Fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Intanglible Assets
September 30, 2015 September 30, 2014
Customer Developed Cuslomer Develeped
Relationships Technology Total Relationships Technology Total

00 %8 S BRI T T 21,950,000 7§ 3000+ T8 10 475,000
00) (116390003 (6,004,000) {727,000y (6,731,000
12990000 8 115946000 § 798,000 % 17,144,000 5

29200072

T1.608,000 ¢

Goodwill; The Company accounts for geodwill in accordance with ASC 350, Infangibles — Goodwill and Other. Goodwill is not amortized for financial
statement purposes but evaluated for impairment annually, or whenever events or changes in circwnstances indicate that the value may not be recoverable. The
goodwill amount reported in the consclidated balance sheets relates only to Journal Technologies. The Company performed qualitative assessments for Journal
Technologies and determined there were no substantive changes during the current year and no indication of impairment. In making this assessment, the Company
only considered Journal Technologies® assets and their revenus generating abilities as required by ASC 350, Goodwill represents the expeoted synergies in expanding
the Company’s software business. Considered factors for potential goodwill impairment evaluation for the reporting units inchude the current year’s business
profitability before intangible amartization, fluctuations of revenues, changes in the market place, the status of installation contracts and new business, among other
things. As of Septernber 30, 2015 and 2¢14, there was goodwilt of $13,400,000.

Prepaid and Orher Assets: Inoluded in other assels are in-progress installation service costs for projects from the aequisition for which revences have not yet
heen recognized and are deferred,

TInvesories; [nventories, comprised of newsprint and paper, are stated at cost, on 4 first-in, first-out basis, which does not exceed current market value.

Property, plant and equipment: Propetty, plant and equipment are cactiod on the basis of cost or faic value for assets acquired in business combinations,
Depreciation of assets is provided in amounts sufficient to depreciate the cost of related assets aver their estimated useful lives ranging from 3 — 39 years, Al
September 30, 2015, the estimated useful lives were (3} 5— 39 years for building and improvements, {ii} 3— 5 yeass for fumniture, office equipment and softwars, and (iii) 3
~ 10 years for machinery and equipment. Leasehald improvements are amartizad over the term of the rekated lenses or the useful life of the assets, whichever is shorter.
Assels are depreciated using the stralght-line method for financial statements and aceelerated mathod for tax purposes. Depreciation and amortization expenses were
$624,000, $650,000 and $576,000 for fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively,

Significant expenditures which extend the useful lives of existing assels are sapitalized. Maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred. Gains or losses on
dispositions of assets are reflected in current earnings,
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assets: The Company evaluates long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in eirsumstances indicate that the
carrying volue of an asset may not be recoverable. There were no such impairments identified during fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013,

Journal Technologies' Saftware Development Costs: Development costs related fo software products developed for sale or llcensing are expensed as ingurred
until the techaological feasibility of the product has been established. Thereafter, untit the praduct is released for sale, software development costs are capitaifzed and
reported at the lower of unamortized cost or net realizable vaiue of the related produst. ‘The establishment of technological feasibility and the ongoing assessment of
recaverability of costs require considerable judgment by the Company with respect ta certain internal and external factors, including, but not Jimited to, anticipated
Future product revenus, estimated econamic life and changes in hardware and software techaology,

The Company believes its prosess for developing software is essentially sompleted concurrent with the establishment of technological feasibility, and
accordingly, no software development costs have been oapi talized to date.

Revenue Recognition: For the Traditional Business, proceeds from the sale of subscriptions for newspapers, court rule books and other publications and other
services ara recorded as deferred revenue and are inciuded in samed revenue only when fiie services are provided, generally over the subseription ferm, Advertising
revenues are recognized when advertisements are published and are net of commissions. The change in allowance for doubtful accounts is as follows.

Additions Accounts
Batamee at Charged to Charged Balance
Beginniug Costs and off Tess at End
Deseription ol Year Expenses Recoveries of Year
10135 R e S EEC
Allowance for doubtfsl acoounts 250000 3 61,000 § (61,0000 §
16147 ; B Sl b e
Allowance for doubiful accounts 41,000 % 41,000 $ 250,000

P1) | SRR RS
Allowance for doubtful negounts

T 200000 (44000 (94,000) § 50,000

Journal Technologies recognizes revenues in accordance with the provisions of ASC 983-605, Seftware—Revertie Recognifion and ASC 605-35 Consfruciion-
Type and Produetion-Type Contracis. Revenues from aonual licenss and mainterance contracts generally call for the Company to provide soffware updates and
upgrades to customers and are recognized satably over the maintenance period. Consulling and other services are recognized upon aceeptance by the cusiomers
under the completed contract method. The Company elects to use the completed contract method because each customer’s acceplance {5 unprodictable and reliable
estimates of the progress towards completion cannot be made. Cnly after a customer’s acceptance of 2 comnpleted project are cuslomer advances gencraily no longer al
risk of refund and are therefore considered earned.

Other public service fees, as disclosed in the sonsalidated statetnents of comprehensive income (loss), are primarily service fees earned and recognized as
revenues af the time the Company processes esedit card payments on behaif af the courts via its ePaylt secure websites through which the general public uses can
pay fraffic citatiens and obtain traffie school information,
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Approximately 57%, 53% and 37% of the Company s revenues in fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, were derived from sales and leases of software licensss,
annal maintenance agreements and consulting services thal typically include implementaticn and training,

The Company has established Vendor Specific Objective Evidence (VSOE) of fair value of the annual maintenance because a substantiat majority of the Journal
Technologies’ actual maintenance renewals is within a narrow range of pricing as a percentage of the underlying license fees for the legacy contracts and is deemed
substantive.

Management Incentive Plan: In Fiscal 1987, the Company implemented 4 Management Ingentive Plan {the “Incentive Plan”) that entitles a participant to
participate in pretax camings before adjustment for certain items of tha Company. Tn 2003, the Company modified the Incentive Plan to provide participants with three
gifferent types of non-negotiable incentivo sertificates based on the nature of the particutar participants’ responsibilities. Each certificate entitles the parlicipant to a
specified share of the applicable pretax earnings in the year of grant and to receive the szme percentage of prefax earnings to be generated in each of the next nine
years provided they remain with the Company or are in retirement after working for the Coempany to age 65. If a participani dies while any of his or her certificales
remain outstanding, future payments under thoss certificates will be made to the deceased participant’s beneficiaries.

Tn fisced 2015, after combining Sustain, New Dawn and 15D info cne company, the Company converted each existing Sustain Non-negotiable Incentive Certificate
along with its supplemental Addendum to a new “Journal Teohnalogies Non-negetiable Incentive Certificate” coupled with a similar supplemental Addendum which
defines how the value of the Journal Tschnofogies Certifieate will be paid upon a triggering event such as a gale of Journal Technologies or an initial public offering,
Hmiployses and consuitants of Journal Technologies are eligible o participate in these “Fournal Technologles Certificates”. Payouts under the Journal Teehnelogles
Certificates are caleulated based on the prefax income of Journal Technologies before supplementa! compensation expenses, workers® compensation expenses,
intangibie amortizations and goodwill impairinent. Also effoetive fiseal 2015, the valoulation of payewts under the Daily Journa! Non-Consotidated Certificates is based
on the pretax earnings of the traditional publishing business before supplemental compessation expenses, workers' compensation expenses, financing costs of the
nai-traditional business activities and any write-downs of unrcalized losses on invesiments. The calewlation of payouts under the Daily Journal Consolidated
Certificate remains unchanged. For any certificate held by an employes who has already met retirement eligibitity ot age 63, all future commitments are oxpensed
immediately, For any certificate held by an employes whe s expested to become retirement eligible during the 10 year period of the certificate, the Company recoghizes
the future commitinents at each fiscal year-end over the perfod from the grant date through retirement eligibility,

Certificate interests entitled purticipants to receive 4,13%, 3.85% and 2.66% {amounting to $198,915, $265,490 and $351,120, respectively) of Daily Journal non-
consolidated income bafore taxes, workers’ componsation, supplemental compensation and eartain other items, 7.07% (amounting (o $10,600 for fiscal 2015) for Journal
Techaologies and §.2%, 8.2% and 8.2% (amounting to 50, $0 and $24 1,240, respectively? for Daily Journal consolidated in fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013. The Company
acerued $47,000 and $780,000 as of September 30, 2015 and 2014, respeclively, for the Plan’s future corwmitment for these who will still have Certificates at the age of 85,
This future commitment included a decrease in fiscal 2015 of $733,000 or 8,53 per outslanding share on a pretax basis and a decrease in fiscal 2014 of $840,000 or $.61
per outstanding share on a pretax basis due (o reduced estimated future protax income. The estimated Incentive Plan’s fufure commitment is calculated using Level 3
inputs, as defined in the fair value hierarchy, based on ap average of the past year and the current year pretax eurnings before certain items, discounted to the present
value at 6% since each granted Unit will expire over its remaining life term of up to 10 years.
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Tncome taves: The Company accounls for Income taxes using an asset and lability appoach which requires the recognition of deferred tax liabilitfes and assets
for the expected future consequences of lemporary differences belween the carrying amownts for financial reporting purposes and the tax basis of the assets and
liabilities. The Company accounts for uncertainty in income faxes under ASC 74010 whick prescribes a recognition thresheld and measurement melhodology to
recognize and measure an income tax position taken, or expected fo be taken, in & tax return. The evaluation of 4 tax position is based on a two-step approach, The first
step requires an entity to evaluate whether the tax position would “more likely than not” be sustained upon examination by the appropriate taxing authority, The
secand step requires the lax position be measured at the largest amount of lax benefit thal is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate sattlement. In
addition, previously recognized benefits from tax positions that no longer tneet the new criterla would be derecognized. The Company records liabilities related to
unceriain tax positions in aceordance with ASC 740, Tax Provisions. At September 30, 2015, the Company acersied un approximately $2,991,000 tax liability for unceriain
aird unrecognized fax benefits relative to an acquisition in (iscal 2013. At September 30, 2014, tere were unrecognized tax benefits of $3,244,000.

Nel income per common skare: The net fncame per conunon share is based on the weighiéd average number of shares outstanding during each year, The shares
used in the caleulation were 1,380,746 for fiseal 2015, 2014 and 2013. The Company do¢s not have any commeon stock equivalents, and therefore basic and diluted net
income per share is the same,

Use of Estimates: The presentation of the Company's financial statemsnis in confonmity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts ol assets and labilities and diselosure of confingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and sxpenses during the reporting period. The long-term Incentive Plan accrual is calculated
using Level 3 inputs, as defined in the fale valug hierarchy, based on an average of the past year's and the cusrent year’s prelax earnings, discounted to the present
value af 6% sinoe each pranted Unit will expire over its remaining life term of up to {0 years. Additicnally, the purchase price allocations for New Dawn and 18D wers
based on estimates of Fair value at the respective acquisition dates, using Level 3 measurement inputs under the fair value measurement hierarchy. Actual reslls could
differ from these ostimates.

Acconnting Standards Adopied in 2013, In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Codification
(“ASU™ MNo. 2013-02, Reporting of Amotmts Reclassified ant of Accrmlated Other Comprehensive fncome, requiring entities to disclose additional information with
respect Lo changes in accumulated ather comprehensive incoma (AOCT) balances by componerd and significant items reclassified out of AOCI This ASU was
effeclive beginning October |, 2013 for the Company, and the adoption has no impact on the Company’s consolidated results of aperations or financial posilions
because it only represents a change 1o the presentation and disclosure requirements.
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New Acconnting Propouncemenis: In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-08, Presentation of Financial Siatements (Topie 205) and Properiy, Plan! and
Feuipment (Topic 360}, Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Dispasals af Componenis of an Entiiy, This update changes {he requirements for
reporting discontinued operations. A disposal of a component of an entity or a group of semponents of an entity is required to be reported in the discontinued
operations if the disposal represents 4 strategic shift that has {or will have) a major effzct on an entity's operations and financial resalts, Further, this update expands
the disclosures about an entity’s significant continuing invelvement with a discontinued eperation, The standard is required fo be adopted for annual periods
beginning on or after December 13, 2014, including interim periods within that annwal pericd, which is aur fiscal year 2016, An entity should not apply the antendments
in this update to 3 component of an entity, or a business or nonprefit aotivity, that is classified as held for sale befors the effective date even il the component of an
entity, or business or nonprofit activity, is disposed of alter the effeclive date. Early adoption is permitted, but only for disposals {or classifications as held for sale)
that have not been repotted in financial statements previously issued or available for [ssuance, We have not yet evatuated what impact, if any, the adoption of this
guidance taay have on our finanpial condition, rosults of operations or disclosures.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenie frow Contracts with Custonters (Topic 606}, This update clarifies the principles for revenus
recognition in transactions involving contracts with custemers. The new revenue recognition gnidance provides a five-step analysis to determine when and how
revenus is recopnized, The new guidance will require revenue recognition to depict the transfer of promised goods or services fo a customer in an amounl that reflects
the consideration a company expects to receive In exchange for thase goods o services,

In Aupust 2015, the PASB {sstied ASU No. 2015-14, Reventie Sirom Contracts seith Customers (Topie 606); Deferral of Effective Date, This update defers the
mandatory effective date of fts revenue recognition standard by one year. The standard is required to be adopted for annual periods beginning after December 13,
2017, including inferim periods within that annual period, which is our fison! year 2019, Early application is permitted for annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2016, and interim periods within that annual period, which is our fiscal year 2018, We have not yel evaluated what impact, if any, the adoptian of this
guidance may have on our financial condition, rosuits of operations or disclosures.

Tn September 2015, the FASB issued ASU No, 2015-16, Business Combinations (Tople 805); Simplifiing the Accounting for Measurement-Perlod A dijustintents.
This update eliminates the requirement for an acquirer in a business combination fo account for measuremeni-period adjustments retrospectively. Under the existing
business combination standard, s acquirer reports provisional amounts with respect fo acquired assets and linbilities when their measurements are incomplefe as of
the end of the reporting period. Prior to this update, an acquirer is required to adjust provisional amounts and the related impact on earnings by restating prior period
financial statements during the measurement period which eannot exceed one year from the date of acquisition, The new guidance requires that the cumulative jmpact
of a measurement-period adjustment, including the impact on prior pericds, be recognized in the reporting petiod in which the adjusiment is identified eliminating the
reqerdrement to restate prior period finanoial statements. The new standard requires disclosure of the nature and ameunt of measuremeni-period adjustments as well as
information with respeat to the portion of the adjustments recorded in current-period eamings that would have been recorded in previous reporting periads if the
adjustments to provisional amounts had been recognized as of the acquisition date. The standard is required to be adopted for nnnual periods beginning after
December 15, 2015, inchuding interim periods within that ansual period, which is our fiscal year 2017, The amendment is to be applied prospectively to ncasursment-
period adjustments that occur after the effective date with earifer adoption permitted. We have not yot svaluated what impact, if any, the adoption of this guidance may
have on aur financial condition, results of operations or disclosures.
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Tn November 2015, the FASB issued ASU No, 2015-17, Incone Texes (Taple 740: Balance Sheel Classification of Deferred Taxes, This update requires deferred
{ax liabilities and assets to be classified as nencurrent in the consolidated balance sheet. The standard is required to be adopted for annual periods beginning aftet
December 15, 2016, including interim periods within that annuat periad, which is our fiscal year 2618, The amendment may be applicd either prospeotively to all deferred
tax liabilitics and assets or retrospectively to all perleds presented. We have not yet evaluated what impact, if any, the adaption of this guidance may have on our
financial condition, resufts of operations or disclosures.

No other new accounting pronouncement lssued or effective has had, ot is expected to have, a material impacl on the Company's consolidated financial
staleinents.
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3, INCOME TAXES

The {benefit from) provision for income taxes consists of (he following:

2015 2014 2013

Curren
{.del’al
< State”.”

i Udo '

Deferreds's 2.7 2o o
Federal (l 053000)
CState o 5 . (254000) -

(1,30? 000)

(1,120,000

2015 2014 2013

Bhaié enteiprisezhne
Buslness meals/gifts
Doinestie pmductmn Activily Ueduotias
Dividends received deduction

Péniifies fof uriveriain and narecognized tai benefits : AL e
Prior year lue-up

Forelgn taxcredits

Effect of state rate change on beginning balance —

Ofhers = o3 : TR L 3 , k)] .
Lffectwe tax rate ) 360 9% (3471.5)% 17.3%

At Septomber 30, 2015, the Corpany’s deferred income tax assets and linbilities weore comprised of the following:

2015 ) 2004

ion pay accrual

" Bad deh-t reserves not yet deduchblc _
Deprecnﬂtlou and amortlzahon UL
Dgfermd revenu

Lo
-869 odo FR
7,554,000 5 370 000 3,336 ggo

'l otal deferred tax assels

Deferred Lax hub:i e attribu

"Unrealized galns bn investments . v CEE a3 278,000 ! ¥ (34,610,000)-

Goadwill ] ] {896,000) (495 UOO) -

" “Total deferved tax Lisbilifios. . < 5 T e T e (A IT4000) T {49.391,000) 5 T (34610,000)
Net deferred income taxes 8 (36,620,600} $ (43,521,000} $ (31,274,000}

50




The Company recorded an Income tax benefit of §1,120,000 on pretax loss of $310,000 in fiscal 20§5. The effective tax rate was Jower than the stalutery rate
primarily due to the dividends received deduction, the domestic production activity deduction and a discrete benefit of approximatety $400,000 reiated ta the California
Enterprise Zone hiring credits which resulfed from the Company’s filing amended Catifornia tax returns for fiscal 2010 through fiscal 2013, A benefit of this tax credit
was recognized in the fiscal 2014 amended tax returmn. On pretax income of $141,000 for fiseal 2014, the Company recorded a tax benefit of $490,000. The Company's
effective tax rate wis 361% and «348% for fiscal 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Al September 30, 2015, the Company had an aceried Hability of approximately 32,991,800 for wncertain and unrecognized tax benefits relating to an acquisition in
fiscal 2013, after & reduction of $253,000 resulting fror the recognilion of deferred reventes and from the amortization of goadwill for iax purposes, The Company does
not anticipate a significant [ncrease or decrease in this liability ins the next tweive months. If recognized, it is expeoted thut these unrecognized tax benefits would not
have a significant impact on the Company s effective fax rate, Al September 30, 2014, the Company evaluated a {ax position taken on its prior yesr fax return
and determined that the pesition did not mest the more likely than not eriteria because that position taken was in contrary to the one accoupted for in purchase
accounting. The Company thus acerued a liability of appraximately $3,244,000 for unceriain and unrecognized tax benefits at September 30, 2014, There was no such an
acerual in fiscaf 2013,

During fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013, interest expense of approximately $56,000, $537,000 and $0, respectively, was recorded as “interest and penalty expense accrued
for uncertain and unrecognized tax benefits” in the consolidated statements of omprehensive income (loss). The Company files federal income tax refurns in the
United States and with various state jurisdictions and is no longer subject to examinations for fisoa! years before fiscal 2012 with regard to federal income taxes and
fiscal 2011 far state income taxes,

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance for liabilities pssociated with these uncertain and unrecognized tax benefiis is as fotlows:

Uncertain Tax Liabili
2005 2014 2013

Beginning balanc S
Added liability for the prier year

=2, Added liability. for the ourrent year. '
Tax payment upon setffement
‘Rediced liability For the Gurrent yoar ~ 17 LT L Uk T T R e T Ty

Emding balance s 2,991,000 § 1244000 $ -

4, DEBTS AND COMMITMENTS

Tn December 2012, the Company borrowed from its investment margin accountf the purchase price of $14 million for the New Dawn acquisition, and in September
2013, it borrowed another $15.5 millior for the [SD acquisition, in cach case pledging its marketable seeurities as collateral. The interest rale for these investment margin
account borrowings Buctuates based on the Federal Funds Rate plus 50 basis points with interest only payable monthly. The interest rate as of Soptember 3¢, 2015 was
0.75%, and there has been no [uctation in the interest rate since December 2012, These investment margin account borrewings do net matuse.
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The Company owns its facililies in Los Angeles and ieases space for iissther olfices under operating leases which expire af various dates through fiscal 2020,
During fisoal 2014, the Company renewsd its office lease for {ts San Francico office For five years fo end on Octeber 31, 2019 with currently a monthly rent of
apyroximately $22,000 for about 6,200 square fesl, The Logan, Ulah offics opewting lease entered inte in December 2012 in cohnection with the New Dawn acquisition
required a monthly rent of $42,000 for about 30,200 square feet and expired in December 2015, {The Company purchased this Logan building in November 2015 prier to
the expiration of the lease.) Part of this office space is sub-leased to third parties under short-term leases for approximately $5,000 per month. Journal Technologies
leases about 7,100 square feet of office space, expiring in March 2017, in Corous, California, for a monthly rent of about $12,000, The Company is responsible for
partion of maintenance, insurance and property fax expenses relating to these ieased properties and certain other leased properties. Rental expenses for fiscal years
2015, 2014 and 2013 were $1,171,000, §1,182,000 and $884,000, respectively.

The following table represents the Company’s future obligations:

Paytnents due by Fiscal Year

a2k
and after Tatal
Obligalions Uhdef opordting leases: ‘ 37,000
32,000 47,000

Long-term accrued liabilities*

000 8 25,000 7§ T 32,000 8 LIA0N

* The long-term accrued liabilitics are discounted Lo the present value using a discount rale of 6%.

5 CONTINGENCIES

From time to time, the Company is subject to litigation arising in the normal course of its business, While it is not possible to predict the results of such litigation,
management does not helieve the uitimate outsome of these mattors will have a malerial effect an the Company’s financial position or results of opsrations or cash

flows.
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6. REPORTABLE SEGNMENTS

Operating segments are defined as compenents of an enlerprise which has discrete financisl information that is evaluated regularly by the Camnpany's Chief
Exacutive Officer (o decide how to allocale resources and to access performance.

In accordance with ASC 280-10, Segment Reporting, the Compeny has fwo segments of business. The Company's reporiable segments are: (1) the Traditiona!
Business and (ii} Journal Technologies. Journal Techaologiss is an aggregation of three technology operating segments — Sustain, New Dawn and [8D. Al inter-
segment fransactions were eliminated, The Company reclnssified certaln prior years® figures to altacale the amounts velated to the Company's Gorparate function and
the related tax effects Lo Corporate from its other segments to conform to the presentation requirenents of ASC 280. Summarized financial information conceming the

Company’s reportable segments {s shown in (he following table:

Reportable Segments

Corporate
Tradilfsnal Journat income
Business Technologies and expenses Tatal

{ ng,n
Circulation

13,984,000
" 4,704,000
170,000 —
0,452,000
(4,594,000)

6
9

Income {loss) [rom operations

idendy and inferest income’
Other income and capital gal
- Initerest expense o iy

713,820,000
o
* 000y,

{234,000y,

i

Pretax income (loss)
.+ [ncome tax benefit .7
Net income (logs)
Tolgl nssets L
Capital expenditures

__Tnterest expense accrued for uncertain and unrecognized faxt ben
I T Otherhan-tefporary impairmént fosses o investments

140000

e "(376;‘0{)'—0) S

" 166,041,000

_(96,000)
(376,000}
{310,000}

3,208,000

80,000y A, 20,0005

2,908,000

- Bos,000 T

K migrlization of intangible assets -

Reportable Segments

Corparate
Traditional Fournal income
Business Technologics and cxpenses Total

1 A3E000 7
5,038,060
-7 2,800,000:

CURASEN0TETE T S
6038000 _ .
800,000 77T Ty S

i fees and other

___lfi._c#n.st;x"glm]cl_maimcga{ncc fees e I&Z,QST.OGD . o 12,987,000
~"Consulting fees™ " -0 7 FL L 002,000 T s = 1 40020007
Other public service fees 6,161,000 ) m 6161600

284500000 T T TRl

" Operating Sxpenses - o L " 17150007
3119

Income {loss) from operations (5,309,00G) —_—
v ¥ Dividends dind jnferést income = - 1 : R 3001000
Other income and capital gains - — 97,000
L nterdit oxpenses - St SR e @uit
(537,000} -

_ Interest expense acorued for uncertain and uirecognized tn

P wis (oY -7 “3ilodon. - - (5RB000) . . 2:86B,00

Income tax benefis A {1,460,000) 2350000 (400,000) 99,000
et mgdpe (s T RS ST GANSHONT T - RAGRI. LT B0
Tofal assets , 18228000 USLOTI000 73676000
T Capital sxpéadioores ¢ L2 ST T 0000, - AT e aas000) ST =
Amorlization of intangible assets - 4,366,600 -
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Reportable Segments

Corporate
Traditional Journal Iheome
Bustness Technologies* and expenses Total

Flsial g013%

_Revenues

 dveriising se ice Foes.and, other
_ Licensing and matntenance fees

9,942,000

VY Consniting Tees =7 3,406,000
Other public service fees 498,000
; 718,031,080,
(4,185,000)

“Ditidends and interés _
Other income and capital gaing
2 i Tnvarest expéiiss 2

Other-than-temporary impainuent losses on.
Pretax incotne (105 ;

280000
- 1,865,000

v Capital expondil
Amortization of intangible assels

* Includes (i) New Dawn's financial results from December 5, 2012 through Septeimber 30, 2013 with revenues of §10,403,00¢ and expenses of $10,625,000 (inctuding
intangible amartization expenses af $1,587,0CC), and (i) 1SD’s September 2013 financial resubts with revenues of $784,000 and expenses of $694,000 (including
intangible amortization expenses of §278,500).

7, RESULTS OF OPERATIONS BY QUARTER (UNAUDITED)

Quarter ended
December 31 March 31 June 30 September 30
‘ ~ {in thousands excopt per share amounts

201877 -

[IE I
% T S

i
Income (loss) before taxes
" Benefifs fidm income taxes

Net inoome (loss)
~ Basicand diluted et

" Revennos
Costs and exponses .
Loss from opératlons 7 7
Other income, net o

- “Income (lnss) before taxés.
Benefit ftom (provision for)

. " Net-income (loss) 7m3
Basi¢ and diluted net income (loss) per share

* fncludes other-than-temporary impairment losses on investments of $376,000

L




8. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In November 2013, the Company purchased & 3¢,700 square foot offics building canstructed in 1998 on about 3.6 acres in Logan, Utah fhat had been previously
lensed for Journal Technologies, The Company paid $1.25 méllion and fnanced the balnce with a real estate bank loan of $2.26 million which bears a fixed interest rate
of 4.66% and is repayable in equa monthly installments of about $17,600 through 2030, This loan is seoured by ihe Logan Facility and oan be paid off at any time
withoul prepayment penalty.

Other than the real estate bank loan disciased abovs, the Company has completed an evaluation of all subsequent events through the issuance date of these
financial statements and coneluded that no additional subsequent events aceurred that required recognition in the financial siatements or disclosures in the Notes to
Censolidated Financial Statements.
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Ttem 9. Changes in and Disagreentents with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Not spplicable.

Item 9A, Conirols and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosuve Controls and Procedures

An gvalyation was performed under the supervisian and with the participation of the Compary’s management, incfuding Gerald L. Satzman, its Chisf Exscutive
Officer and Chief Financlal Offiver, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of September 30, 2015,
Based on that evaluation, management concluded that because of certain material weaknesses ia its infernal control over financial reporting, as further deseribed
below, the Company's disclosure cenirols and procedures were not effective as of September 30, 2815,

Management's Report on fnternal Control over Financial Reporting

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and mainfaining adequate inlemat conirol over financial reporting, as such terim is defined in Rule
134=15() under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, The Company’s internal control over financial reporting has been designed to pravide reasonable assurance
to the Company’s management and Board of Directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of the Company’s congolidated financial statements, All internal
controls, no matter how well designed, have inherent nsitations, and sometimes they oan have one of more material wenknesses, A material weakness is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiensics, in intsrnal contral ever financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstateinent of the company's
annual or interim consolidated financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Each year, management is required by SEC rules to evaluate the effectiveness of the Company’s internsl control over financial reporting, That evaluation is
conducted under the supervision and with the participaiion of Mr. Salzman, and is based on the framework in fniernal Control-integrated Framework (1992
framework) issued by the Committee o Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission ("COSO™). (COSO has recently issued an updated framework, and the
Company expects to use that new framework in its evaluations beginning next year.) If we {dentify any material weaknesses, the rules do not allow us to conctude that
our internal control over financial reporting Is effective.

As a small company, we have gight experienced employees in the accounting department and three In the [T department, Accordingly, we are not able to
segrogate duties to the extent we could if we had more people, and we have not sufficiently designed and documented controls that support an effective assessment
of our internal controls relating to the prevention of fraud and possible management override of controls, Our controller and the sssistant lo the controller post and
review certain Journal enfries sand also generate the system based finangial reports used in key management review controls. Additienally, the controller and the
assistant to the controlier and some departmant heads have administrative aceess to their depariments’ operating sysfems.

Although the Company has remedialed some of the issues associated with administrative aceess o specific systems, these steps, however, have not fully
cemediated the control issus, Hiring additional personnel to work in the acoounting and I'T depastinents would certainly help address some of these issues, but we do
not betiove it would be a wise use of sharehoiders’ maoney.

Alsa, we do not have sufficient in-house technical accounting experlise to review the quarterfy and annuat tax analysis and provision, assess the adequacy of
disclosures in our quarterly and annual consalidated financizl statements and assess and apply accounting standards that pertain to complex andfor non-routine
transactions. The lack in expertise to apply the accounting standards resulted in ¢ material audif adjustment in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2015. We continue to use
third party experts for these matters.
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Recognizing our defiviencies, we use mitigating controls, including a variety of internal procedures to check and double-check the areas whers one person is
respansible for multiple dutles, Among olher things, the Company's menitering activitios include monthly review and comparative analysis of financial, production
and public information with prior periods by the Company’s depariment supervisors, the CEOFCFO and the Board of Directors,

In addition, we belicve our most important [nternal control is our hiring and retention of honest and capable people, whom we frust to do their jobs well,
Accordingly, we believe our overall internal gontrol environment is sufficient For n company of our slze.

in the context of the COSO framewark, however, we believe that the above-mentioned deficiencies constitute material weaknesses as they relate to the prevention
of fraud and possible management override of controls, and therefore we must conclude that our internal control aver financial reporting was not effective a3 of

Seplember 30, 2015,
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Report of Tndependent Registered Public Accounting Flm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Daify Journal Corporatien

We have audited Daily Journal Corporation’s internal control over financial geporting as of September 30, 2015, based on criteria established in frternal Conirol —
Integrafed Framework (1992) issued by the Commitize of Sponsoring Orgasizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO eriteria). Daily Journal Corparation’s
rmanagement is responsible for maintaining affective internal control over financial reporting and for {15 assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting, inctuded in the accompanying Management's Report on internal Conlrel over Einancial Reperting. Our responsibility Is to express an oplnien on
the cotnapany’s internal control over financial reponting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in aceordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States). Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audi to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective tternal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audil
ineluded obtaining an understanding of internal control over Fnancial reposting, assessing the risk thal a materiat weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectivensss of internal contro! based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstanoss. We believe that our audit provides a reasonalle basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabllity of financiaf reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accerdance with generally accepted accounting principles. A gompany’s internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain fo the maintenance of recards that, in reasonable detail, acourately and fairly reflect the iransactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; {2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparatian of financial
stateinents in aceordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only {n accordance with
quthorizations of management and directors of the company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or fimely detection of ynautharized
acquisition, use, or disposilion of the company’s assets that could have a material effsct on the financial statements.

Because of ifs inherent limitations, internal coutrol ever financial reporting may aet prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evalvation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject i the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or {hat the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate,

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deticiencies, in internal control ever financial reporting, such that there is a rersonable possibility thal a
material misstatement of the company”s ammual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. We have concluded that there are the
following marerial weaknesses which the Company has identified and desoribed in managenent’s assessment:

The Company does not have suflicient technical expertise In nssessing and applying accounting standards to complex andfor non-routing fransactions, reviewing the

guarterly and antual tax analysis and provision, and assessing the adequacy of disclosures in the guarterly and annual consolidated financial statements, The lagk in
expartise (o apply the accounting standards restlted in a materinl sudis adjustment in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013,
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Additionally, the Company has not adequately designed and documented suffisient internal controls to support effective intenal controls relating to the visk of fraud
and management override of internal conirols. The controller and the assistant to the controller pest and review journal eniries and also generaie the system hased
financial reparts used in key management review controls, Further, the controllsr and the assistan fo the controller and some department heads have administrative
access to their departments’ operating systems,

These material weaknesses were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audil fssts applied in our audit of the fiscal 2015 consolidated financial
slatements, and this report does nol affeoct our report dated December 14, 2015 on those consolidated financial statements.

tn our opinion, Daily Journal Cocporation did not maintain, in all material respects, effective infernal control aver financial reporting as of Septamber 30, 2015, based on
the COSO criteria, We do nof express an opinien or any ofher form of assurance on management’s stafements veferring to any corrective actions taken by the Company
after the date of management’s assessment,

We also have audited, in accordanse with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheels of Daily

Journa! Corporation as of September 30, 2015 and 2014 and the related consolidated statements of comprehiensive income (loss), shargholders' equity, and cash flows
for the years then ended and our report duted December 14, 2005 expressed an ynqualified opinion thereom,

fs/ BDO USA, LLP

Los Angeles, California
December 14, 2015
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Changes in Taternal Control ever Financial Reporting

In light of the material weaknesses in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting discussed abave for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015,
management cancluded that the Company’s disciosurs controls and procedures were not efftctive as of Septomber 30, 2013, Although the Company has lsken several
remedial steps, there were still material weaknesses existing as of September 36, 2015, snd there were no material changes {n the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting or in other factors reasonably |fkely to affect s internal control over finarcial reporting during the quarter ended Seplember 30, 2015.

Item 9B, Other Information

Mone.




PART I

Item 10, Directors, Bxecutive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information set Forth in the tables, the notes thereto, and the paragraphs under the captions “Ejection of Directors”, “Corporate Governance” and “Section
16(x) Benieficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Company's Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on or about February 10, 2016
{the “Proxy Statement"), is incorporated herein by reference.

The Company has adepied a Code of Ethics that appliss to all divectors, officers and employess of the Company, including the Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer and Controller. The Compeny's Cade of Ethics las been filed ns Exhibit 14 hereto.

Tter 11, Bxecutive Compensation
“T'he information set forth under the captions *Executive Compensation” and “Corporate Governance” in the Proxy Staterneni is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 12, Securtty Ownership of Certain Boneficint Owners aud Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information set forth under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain Benefictal Owners and Management” in the Proxy Statement is incorparated herein by
reference,

Ttem 13, Certain Relationships and Related Transnetions, and Director Tndependence
The information sel forth under the caption “Corparate Governance™ in the Proxy Statement is incorporaied herein by reference.
[tem 14, Principal Accounting Fees and Services '
The information set forth under the caption “Other Matters Regarding Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” in the Proxy Statement is incorporated

herein by referencs.
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PARTTY

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents ars filed as part of this Report:

m

@)
)
(=5
€3]

Consolidated Financial Statements:

Repord of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheots al September 30, 2015 and 2014

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended September 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders® Equity for the years ended Septemiber 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013

Coensolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended September 30, 2045, 2014 and 2013

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Exhibits

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated September 13, 2013, by and between Daily Joural Corporation; Techaology Acyuisition Corporation; ISD Corporation; ISD
{nvestments, LLC; Hans lmhef, Ronald C, Beach; and Mark Nielsen, (&)

Acquisttion Agreement with respect to New Dawn Techmnologies, nc., dated December 4, 2012, by and among Daily Journal Corporation, Thomas Higgins and
Frank Felice. {+)

Artivles of Incorparation of Daily Journal Corporation, as amended. ()

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Daily Journal Corporation. ()

Form of Non-Negotiable Certificate Repiesenting an Employee Participant Interest in she Daily Journat Corporation (“DJC”} Plan for Supplemental
Compensition to an Employee as long as that Employee Remains Employed by DIC or one of its Subsidiaries, Based on Pre-tax Barnings of DJC and its
Subsidiaries on a Consolidated Basis, (1) (%)

Daily Journal Corperation Code of Ethics, (=)

Daily Journal Corporation's List of Subsidiaries.

Certificption by Chief Exeeutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

Certiffeation by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

Filed as an Exhibit te the Company's Cirrent Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Seourities and Exchange Comumission on Seplember 13, 2013
Fited a3 an Exkibit to the Company’s 2012 Annun} Report an Form 10-K, fi led with the Securfties and Exchange Commission on December §4, 2012,
Filed as an Fxhibit to the Company's 2014 Annual Report on Fonm 10-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 28, 2013,
Management Compensatory Plan,
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SIGNATURES

Pursannt to the requiresncnts of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securdties Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly eansed this report to he signed on its behalf
by the undersigned, therennto duly authorized.

DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATICN

By /s Gerald L. Salzman
Gerald L. Salzman
President

Date:  Tecember 14, 2615

Pursuant to the requirements of the Sceurities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has heen signed below by the following persons en hehalf of the registrant and
It the capacities and ox the dates indicated,

Signature Litle Date
Isf Charles T. Munger Chairman of the Board December 14, 2015

Charles T, Munger

Prasident, Chief Executive Officer, December 14,2015
Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Directer
(Principal Bxecutive Officer,
Principal Financial Officer and
8¢ Gerald L. Salzman Pringipal Accounting Otficer)
Gerakl L, Salzman

s/ J. P, Guerin Director December 14, 2015
J. P, Giuerin
Director
Peter Kautiman
Direstar
Gary Wilcox




EXHIBIT INDEX

21 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated September 13, 2013, by and betwoen Daily Journal Corporatien; Technology Acquisition Corporation; 18D
Corporation; 13D Invesimenis, LLC; Hans Imhof, Ronaid C. Beach; and Mark Nielsen, (£}

22 Acquisition Agreemant with respeet to New Dawn Technologies, Inc., dated December 4, 2012, by and rmong Daily Jaurnal Corporation, Thomas
Higgins and Frank Felics, (¥}

34 Articles of Incorporation of Daily Journal Corporation, as amended. =)

32 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Daily Journal Corporation. (=)

o1 Form of Non-Negotiable Certificate Representing an Employes Participant Fntcrest in the Daily Journal Cerporation (“DJC™) Plan for Supplemental
Compensation to e Employee as long as that Bmployee Remalns Employed by DIC or one af its Subsidiaries, Based on Pre-lax Earnings of DJC and
its Subsidiaries on a Consolidated Basis, {}) (=)

14 Daily Journal Corporation Code of Ethics. ()

2 Daily Journal Corporation’s List of Subsidiaries.

3 Certification by Chief Bxecutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuand to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act ol 2002,

12 Certification by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Cfficer pursuasl to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

101.1N8* XBRL Instance

10L.SCH* KBRL Taxonomy Extension Scheima

101.CAL¥ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation
101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition
101, LAB¥ HBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels

1O1.PRE*

)
()
=)
@
+

KBRL Taxonomy Exlension Presentation

Filed as an Exhibit to the Company's Current Report on Form §-K, filed with the Securities and Exchangs Commission on September 13, 2013,

Filed as an Exhibit to the Company’s 2012 Annual Repori cn Form 15-K, filed wifl the Seeurities and Exchange Commission on December i4, 2012,

Filed as an Bxhibit to the Company’s 2014 Annual Report on Form 10-K, fited with the Securitics and Exchange Commission on January 28, 2013.

Management Compensatory Flan.

WARL information is furnished and not filed as a part of  registration stalement or prospectus for purposes of sections 11 or 12 of the Securitics Act of 1933,
as amended, is deemed not filed far purposes o seetion 18 of the Seeurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise is not subject to Hability under
these sections,




Exhibit 21

As of September 30, 2015, Journal Technologies, Ine., a Utah Corporation, was 2 whotly-ovwned subsidiary of Daily Journal Carporation.




Exhibit 31

CERTIFICATIONS BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFCER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICIER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1, Gerald L. Salzman, cortify that;

L

2

5.

1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Daily Journal Corporation;

Based on my knawledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of 2 material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statemenis were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other Financial infermation ineluded in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, resutls of cperations and cash flows of registrant as of, and for, the perinds presented in this repors;

T am responsible for establishing and maintaining diselasure conirols awd procedures (as defined in Bxchange Act Rubes 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control aver financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 134-1 5(Fy and 15d-15¢£)) for the registrant and have:

s designed such disclosure conirols and progedures, or caused such disclosure contrels and procedures fo be designed under my supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to (he reglsirant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to me by others within those
catities, particulatly during the peried in which this report is being prepared;

b. designed such internal control over finuncial reporiing, or caused such internal control over finencial reporting fo be designed under my
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabiiity of financial reporting and the preparation of financial stalements for
external purposss in accardance with generally accepted accounting principles;

o ovaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure conlrols and procedures and presented in this report my conclusions about the
offectiveness of (he disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. diselosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal eontrol over Financial reporting that ccewrred during the registrant’s most receni
fiscal quarter that has materfally affected, or s reasonably likely ta materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

I have disclosed, based on my most recent evaluation of infernal contrel over financial reporting, 1o the registrant’s auditors and the audit commmittee of
registrant's board of direclers (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a all significent deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control aver financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect te registrant’s ability {o record, progess, summarize and report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that invoives management of other employces who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: December 14,2015

{s/ Gerald L. Salzronn
Gerald L. Salzman
Chief Executive Officer, President,
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer




Exhibi¢ 32

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIET FINANCIAL OFRFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Tn connoction with the Aniual Report an Form 10-K of Daily Journal Corperation (the "Company®) for the fiscal year ended September 36, 2015 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), L, Gerald L, Salzman, President, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financiat Officer and Treasurer
of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 1.5.C. Section 1350, as adopled pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge:

(1} the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Secwrities Bxchange Act of 1934; and

(2} the information gontained in the Report fairly presents, in ull material respects, the fingneial condition and results of operations ef the Company.

{3/ Gerald L. Salzman
Gerald L, Salzman
Chief Executive Officer, President,
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

December {4, 2015

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to (8 UL8.C. Section 1330, and is not being filed as part of the Report or us a seprate disclosure
document.




REQUISITION

RQDALG6000005 15/JAN/2016

VENDOR : REQUISITIONER :
JOURMNAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC, DA DISTRICT ATTORNEY
843 S0UTH 100 WEST 262 OLD COUNTRY ROAD
LOGAN UT 84321 MINEOLA NY 11501
VICKI CORDOVA/GORDON TRABOLD
TEL: {877)587-8927 TEL: (516)571-3376
FAX:(801)760-3407 FAX; { ) -
ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY U/M UNIT COST TOTAL
ool 920-45 l.00 EA 14%,065.5000 146,065.50

COMPUTER SOFTWARE MAINTENANICE/SUPPORT
ANNUAL, SUPPORT & MAINTENANCE RENEWAL OF THE DA'S JUSTWARE CASE
MANAGEMFNT & DOCUMENT MGMT SYSTEM 12/1/15 - 11/30/16
TO INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING:

JUSTWARE API SUPPORT 1@ $21,168 = £21,168
JUSTICE WEB ANNUAL SUPPORT & UPGRADES 10 @ $261,45 = $2,614.50
JUSTWARE SUPPORT 375 @ #306,60 = $114,975
ANNUAL ONSITE ASSISTANCE, TRAINING 1L e %7,308 = $7,308

ESTIMATED TOTAL: 146,065.50



Invoice

Page: 1
JOURNAL TECHNOILOGIES, INC.
843 South 100 West
Logan, UT 84321 USA Number: 0000002292
accounting@journaltech.com Date: 10/2212015
Phone: 435-713-2100
Salesperson:

Customer: 3128

NASSAU COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

Department of Information Technology Department of Information Technoloey
240 Old Countrv Rd 240 0ld Country Rd
Mineola. NY 11501 USA Mineola, NY 11501 USA

Custemer PO, v o .
] i i

3128-8 i I Net 30 days
‘ * Desefiption Antotmt -
Anrual Onsite Assistance, Training 1.000 7,308.000 7,308.00
JustWare Support 375.000 306.600 114,975.00
Justice Web Annual Support and Upgrades 16.000 261.450 2,614.50
JustWare APT Support 1.000 21,168.000 21,168.00
_________________________________________________________ LASTITEM R O R S
: Subtotal 146.063.30
Annual Sup Renewal 12/01/2015-11/30/2016 Freight 0.00
| Sales Tax 0.00
Trade ]f)iscount 0.00
i Payment/Credit Amount ] 000
Contact: D Neiland L Balance 146.063.30




Journal Technologies, Ine, / 843 South 100 West Logan, Uitah 84321
Phone +877 387 8927 7 Fax +803 308 8138 / www journaltech.com

ATTN: Gordon Trabold
Nassau County District Attorney

10/29/2015
Mr. Trabold,

Journal Technologies, Inc. is the only business entity singularly qualified to provide the
following capabilities that are a requirement for our case management software and office
operations:

1. Only Journal Technologies’ customer services team can provide technical support to JustWare
users. No other vendor can provide JustWare updates, eritical bug fixes and/or documents and
reports support.

2. Journal Technologies, Inc, provides new versions, enhancements and regular version releases
as part of the support fees that are paid. Only Journal Technologies, Inc. can provide new
versions of the JustWare case management software application.

3. Justware is a proprietary software solution that Journal Technologies, Inc. does not permit
third party companies to market, implement, host, support, or modify.

Let me know if I can be of any other assistance,

Sincerely,

B~

Ben Stocks
Account Management Manager

Journal Technologies, Inc.
843 South 100 West / Logan, UT 8agz1
FPhone +877 587 8ogy Ext.. 4272 / Fuy +801-760-8407
Fmail bstocks@journaltech.com / Website www journaltech.com
Technology Smart. Community Strong.

ournal

TECHNOLOGIES




Madeline Singas
ACTING DISTRICT ATTORNEY

OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY

NASSAU COUNTY

262 OLD COUNTRY ROAD
MINEOLA, NEW YORK 11501
TELEPHONE {516) 571-3800

December 23rd, 2015

To whom it may concern:

Journal Technologies is the vendor who designed and installed their proprietary
JustWare Prosecutor Case Management system. Design and implementation began in 2012
and the system went live in December 2014, Journal Technologies is the only vendor
capable of providing maintenance, support, and upgrades to the Database, Web Server,
Document Server, and Report Management server. They are proprietary owners of that
software, and no other vendor has rights to access to the code of those modules necessary to
provide upgrades. They are also the only vendor with unique knowledge of customization
and configuration of those modules for our office.

Very truly yours,

//M‘“f » W
Gordon F. Trabold

Director of Technology Services



Business History Form

In addition to the submission of bids/proposals, as applicable, each bidder/proposer shali complete and
submit this guestionnaire. The questionnaire shall be filled out by the owner of a sole proprietorship or by
an authorized representative of the firm, corporation or partnership submitting the bid/proposal.
(USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY TO FULLY ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS).
Date: jblj ! NS

Fo
1) Bidder's/Proposer's Legal Name: ﬁm‘r‘m\ i mm@\og : LD, Ty,
2) Address of Place of Business: %473 S5 1D \J LDQC_‘J\ w8453l

List all other business addresses used within last five years:

3) Mailing Address (if different):
Phone : é:é) WS- 20D

Does the business own or rent its facilities? /R.U\?D

4) Dun and Bradstreet number: Ei? g 2‘;&5333&
5) Federal 1.D. Number; %r) - ZIiJQGBSH

8) The bidder/proposer is a (check one): Sole Proprietorship Partnership

(Corporation>___ Other (Describe)

7) Does this business share office spacs, staff, or equipment expenses with any other business?
Yes ___ No_JA If Yes, please provide details:

8) Does this business control one or more other businesses? Yes __ No _& If Yes, please provide
details:

9) Does this business have one or more affiliates, and/or is it a subsidiary of, or controlled by, /, any other
busmess? Yes ﬁ_ No ~ If Yes, provide details.__Itiurneal Y\G\QQ‘{J ry  END
Luea Yy A N I ) Zad Ty

10) Has the bidder/proposer ever had a bond or surety cancelied or forfeited, or a contract with Nassau
County or any other government entity terminated? Yes ¥ No __ If Yes, state the name of
bonding agency, (if a bond), date, amount of bond ar{? reasl n for such cancellation oy_ig ifure: or
details regarding the fermination (if a contract). NesSaw O punt \/iffi Qng
Jource Trebuwlon s “Tne. ©0olmey 2D T3 Beon Yok mo’rmbﬁ e,

rUTally g fas At Coasa  dip. o Ao e toaudines




11) Has the bidder/proposer, during the past seven years, been declared bankrupt? Yes ____ No _X_
if Yes, state date, court jurisdiction, amount of liabilities and amount of assets

12) In the past five years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated
business, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any
federal, state or local prosecuting or investigative agency? Andfor, in the past & years, have any
owner and/or officer of any affiliated business been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a
civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local prosecuting or investigative agency, where
such investigation was related o activities performed at, for, or on behalf of an affiliated business.
Yes  No_J/\ If Yes, provide details for each such investigation.

13) In the past 5 years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated
business been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to
federal, state and local regulaiory agencies? And/or, in the past 5 years, has any owner and/or officer
of an affiliated business been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including
but not limited to federal, state and local reguiatory agencies, for matiers pertaining to that
individual's position at or relationship to an affiliated business. Yes ___ No _>§_ If Yes, provide
details for each such investigation.

14) Has any current or former diractor, owner or officer or managerial employee of this business had,
either before or during such person's employment, or since such employment if the charges
pertained to events that allegedly occurred during the time of employment by the submitting
business, and allegedly related to the conduct of that business:

a) Any felony charge pending? No X Yes ___ If Yes, provide details for each such
charge.
b) Any misdemeanot charge pending? No X _ Yes ___ If Yes, provide details for each

such charge.

¢) Inthe past 10 years, you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony and/or any
other crime, an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which
related to the conduct of business? No _&_ Yes ___ If Yes, provide details for each
such conviction

d) Inthe past 5 years, been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
No _}\ Yes____ If Yes, provide details for each such conviction.

&) In the past 5 years, been found in violation of any administrative, statutory, or
regulatory provisions? No _F\ Yes ___  If Yes, provide details for each such




occurrence,

15) In the past (5) years, has this business or any of its owners or officers, or any other affiliated
business had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect
to any professional license held? No A, Yes ___; If Yes, provide details for each such
instance.

16) For the past (5) tax years, has this business falled to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any
applicable federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water
and sewer charges? No A Yes___ If Yes, provide details for each such year. Provide a
detailed response to all questions checked 'YES'. If you need more space, photocopy the
appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you need more space, photocopy the
appropriate page and attach # to the questionnaire.

17) Conflict of Interest:
a) Please disciose:

(i) Any material financial relationships that your firm or any firm employee has that may
create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting as collection
agent on behalf of Nassau County.  ND

(i) Any family relationship that any employee of your firm has with any County public
servant that may create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in
acting as collection agent on behalf of Nassau County.  NMO

(i) Any other matter that your firm believes may create a conflict of interest or the
appearance of a conflict of interest in acting as a collection agent on behalf of Nassau

County. ND

b) Please describe any procedures your firm has, or would adopt, to assure the County that
a conflict of interest would not exist for your firm in the future, + A
“Sournal TTaaheol Dy, TNe D 0P K0 Qtf\m
AAptuntied  Conf Lods of Inbast end ol s Y

QenCarmsd Tha Qounly Mey nave.




Attachments to Business History Form

Please provide any other information which would be appropriate and helpful in determining the
bidder's/proposet’s capacity and reliability to perform these services,

A. Include a resume or detailed description of the bidder’s/proposer’s professional qualifications,
demonstrating extensive experience in your profession. Any prior similar experiences, arid the results
of these experiences, must be identified. .

Should the bidder/proposer be other than an individual, the bid/proposal should include:
i} Date of formation; \/2}1 11839

i} Name, addresses, and position of all persons having a financial mterast in &compan
including shareholders members, general or limited partner, ¥ W‘-"f\

i} Name, address and position of all officers and directors of the company; %% cloudnunk
iv) State of incorporation (if applicable); Lital
v} The number of employees in the firm; 15 3

vi) Annual revenue of firm; Sae. edtmehed VDX

viiy Summary of relevant accomplishments Sxolx, meh.r%,ﬂt, cnd, 5.4‘3@{’5 SShrtled
L

viili) Caopies of alf state and local licenses and permits. Justict., Covmumn b

B. Indicate number of years in business. ”_p

C. Provide any other information which would be appropriate and helpful in determining the
bidder's/proposer's capacity and retiability to perform these services.

D. Provide names and addresses for no fewer than three references for whom the bidder/proposer has

provided similar services or who are qualified to evaluate the bidder's/proposer's capability to perform
this work.

Gompany Mossieu  Countn Tistric . Affomnass
Contact Person Cunt don "rr"o:g}jb 2 ~
Address D18 DI Q.mrwfij Rl

City/State Mg NY

Telephone otle- S0 - EROL

Fax #

E-Mail Address O\?\{ c‘\bk’\,f Van\;\ © vasoeside, D\f"mi
N




Company Z$pbARAL. MLLNNE Cowl, Trosonttons

Contact Person HD vhvd 71T 0\enu)
)
Address OIDC\' W Melion |

City/State Sﬂ;‘bﬁk@m wi X

Telephone ___(UF - TS - SRY

Fax #

E-Mail Address__nden sy © Sookengcty » Digy
J ' W

Company Shi_aﬁb Q_Dunikjj “Dhstriet J\&D'ﬁ“\:{j}
Contact Person ?’k‘r’ i.f;’nhﬂq f\bmm

Address {015 Teves Stoud, Sut HSto

. P
City/State __Foac Faald i

Telephone ‘70‘_} - IR - LD

Fax #

E-Mail Address___ DYt DR @ Splean Qw\g _ Qo




CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION
WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY
NOT RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID/PROPOSAL OR FUTURE
BIDS/PROPOSALS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKENG THE FALSE
STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES." -

I, BIvst /?,LQJ{ . being duly sworn, state that | have read and understand all the
items contained in the foragoing pages of this questionnaire and the following pages of attachments; that
| supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my knowledge, information and
belief; that | will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring after the
submission of this questionnaire and before the execution of the contract; and that all information
supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief. | understand that the County
will rely on the information supplied in this questionnaire as additional inducement to enter into a contract
with the submitting business entity.

Sworn to before me this *) / day of QXkner 2013
Notary Public /N\)

Name of submitting busipess: ournad 18 D\\{\D\@;A‘ﬁ 1 o,

By: %\SD /%1 Q‘J\l\

rint naafe

B DONNA GREENE

S \2\ NOTARY BUBLIC » STATE of UTAH

See) Jo] COMMISSION NO, 880872
=% COMM. EXP. 12/16/2018

S,

1 b
\\ﬁrgnature
Qoo

Title

i 9 19

Date




PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these gquestionnaires must be answered and the answers typewritten or printed in ink. If you
need more space to answer any question, make as many photocopies of the appropriate page(s) as necessary
and attach them to the questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO SUBMIT A

COMPLETE QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID/ PROPOSAL WILL BE'REJECTED AS NON-

RESPONSIVE AND |T WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD

1.

Principal Name SO~ Pl &

Home address

City/state/zip
Business address __ Q13 S 100w
City/state/zip L RGN, T B0l
Telephone _ [ '“Lf}S)\%i 2 - B0

Other present address(es)
City/state/zip

Telaphone

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)
President O] /S /4 Treasurer L

Chairman of Board / / Shareholder / /

Chief Exec. Officer / ! Secretary / /

Chief Financial Officer / / Partner / /

Vice President /

/ 0
©they  C.DD {14

Do you have an equity interest in the business submitiing the questionnaire?
NO _AN YES ___  If Yes, provide details.

Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any other type of,
contribution made in whole or In part between you and the business submitting the questionnaireA NO_
___ YES ___ IfYes, provide details.

Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or not-for-profit
organization other than the one submitting the questicnnaire? NOY__ YES __; If Yes, provide details,

Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in
the past 3 years while you were a principal owner or officer? NOXr YES ___ f Yes, provide details,




NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law,
or as a result of any action taken by a government agency.

Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you need more space, photocopy the
appropriate page and attach it to the guestionnaire.

7. Inthe past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in
Section 5 in which you have been a principal owner or officer:

a.

Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?
NO “A__ YES If Yes, provide details for each such instance.

Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts
cancelled for cause? NO X YES ___ If Yes, provide details for each such instance.

Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity fo bid on a contract, including, but not
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards? NO YES __ If Yes, provide details
for each such instance.

Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any confract with it; and/or is any
action pending that could formally debar or ctherwise affect such business’s ability to bid or propose
on contract? NO . YES ____ If Yes, provide details for each such instance.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response fo Question 5 filed a bankruptey petition
and/or been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any
portion of the last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings
initiated more than 7 years ago and/or is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy
proceedings, whenever initiated? If "Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed
response to all questions checked "YES", If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and
attach it to the questionnaire.)

a)

b)

c)

d)

Is there any felony charge pending against you? NO _X_ YES __ If Yes, provide details for
each such charge.

Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you? NO }§ YES ___  If Yes, provide
details for each such charge.

Is there any administrative charge pending against you? NO X YES ___ [fYes, provide
details for each such charge. '

In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other
crime, an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the
conduct of business? NO X_ YES _ If Yes, provide details for each such conviction.

In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor? NO _@Q
YES ___ if Yes, provide details for each such conviction.

in the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
NO X YES I Yes, provide details for each such occurrence.




10.

1.

12.

In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past & years, have you
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or
local prosecuting or investigative agency andfor the subject of an investigation where such investigation
was related to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated
business listed in response to Question 57 NO __L YES ____  [|f Yes, provide details for each such
investigation.

In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in
response to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation
and/or any other type of investigation by any government agency, including but nof limited to federal, state,
and local regulatory agencies while you wers a principal owner or officer? NO jé_ YES ___ [fYes;
provide details for each such investigation.

In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to
Question 5 had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to
any professional license held? NO Y, YES ___  If Yes; provide details for each such instance.

For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable
federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, Including but not limited to water and sewer
charges? NO _X_ YES ___ I Yes, provide details for each such year.




CERTIFICATION

AMATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH
THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT
RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID/PROPOSAL OR FUTURE BIDS/PROPOSALS,
AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL
CHARGES. .

1, BOV\ IQCCK_ . being duly sworn, state that | have read and understand all the items
contained in the foregoing pages of this questionnaire and the following pages of attachments; that | supplied
full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my knowledge, information and belief; that | will
notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring after the submission of this guestionnaire
and before the execution of the contract; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my
knowledge, information and belief. | understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this
questionnaire as additional inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

NS g 1Y, 2015

Sworn to before me this ’7 da

0 -
| N S

Notary Public”

/ﬂ W -t
ournad Laohoaniaias ne.
Name of submitting business

DN /?ntué

Print nany
New
Signa‘t{ry
C;DD
Title
[ /07 9018 . -
Date .
n  DONNA GREENE
EE\ MOTARY PUBLIC » STATE of UTAH

] COMMISSION NO, 680872
COMM. EXP. 12/16/2018
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TECHNOLOGIES

Journal Technelogies, Inc.
8435100 W
Logan, Utah 84321

RE: Owner & Management Disclosure

Journal Technologies Inc.: is a wholly owned company by The Daily Journal

Corporation.

Member of the board of Directors are: % owned

Gerald L. Salzman _ President, CEQ, CFO, Treasurer and Secretary 0
1S & A4ar SDURL L Aﬂﬁ,d;z.«?), C A

Jon Peel (COO) Chief Operating Officer 0
Qua S 10 W RDen, UT Rusal
Kyle Kennington Assistant Secretary o

Qus S, o W LpRan, Ut TRUBI

Los Angeles CA Corona CA Logan UT
949 K 2nd Street 1595 E. 6th Street, Suite 101 843 South 100 West
Los Angeles, CA goo12 Corona, CA 92879 Logan, Utah 84321
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10-K 1 dfe020140930_ 10k hitm FORM 10-K

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(MARK ONE)

K ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 15;?34
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014 | E
. OR .
Ol TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT o 1934

Commission File No. 0-14665

DAJLY JOURNAL CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

South Carolina 95-413329%
(State ox other jurisdiction of (IRS Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
915 East First Street
Les Angeles, California 90012
(Address of principal execufive offices) (Zip Code)

Registraut's telephone number, including area code: (213)229-5300

Seeurifics vegistered pursuand fo Section 12(b) of the Act: Common Stock, The NASDAQ Stock Market.

Securifies registered pursuant to Seetion 12(g) of the Act: None,

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act Yes [
No K :

Tndicate by check mark ifthe registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15{d) of thegAct. Yes
ONo :

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) ofthe
Seeurities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 manths (or for such shorter petiod that the registrant was réquired to
file such reports), and (2) has been subjsct to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. :

Yes K No [ '

Tndicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, ifany, every
Interactive Data Tile required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation 8-T during the precedifig 12
months (ot for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit anid post such files).

Yes ® No ] ‘

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Ttem 405 of Regulation 8-K is not contained fereln, and
will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporatéd by
reference in Part 1T of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K: :

Tt Awww.sac,goviArchivesfedgarfdata/7 83412/000143774915001309/}c020140930_ 10k htm
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated fifen, or a
smaller reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company”
in Rule 12b-2 ofthe Exchange Act, {Check one): '

Large accelerated [ Accelerated filer B Non-accelerated filer LI Smaller reporting company [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company {as defined in Rule 12b-2 ofthe Exchange Act),
YesONo & ‘ 3

As of March 31, 2014, the aggregate market value of Daily Journal Corporation's voting stock held by non-aﬂiliateis was
approximately $187,169,000. i

As of January 26, 2015 there were cutstanding 1,380,746 shares of Common Stock of Daily Joumnal Corporation,

http:ﬂww.sec.gov.’Archivesfedgar.'dataﬂﬂ%l 2/000143774915001389/c¢020140930_10k.htm

2165




9212015 www,sec.goviArchivesfedgar/data/78341 2/000143774015001309/d]co201140930_10K him

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Sfafements

This Form 10-K includes “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Certain statements contained in this
document, including but not limited to those in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations”, are “forward-looking™ statements that involve risks and uncertainties that may cause actual future evenfis or results
to differ materially from those described in the forward-looking statements, Words such as “expects,” “intends,” “anticipates,”
“should,” “believes,” “will,” “plans,” “estimates,” “may,” variations of such words and similar expressions are intended to
identify such forward-looking statements, We disclaim any intention or obligation to revise any forward-looking istatements
whether aga result of new information, future developments, or otherwise. There are many factors that could cause actual results
to differ materially from those contained in the forward-locking statements. These factors include, among others: risks
associated 'with software updates, upgrades and implementation efforts, Joumal Technologies, Inc.’s reliance on p&ofessional
services efigagements with justice agencies, including Catifornia courts, for a substantial portion of their revmuejs; material
changes in the costs of postage and paper, possible changes in the law, particulady changes limiting or eliminating the
requirements for public notice advertising; possible loss of the adjudicated status of the Company s newspapers and, their legal
authority to publish public notice advertising; further decline in public notice advertising revenues because of fewer
foreclosures; a further decline in subscriber and commercial advertising revenues; collectability of accounts recelvable; the
Company’s reliance on its president and chief exscutive officer; changes in accounting guidance; and declines in the market
prices of the Company’s investments, In addition, such statements could be affected by general industry and market sonditions,
general egonomic conditions (patticularly jn California) and other factors. Although the Company believes that the
expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable, it can give no assurance that such expectations will
prove to have been correct, Important factors that could oause actual results to differ materially fom those in the forward-
looking statements are discussed in this Form 10-K, including in conjunction with the forward-looking statements themselves,

and in other documents filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission,

bt sec.goviArchives/edgarfdatal? 83412/000 1437749 15001309/djc020140830_10k.hir 3/65
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PARTI

Item 1,  Business

The Company publishes newspapers and web sites covering California and Arizona, as well as the Caiifo:‘r\“‘ia Lawyer
magazine, and produces several specialized information services. It also serves as a newspaper representative specializing in
public notice advertising. We often refor to this as “The Traditional Business”, E

Journal Technologies, Inc. (“Journal Technologies™), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, supblies case
management software systems and related products o courts and other justice agencies, including administfative law
organizations, county governments and bar associations, These organizations use the Journal Technologies family of products
to help manage cases and information electronically, to interface with other eritical justice partners and to extend|electronic
services to:the public, including a secure website to pay traffic citations online, and bar mernbers. These products afe licensed
to more than 500 organizations in 41 states, 3 U.S, temritories and 2 other countries. Journal Technologies is the rejsu]t of the
October 1, 2014 integration of the Company's three technology-related subsidiaries, Sustain Technologies, Inc, (“Sustain™), a
wholly owned subsidiary since 2008; New Dawn Technologies, Inc. {“New Dawn”), acquired in Decetnber 2012; and ISD
Technologies, Inc, (“ISD™), acquired in September 2013, %

Essentially all of the Company’s operations are based in California, Arizona and Utah, Financial information of the
Company is set forth in Item 8 (“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”). ‘

Products and Seryices

The Traditional Business

Newspapers and related online publications, The Company publishes 10 newspapers of general eireulation, Each
newspaper, in addition to news of interest to the genera! public, has a particular area of in-depth focus with regard to its news
coverage, thereby attracting readers interested in obtaining information about that area through a newspaper format. !

|
1
!
i
i

The publications are based in the following cities:

Newspaper publications Rage of publication :
‘Los Angeles Daily Journal Los Angeles, Califomia .
Daily Conmmerce Los Angeles, California |
San. Francisco Daily Journal San Francisco, California
The Daily Recorder Sacramento, California
The Inter-City Express Oakland, California ﬁ
San Jose Post-Record San Jose, California
Orange County Reporter Santa Ana, California
San Diego Commerce San Diego, California
Business Jowmnal Riverside, California
The Record Reporter Phoenix, Arizona
3

hilpathawan sec.goviAr chives/edgarfdata/783412/0001 43774316001 369/d]co20140830_10k,htm A5
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The Daily Journals, The Los Angeles Daily Joumal and the San Francisco Daily Journal are each published every
weekday except certain holidays and were established in 1888 and 1893, respectively. In addition to covering staté and local
news of general interest, these newspapers focus particular coverage on faw and its impact on society. (The Los Angeles Daily
Joumal and the San Francisco Daily Journal are referred to collectively herein as "The Daily Joumals'.) Generally |The Daily
Joumals seek to be of special utility to lawyers and judges and to gain wide multiple readership of newspapers sent fo law firm
subscribers.
|

The Daily Journals contain much material and render many services in a common endeavor, The Los Angjeles Daily
Joumal is the largest newspaper published by the Company, both in terms of revenues and circulation. At Septembe’ 30,2014,
the Los Angeles Daily Joumal had approximately 5,400 paid subscribers and the San Francisco Daily Joumal had
approximately 2,800 paid subscribers as compared with total paid subsecriptions for both of The Daily Joumals of 8,400 at
September; 30, 2013, The Daily Journals carry commercial advertising (display and classified) and public notice ixdvertising
required of permitted by law to be published in a newspaper of general circulation, The main source of commercial advertising
revenue has been local advertisers, law firms and businesses in or wishing to reach the legal professional comntunity, The gross
revenues generated directly by The Daily Journals are attributable approximately 64% to subscriptions and 36% toithe sale of
advertising and other revenues, Revenues from The Daily Joumals constituted approximately 19% ofthe Company's Etotai fiscal
2014 revenues, 23% in 2013, 28% in 2012,27% in 2011 and 25% in2010, Co

It is the policy of The Daily Joumals (1) to take no editorial position on the legal and political controversies of é‘he day but
insiead to publish well-written editorial views of others or: many sides of a controversy and (2) o try to report on factual events
with techriical competence and with objectivity and accuracy. It is believed that this policy suits a professional readership of
exceptional intelligence and education, which is the target readership for the newspapers, Moreover, The Daily Journals
believe that they bear a duty to their readership, particularly judges and justices, as a self-imposed public trust,iregardiess,
within reason, of short-term income penalties. The Company believes that this policy of The Daily Joumals is in thé-f long-tem

interest ofthe Company’s shareholders.

The Daily Journals contain the Daily Appellate Report which provides the full text and case summaries of ali opinions

certified for publication by the Califomnia Supreme Cout, the California Courts of Appeal, the U.S. Supreme Couﬁ, the U.S.
Courtt of Appeals for the Ninth Circut, the U.S. Bankruptey Appellate Panel for the Ninth Cirouit, the State BarLCourt and
selected opinions of the U.8. District Courts in California and the Federal Cireuit Court of Appeals, The Daily Jo mals also
include a:monthly court directory in booklet form, This directory includes a comprehensive list of sitting juflges in all
California:courts as well as courtroom assignments, phone numbers and courthouse addresses, plus "Judicial Transitions" which
lists judicial appointments, elevations, confirmations, resignations, retirements and deaths. ‘
The Company publishes the California Directory of Attorneys (the "Directory™, which is updated and publifhed semi-
annually, in January and July, The Directory includes in a single volume names, addresses, fax and telephone umbers of
California’ lawyers and many informational sections including listings of corporate counsel, private judges, arbitrators and
mediators; and federal and state courts and govemmental offices. In addition, the Directory includes commercial ,aclvertising
and specialty listings. The Directory is provided as part of normal newspaper service to subscribers of The Daily Joumnals, and
some are sold primarily to law firms. !
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The Daily Joumnals are distributed by mail and hand delivery, with subscribers in the Los Angeles and San Francisco arcas
usually receiving copies the same day, Certain subscribers in Los Angeles, San Francisco, Santa Clara, Alameda, QOrange, San
Diego, Riverside and San Bernardino counties receive copies by hand delivery. The regular yearly subseription ratejfor each of
The Daily Journals is $765. '

P

Muchiof the information contained in The Daily Journals is available to subscribexs online at www.dailyj oumalicom.
’ ’ t

Dailyi Commerce, Published since 1917, the Daily Commerce, based in Los Angeles, in addition to covering news of
general interest, devotes substantial coverage to items designed to serve real estate investors and brokers, particularly those
interested in Southem California distressed properties. The nature of the news coverage enhances the effectiveness of public
notice advertising in distributing information about foreclosures to potential buyers at foreclosures. The features of the paper
include default listings and probate estate sales, The Daily Commerce carries both public notice and commercial %\dvez’tising
and is published in the afternoon each business day. i

The Datly Recorder. The Daily Recorder, based in Sacramento, began operations in 1911, It is published each business
day. In addition to general news items, it focuses on the Sacramento {egal and real estate communities and on Califomia state
govemment and activities ancillary to it. Among the regular features of The Daily Recorder is news about government leaders
and lobbyists, as well as the Daily Appellate Report for those who request it. Advertising in The Daily Recorder ‘consists of
both commercial and public notice advertising. :

The Inter-City Express. The Inter-City Express (the "Express”) has been published since 1909. It covers general news of
{ocal interest and focuses its coverage on news about the real estate and legal communities in the Oakland/San Francisco area.
The Express caries both commercial and public notice advertising, It is published each business day.

S Jose Post-Record, The San Jose Post-Record (the "Post-Record") has been published since 1910, In addition to general
news of local interest, the Post-Record, which is published each business day, focuses on legal and real estate newsand caries
commercial and public notice advertising.

Orange County Reporter. The Orange County Reporter ("Orange Reporter") has been an adjudicated newspaper of general
cireulation since 1922. In addition to general news of local interest, the Orange Reporter reports local and state legal, business
and real estate news, and carries primarily public notice advertising. The Orange Reporter is published three days a week.

San Diego Commerce. The San Diego Commerce is a thrice-weakly newspaper which carries general news of local interest
and publi¢ notice advertising and has been an adjudicated newspaper of general circulation since 1970. The San Diego
Cosmerce also serves legal and real estate professionals in San Diego County.
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Business Journal. The Business Joumal, established in 1991, publishes news of general interest and provides coverage of
the business and profossional communities in Riverside County. It also carries public notice advertising and is published each
business day, ‘

The Record Reporier (4rizong). The Record Reporter has been in existence since 1914, In addition to general news of local
interest, THe Record Reporter, which is published three days a week, focuses on legal news and public record information and
carries primarily public notice advertising. :

California Lawyer Magozine. Since 1988, the Company has published the California Lawyer, a legal affairé magazine
formerly produced by the State Bar of California (the "State Bar"). The magazine is either mailed or provided in a digital version
fiee to active members of the State Bar and other paid subscribers.

Infomiation Services, The specialized information services offered by the Company have grown ouf of its inewspaper
operationsor have evolved in response to a desire for such services primarily from its newspaper subscribers. ‘

The Company has several court rules services. One is Court Rules, a multi-volume, loose-leaf set. Court Rules reproduces
court rules for certain state and federal courts in California, The Court Rules appear in two versions, one of which covers
Northern California coutts (nine volumes) and one of which covers Southem California courts (eight volumes). Thef Company
updates Court Rules on a monthly basis. In addition, the Company publishes a single volume of rules known as Locgl Rules for
major counties of California. Six versions are published for Southem California, each a single bound volums for the rules of. (1)
Los Angeles County; (2) Orange County; (3) San Diego County; (4) San Bemardino County; (5) Riverside County; and (6)
Ventura, Santa Barbara and San Luis Obispo counties. Also, the Company publishes single-volume rules for the Federal
District Court in the Central District of California and California Probate Rules. In Northem Califomia, three versions of the
Local Rules appear in loose-leaf books for Santa Clara/San Mateo, Alameda/Contra Costa and San Francisco counties. The

single volomes are normally updated or replaced whenever there ate substantial rule changes, 5

The Judicial Profiles services contain information concerning nearly all active and retired judges in California. I:\/Iost of the
profiles have previously appeared in The Daily Joumals as part of a regular featurs. The Judicial Profiles include bjographical
data and financial disclosure statements on judges and information supplied by each judge regarding the judge's p}o]icies and
views on various trial and appellate procedures and the manner in which appearances are conducted in his or her courtroom,

Subscribers may purchase either the ten-volume set for Southemn California or the eight-volume set for Northemn California.

The Company also provides online foreclosure information to about 40 customers. This service primarily provides
distressed iproperty information, some of which also appears in some of the Company's newspapers, as well as expanded
features. Consolidation of both newspapers and online products more effectively utilizes the costs of gath%ars'ug such

informatiol.

Advertising and Newspaper Represeniative. The Company's publications cary commercial adveitising, andfE most also
contain pyblic notice advertising. Commercial advertising consists of display and classified advertising and constituted about
9% of the!Company’s total revenues in fiscal 2014, 11% in 2013, 15% in 2012, 14% in 2011 and 13% in 2010,5 Classified
advertising has continued to decline primarily due to the continyed downturn in the employment advertising marketplace and
competition from online employment web sites. ;
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Public. notice advertising consists of many different types of legal notices required by law to be published in an
adjudicatet} newspaper of general circulation, including notices of death, fictitious business names, trustee sale notices and
notices of governmental hearings. The major types of public notice advertisers are real estate-related businesses and trustees,
governmental agencies, attoreys and businesses or individuals filing fictitions business name statsments. Many gfovemment
agencies use the Company’s Internet-based advertising system to praduce and send their notices to the Company. \ flctitious
business name web site enables individuals to gend their statements to the Company for filing and publication and another web
site enables atforneys and individuals to send probate, civil, corporate, public sale and other types of public not&ces to the
Company,” California Newspaper Service Bureau (“CNSB™), a division of the Company, is a statewide hewspaper
representat[ive (commission-earning selling agent) specializing since 1934 in public notice advertising. CNSB places public
notices and other forms of advertising with adjudicated newspapers of general circulation, most of which are not owned by the
Company, :

Publici notice advertising revenues and related advertising and other service fees, including trustee sales legal édvertising
revenues, constituted about 24% of the Company's total revenues in fiscal 2014, 35% in 2013, 56% in 2012, 58% i 2011 and

H

59% in 2010, Most of these revenues were generated by (i) notices published in the Company’s newspapers, (ii) cojmmissions

and similat fees received from other publications in which the advertising was placed and (iif) service fees generated when
filing notices with government agencies. ;

Trustee sales legal advertising revenues alone represented about 7% of the Company’s total revenues in fiscal 2014, 17%
in 2013, 56% in 2012, 58% in2011 and 40% in 2010. For several years, these revenues were driven by the Iargelnumber of
foreclosurds in California and Arizona, for which public notice advertising is required by law, but the number of foreclosures
has continued to decline. In addition, in many states, including California and Arizona, legislatures have considered various
proposals which would result in the climination or reduction of the amount of public notice advertising required by statute.
There is a fisk that such laws could change in a manner that would have a significant adverse impact on the Compa}xy*s public

notice advertising revenues. i

|
Other revenues are attributable to service fees from users of an online foreclosure/fictitious business name database, focs
from attomeys taking continuing legal education “courses” published in the Company’s publications and other miscellaneous
fees. ;

Journal Technologies

journgl Technologies provides case management software and related services to courts and other justice aéencies. Iis
operations!constituted about 53% of the Company’s total revenues in fiscal 2014, 37% in 2013, 9% in 2012, 9% in 2011 and
9% in 2010 (with the 2010-2012 numbers reflecting Sustain only). Joumal Technologies eams revenue from fjcense and
maintenanbe fees paid by customers to use its sofiware products, consulting fees paid by customers for installation,
implementation and training services; and fees generated by the use of secure websites through which the general public can

pay traffic citations, Journal Technologies has the following main products:
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sCouri® — a web-based case processing system that can be used by couris and other justice agencies for all case types
because its screens, data elements, business rules, work queues, searches and alerts are highly configurable; Journal
Technologles also supports its prior generation Justice Edition software, which is a Windows-based system that alsb provides
for customizable confignrability. ;

JustWare® — a family of case management software products for use by courts and other justice agencies, TustWare®
provides a standardized case management system that includes business. rules to automate tasks, document and report
generation; digital signatures and shortouts to speed data input. Joumal Technologies also licenses its JusticeWe}:@ public
access softwvare, which allows the public to view certain case information, provides a means to create permission-based access
for sensitivie data, allows pro se litigants and attorneys to e-file documents and includes a way for case participanjps to make
payments online, ‘

ICMS™ — g court case management system, which was acquired as part of the acquisition of the ISD asse%s. Journal
Technologies also licenses its CASE™ — an automated probation case management system, including juvenile hall detention

managemeiit features. ;

eFile™ — a browser-based interface that allows attomeys and the general public to electronically file documents with the
court from a personal computer using the Intemet at any time, :

ePaylt™ — a service for the online payment of traffic citations. Users can pay traffic citations using the Intef;net at any
time with a credit card, and can obtain traffic school and other information. '

Almogt all of Journal Technologies® customers are government agencies, and most new software installation and licensing
projects aré subject to competitive bidding procedures, Accordingly, the ability of Joumnal Technologies to get new|customers
is highly uhpredictable, In addition, budget constrainis, especially during stressful economic times, could force gmj’emmental
agencies to defer or forgo consulting services or even to stop paying their annual software maintenance fees. Asa technology-
based company, Journal "Technologies’ success depends on the continued improvement of its products, which is why the costs
to update and upgrade them consistently constitute such a significant portion ofthe Company’s expenses. ‘

Materials and Postage *

After personnel costs (included in “Salaries and employes benefits” and in “Outside services” in the cohlso[idat'ed
statements;of comprehensive income), postage and paper costs are typically the Company's next two largest expenses. Paper
and postage accounted for approximately 7% of our traditional publishing segment's operating costs in fiscal 2014, 7% in
2013, 6% in 2012, 6% in 2011 and 6% in 2010, Paper prices may fluctuate substantially in the future, and periodic jpostal rate
increases could significantly impact income from operations, Further, we may not be able to pass on such increelises to our
customers. - i

An adequate supply of newsprint and other paper is important to the Company's operations, The Company curfently does
not have z|1 contract with any paper supplier, The Company has always been able to obtain sufficient newspll'int for itz
operations; although in the past, shortages of newsprint have sometimes resulted in higher prices. The price of paper remained
unchanged during fiscal 2014, We anticipate the price of paper will rise by approximately $10 per standard ton in fiscal 2015,
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We use the U.S. Postal Service for distribution of a majority of our newspapers and magazines, During the past several
years, the Company has instituted changes in an attempt to mitigate higher postage costs, These changes have included
contracting for hand delivery in selected sections of the San Francisco Bay area and in Santa Clara, Alameda, San Disgo,
Riverside, San Bemardino, Orange and Los Angeles counties, delivering pre-sorted newspapers to the post office on pallets,
which fcilitates delivery and improves service, and {mplementing a method of bundling newspapers which reduces the per
piece chal:ﬁes. In addition, the Company has an ink jet labeler which eliminates paper labels and enables the C%ampany to
receive bar code discounts from the postal service on some of its newspapers.

Postalg:rates are dependent on the operating efficiency of the U.S. Postal Service and on legislative mandates imﬂ‘osed ypon
the U S. Postal Service. During the past several years, the U.S, Postal Service increased rates and added new pallc:tjsacldtray
foes, Therewere decreases in the Company’s postage costs during fiscal 2014 primarily due to fewer subscribers,

t

Marketing g
The dpmpany actively promotes its individual newspapers and its multiple newspaper network as well ais its other
publicatiohs. The Company's staff includes a number of employees whose primary responsibilities includo attra[cting new
subscribers and advertisers, The specialization of each publication creates both target subscribers and target dvertisers.
Subscribers are likely to be attracted because of the nature of the information carried by the particular publication,jand likely
advertisets are those interested in reaching such consumer groups. In marketing products, the Company also foc?ses on its

ancillary products which can be of service to subscribets, such as its specialized information services. :

The Company receives, on a non-exclusive basis, public notice advertising from a number of agencies. Such agencies
ordinarily receive a commission of 15% to 25% on their sales of advertising in Company publications, Commercial advertising
agencies also place advertising in Company publications and receive commissions for advertising sales, }

i

Journal Techiologies™ staff includes employess who provide marketing and consulting services which may algo result in
additionallconsulting projects and the licensing of products. Most of Journal Technologies” new projects come from existing
customers or from a competitive bidding process,

{
Competition :
!
Compbtition for readers and advertisers is very intense, both by established publications and by new entries into the
market, The Daily Journals face aggressive competition, including amazingly low prices for multiple copy subscriptions, from
law—or.ient%;d newspapers in Los Angeles, San Francisco and San Diego. All of the Company's business publications and
products face strong competition from other publications and service companies, Readers of specialized newspapets focus on
the amourit and quality of general and speciatized news, amount and type of advertising, timely delivery and|price. The
Company ;designs its newspapess to fill niches in the news marketplace that are not covered as well by major megtropolitan
dailies, The in-depth news coverage which the Company’s newspapers provide along with general news oovere}ge attracts
readers who, for personal or professional reasons, desire to keep abreast of topics to which a major newspaper cannot devote
significant news space. Other newspapers do provide some of the same subject coverage as does the Compal“ly, but the
Company believes its coverage, particularly that of The Daily Journals, is more complete and therefore attracts more readers.
The Company believes that The Daily Joumals are the most important newspapers serving Califomia lawyers ona daily basis.

I
1
i
i
‘\
i
i
\
i
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The Company's court rules publications face competition in both the Southern California market as well as in Northem
California from online court rules services and the courts themselves, Subscriptions to the multi-volume Court Rules and Local
Rules volumes continued to decline during fiscal 2014, The Company's Judicial Profile services have direct competition and
also indirett competition, because some of the same information is available through other sources, including the eourts,

The stfeady decline in recent years in the number of subscriptions to The Daily Joumals and the Company’s coutt rule
publications is likely to continue and will certainly impact the Company’s future revenues, The pricing of the Company's
products is reviewed every year. Subscription price increases have in recent years exceeded inflation, as have advertising rate
increases.

In attracting commercial advertisers, the Company competes with other newspapers and magazines, television; radio and
other media, including electronic and online systems for employment-related classified advertising. Factors which may affoot
competition for advertisers ate the cost for such advertising compared with other media, and the size and characieristics of the
readership of the Company's publications, !

: :

Tnternet sites devoted to recruitment have become significant competitors of our newspapers and web sites for classified
advertising, In addition, there has been a steady consolidation of companies serving the legal marketplace, resulting|in an ever-
smaller group of companies placing display advertising. Consequently, retaining advertising revenues remains a challenge.

The Company competes with anywhere from one serious competitor to many competing newspapers for public notice
advertising revenue in all of its markets. Large metropolitan genera! interest newspapers normally do not camy a lsignificant
amount of legal advertising, although recently they too have solicited certain types of public notice advertising. CNSB, a
commission-eaming selling agent and a division of the Company, faces competition from a number of companies based in
California; some of which specialize in placing certain types of notices.

There:is significant competition among a limited number of companies to provide services and software to the courts and
other justite agencies, and some of these companies are much larger and have greater access to capital and other resources than
Journal Technologies. Others provide setvices for a limited number of customess. As part of the competitive bidding process,
matty custbmers will expross a preference for, or even require, larger vendors.

Many; customers desire Internet-based solutions to centralize operations, facilitate electronic filing and other interfaces
with other justice pertners and the public, and publish certain information ffom case management systeths. Journal
Technologies’ product lines provide versions of these services, but there are many uncertainties in the process ofjcourts and
other agehcies migrating to newer Internet-based systems, including whether Joumal Technologics’ VCISiO#lS of case
management systems will find general acceptance and whether the update, upgrade and modification of such systems can be
done in a éost effective manner. The Company competes on a variety of factors, including price, technological capa!ailities and
services to' accommodate the individual requirements of each customer. E

10 |
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Employces

The Company has approximately 300 full-time eraployees and contractors and about 20 part-time employees and

contractors as of September 30, 2014, This includes about 150 full-time employees and contractors and 10 part-time

employees

and contractors of Journal Technologies, The Company is not a party to any collective bargaining agreements, Certain henefits,

including medical insurance, ate provided to all full-time employees. Management considers its employee relations t be good,

The C;bmpany relies heavily on Gerald Salzman, who serves as president, chief executive officer, chief financial officer,
treasurer afid assistant secretary. Il Mr. Salzman’s services were no longer available to the Company, it is unlikely that the

Company ;cnu]d find a single replacement to perform all of the duties now handled by him, and it could have a

significant

adverse effect on the Company’s business, The Company does not carry key man life insurance, nor has it entered into an

employmeht agreement with Mr, Salzman,
Worldng Capital

Traditionally, the Company has generated sufficient cash flow from operations to cover all ifs needs without

i
}

Igsigr.liﬁcant

borrowing; To a considerable extent, the Company benefits from the fact that subscriptions and some licenses, maintenance and
consulting fees are generally paid a year in advance. In addition, the aggregate market value of the securities ow! ed by the

Company has increased significantly in recent years, providing the Company with even more working capital, ﬁ

subject, of

course, to the normal risks associated with owning stocks and bonds, In December 2012, the Company bomowed $14 million
from lts in‘fes’rment margin account to purchase all of the outstanding stock of New Dawn, and in September 2013, i'{ botrowed

another $15.5 million to acquire substantially all of the operating assets and liabilities of ISD, in each case p
marketablé securities to obtain favorable financing.

ledging its

The Company believes it has sufficient cash and marketable securities for the foresseable fisture, If the Compal{y’s overall
cash needs exceed cash flow from operations and its current working capital, the Company may still have the ability} to borrow

against its marketable securities on favorable terms as it did for its two tecent acquisitions, or it may attemp
additional:financing which may or may not be available on acceptable terms.

to secure

The C:ompany extends unsecured credit to most of its advertising customers. The Company maintains a reserve account for
estimated losses resulting from the inability of these customers to make required payments, but if the financial co ditions of
these customers were to deteriorate or the Company’s judgments about their abilities to pay are incorrect, additional allowances

might be required, and the Company’s cash flows and results of operations could be materially affected,

Inflation :

The effects of inflation are not significantly any more or less adverse on the Company's businesses than they are on other

publishing’ and software companies, The Company has experienced the effects of inflation primarily through increa

of personn!e-i, newsprint, postage and services, These costs have generally been offset by periodic price increases for
and subschiption rates, buf with frequent exceptions during several years when the Company has experienced
increases ih postage and newsprint expenses and additional costs related to acquisitions.

11

1ses in costs
wdvertising
substantial
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Access fo Qur Information

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the Securities and Exchange
Commissien (“SEC™). We will also provide these reports in electronic or paper format free of charge upon request a dressed to
our Secretiry at our principal executive offices. Our SEC filings are also available to the public over the Internet arthe SEC’s
website atiwww.sec.gov, The public may also read and copy any document we file at the SEC’s public reference room located
at 100 F Sreet N E., Washington, D.C. 20549, Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on th? operation

of the public reference room,

12 ;
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Item 1A, RiskFactors

The foregoing business discussion and the other information included in this Form 10-K should be read in cc;)njunction
with the fllowing risks, trends and uncertainties, any of which, either individually or in the aggregate, could materially and
adversely affect our business, operating resulis ot financial condition. : |

i

i

Risks Asscinted with The Traditional Business |

|
4 conéinuing reduction in the number of residential foreclosures in California and Arizona will vesult in fewer trustee
sale notices being published in the Company's newspapers.

For seyeral years, the revenues of The Traditional Business were driven by the large nunber of foreclosures inCalifornia
and Arizotia, for which public notice advertising is required by law. The number of foreclosures declined significantly in 2014
and has cohtinued to decline in 2015, Along with improvements in the economy, the Califomia Homeowner’s Bill of Rights
imposed néw requirements effective January 1, 2013 that have contributed to the slowdown in foreclosures. We expect this
trend to cohtinue, and it will significantly impact the eamings of The Traditional Business because it will be impraot&cal for the

Company to offset the revenue loss with expense reductions, i

Changes in the legal requirement 10 publish public notice advertising or in the legal ability of our newspapersilo publish
those Rotices would have a significant adverse impact on The Traditional Business.

From fime to time, the legislatures in California and Arizona (and elsewhere) have considered various proposals that would
result in the elimination or reduction of the amount of public notice advertising in printed newspapers required by statute.
These proposals typically focus on the availability of alternative means of providing public notices, such as via the Internet.
Some proposals also question the need for public notices at all, Should any of these proposals become law, partficularly in
Californiaj they would materially affect the revenues of The Traditional Business. '

In addition, if the adjudication, which is what gives them the legal ability to publish public notice advertising, of one or
more of the Company’s newspapers was chailenged and revoked, those newspapers would no longer be eligible to publish
public notice advertising, and it could materially affect the revenues of The Traditional Business.

The Thaditional Business faces strong competition In each of its markets.

Compptition for readers and advertisers is very intense, both by established publications and by new entribs into the
market. The Daily Joumnals face aggressive competition, including amazingly low prices for multiple copy subscriptions fiom
law~orient’gd newspapers in Los Angeles, San Francisco and San Diego. The Company’s court rules publications face
competitign in both Northem and Southern California from online courf rules services and the courts themselves, The steady
decline in recent years in the number of subscriptions to The Daily Joumals and the court rule publications is likely %.o continue
and will cértainty impact The Traditional Business’ fiiture revenues, , '

13 |
|
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The Traditional Business also competes with anywhere fiom one serious competitor to many competing newspapers for
public notjce advertising in all of its markets, As the amount of this advertising has decreased due to the reduction in the
number of foreclosures discussed above, the competition to publish the remaining public notices has intonsified and may result
it a further decline in The Traditional Business’ public notice advertising revenues. ;

The ﬂgaditional Business continues to experience challenges in maintaining its commercial adveriising and ciz'rculat:‘on
revenues, partieularly due to the growth of Internet sites. i

Interm;at sites devoted to recruitment have become significant competitors of our newspapets and web sites folf‘ classified
advertising. In addition, there has been a steady consolidation of companies serving the legal marketplace, resulting in an ever-
smaller graup of companies placing display advertising. Furthermore, newspapers like ours have been struggling to cptmpete for
display adyertising generally, given the many other forums (including Internet sites) that compete for advertising dollars, These
trends are gxpected to continue and will adversely affect The Traditional Business, 5

Circulation revenues have continued to decline as more and more information has become available from the int!cmet. Law
firm merges have also reduced the number of firms that purchase multiple subscriptions of our newspapets. It is not practical to
assume that we will be able to offset the decline in subscriptions with increases in the subscription rate, and we exp%ot that our
sirculation revenues will continue to decline. ]

The Traditional Business is exposed to risks associated with fluctuations in postage and paper costs. 1

Adter personnel costs, postage and paper costs are typically the Company’s next two largest expenses. An adeq jate supply
of newsprint and other paper is important to the operations of The Traditional Business. The Company currently dollis not have
a contract with any paper supplier, and in the past, shortages of newsprint have sometimes resulted in higher prices. The price of
paper has femnained unchanged since fiscal year 2013, but we expect it to increase by approximately $10 per standard ton in
fiscal 2015, |

The Traditional Business uses the U.S, Postal Service for distribution of a majority of its newspapers and magazine, Postal
rates are dopendent on the operating efficiency of the U.S. Postal Service and on legislative mandates imposed upon the U.S.
Postal Set\:'ice. During the past several years, postal rates have increased and new pallet/sack/try fees have been added. Postal
rates and fees may increase more in the future, Further, we may not be able to pass on increases in paper and postage J;:osts 1o our
customers, ’

Risks Associated wifh Journal Technologies

The sirccess of Journal Technologies depends in large part on the technological wpdate and upgrade of i?s software
products. .

Journal Technologies® success depends on the continued improvement of its products, and the costs to update at1d upgrade
those products consistently represent a large portion of Journal Technologies’ expenses, There are many uncertainties in the
process of courts and other justice agencies migrating to newer case management systems, including whct}?er Journal
Technolog’ies’ versions of these systems will find general acceptance and whether the modification of such systems can be done
in a cost effective manner. ‘The costs to update and upgrade Jourmal Technologies’ products are expensed as incum;ad and will
impact earnings at least through the foreseeable future, !

|
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Journal Technologies face significant competition from other case management software vendors.

Thereiis significant competition among & limited number of companies to provide setvices and software to courts and other
justice agéncies, and some of these companies are much larger and have greater acoess to capital and other resqurces than
Journal Technologies, Normally, the vendor is selected through a bidding process, and often the customers wil{ express a
preference! for, or even require, larger vendors, An inability to successfully compete in this difficult market could materially
affect the ¢arnings of Journal Technologies, ‘[

The customers of Journal Technologies are public sector entitles, which create special issues and risks,

Substantiatly all of the customers of Journal Technologies are courts, justice agencies, and other govemment entities.
Accordingly, we face special risks associated with governmental budget constraints, especially during stressfuf economic
times, which could force government entities to defer or forego consulting services or even stop paying their annual sofiware
license and maintenance fees. In addition, we encounter risks related to a longer and more complicated sales cycleithan exists
for commercial customers; political issues related to resource allocation, administration turnover and preferences for internal
case manggement solutions or for a particular vendor; complicated bidding procedures; and fluctuations in the demand for
information technology products and services.

Journul Technologies generally recognizes revenues for software Installations only upon completion of the japp!icable
services and customer acceptance of the software system, f

In mojst cases, the fees paid to Joumal Technologies for instailation services and software licenses are at risk until the
customer las indicated its satisfaction with the installed system and it has “gone live”. Also, we utilize the completed contract
method of accounting because the customer’s acceptance is typically unpredictable and reliable estimates of the progress
towards completion cannot be made. Accordingly, we do not recognize revenues for installation services or licensesjor for most
other consulting services until after the services have been performed, and there are significant risks associated withl our ability
to complete our services to the satisfaction of our customers and to fulfill the requirements that entitle us to bie paid, An
inability to realize payment for services performed could materially affect the earnings of Journal Technologies, |

Risks Associated with Our Investments

A large portion of the Company’s assels is invested in publicly traded securities, and the prices of those sec?zrities may
decline, !

As ofSeptember 30, 2014, the Company held marketable securities worth approximately $173,676,000, with an{ unrealized
gain of $125,700,000. While this portfolio has enabled the Company to borrow on very favorable terms for its recent
acquisitions and to better compete for case management software opportunities that are usually limited to “large’; firms, it is
unusual for a public company to invest a significant amount of its available cash in the marketable securities of other public

companies. The value ofthese securities could decline, which would adversely affect sharcholders” equity. !
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Also, as of September 30, 2014, the Company’s investments were concentrated in just six companies and included one
investment based in a foreign currency. Accordingly, a significant decline in the market value and unfavorable chahges in the

foreign ex(fhange rates of one or more of the Company’s investments may not be offset by hypothetically beiter performance of
other investments, This concentration of risk may result in a more pronounced etfect on shareholders’ equity. "

1
I

In ceﬂ:min circumstances, the Company may be requived to recognize losses in a particular security for‘i‘ Jinancial
statement purposes even though the Company has not actually sold the security. 5
Even if the Company’s investments as a whole perform extraordinarily well, for accounting reasons, an “other than
temporary {impairmen » in a particular security may result in the need to recognize a loss with respect to that secv,jlrity in the
Company’s income statement in a particular period. This has happened twice in the past two fiscal years, and it nay happen

again in thie future with respect to the same sscurities or other securities owned by the Company. This requirement td recognize
a loss could have a material effect on the Company’s earings in a particular period.

General QDrporate Risks

The Ciomparzy relies heavily on the services of Gerald Salzman,

Gerald Salzman, 75, serves as the Company’s president, chief executive officer, chief financial officer, treasurer and
assistant sécretary. He is also the president, chief executive officer, chief financial officer and secretary of Joumnal Technologies.
If Mr. Salzman’s services were no longer available to the Company, it is unlikely that the Company could fi id a single
replacement to perform all of the duties now handled by him, and it could bave a significant adverse effect on thell;lompany s
business. The Company does not cary key man life insurance, nor has it entered into an employment agicement with Mr.
Salzman, | [

Changes in accounting guidance could have a significant effect on the Company's reported financial results.

s

Prepating financial statements requires the Cormpany’s management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. These estimates and assumptions are affected by management’s
applicatioh of accounting policies and the prevailing accounting guidance. The Company considers fair value m?asuremant
and disclobures, revenue recognition, accounting for software costs, accounting for business combinations, testing for goodwill

impairment and income taxes to be critical accounting policies and estimates. A change in the accounting guidance with
respect to one or more of these areas could materially affect the Company’s reported financial results,

The Company has identified certain material weaknesses in its internal control over financial reporting.
|

The Company has identified certain material weaknesses in its intemal control over financial reporting, The Company’s
internal control over financial reporting has been designed to provide management and the Board of Ditectors withlreasonable
assurance regarding the preparation and fair presentation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements. {\s a small
company,we have seven experienced employees in the accounting department, and three in the IT department. Agcordingly,
we are ot able to segregate duties to the extent we could if we had more people, and we have not sufficiently designed and
documcntt:ad controls that support an effective agsessment of our internal controls relating to the prevention of fiaud and
possible mhanagement override of controls. We also do not have sufficient in-house technical expertise to assess and apply
accounting standards that pertain to non-routine transactions, to review the quarterly and annual tax analysis and provision,
and to asséss the adequacy of disclosures in our quarterly and annual consolidated financial statements. As noted elsewhere in
this Form{10-K, we wore required to amend our Form 10-Q for the third quarter of fiscal 2014 {o correct 2 miss{atcment in

connection with our income tax accounting for one of our acqu isitions. ’

Accordingly, we believe our overall intemal control environment is sufficient for a company of our size. However, the
existence of material weaknesses means that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of 0L§1r financial
statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. This may result in legal, operational, financial, and regulatory
issues. For more information regarding the imaterial weaknesses, the mitigation controls used by the Company and certain
remedial steps being taken or considered, please seo Part 10, Item 9A Controls and Procedures.
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Item 1B, Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
Item?2, ‘Properfics

The Company owns office and printing facilities in Los Angeles and leases space for its other offices under operating
leases whith expire at various dates through 2019, T
! |

The main Los Angeles property is comprised of a two-story, 34,000 square foot building constructed in 199(1), which is
fully occubied by the Company, Approximately 75% of the building is devoted to office space and the remainder o printing
and production equipment and facilities, In 2003, the Company finished building an adjacent 37,000 square foot byilding and
parking facilities on properties it acquired in 1996 and 1998. This building provides additional office, production and storage
space. The} Company and Joumal Technologies occupy this building’s first floor and will complete the build-out ofithe second
floor as nebded.

The Company leases in San Franeisco approximately 6,200 square feet of office space (expiring in October 2019). Journal
Technolog’ies leases about 30,200 square feet of office space (expiring in December 2015) in Logan, Utah and about 7,100
square feet of office space (expiring in March 2017) in Corona, California. In addition, the Company rents facilitied in each of
the remaining cities where its staff is located on a month-to-month basis or pursuant to leases generally of no longer than threo
years’ duration, The Company believes that it has adequate office space. {

See Nbte 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information concerning rents payable under leasesf.

em3. Legal Proccedings |
: i

From time to time, the Company is subject to litigation atising in the normal course of its business, While it is ot possible

to predict the results of such litigation, management does not belisve the ultimate outcome of these types of matters will have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations or cash flows. ‘
’ [

Item 4. . Mine Safety Disclosures }

: i

I

{

Not applicable
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PartII

Item5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases oquuitf

Securities

'

The following table sets forth the sales prices ofthe Company’s common stock for the periods indicated. Quotal%ions are as

reported by the NASDAQ Capital Market.

. High Low

Fiseal 2014
Quarter ended December 31,2013 $ 19185 § 134.06
Quarter ended March 31,2014 194.87 154,12
Quarter ended June 30,2014 219,68 161,17
Quarter ended September 30, 2014 210.00 1168.07

Fiscal 2013
Quarter ended December 31,2012 $ 10735 § . 8206
Quarter ended March 31,2013 111.00 ;[ 92.80
Quarter ended June 30,2013 120.93 £100.11
Quarter ended September 30,2013 164.00 106,61

i

As of December 31, 2014, there were approximately 600 holders of record of the Company’s common stock, aind the last

trade was dt $263,01 per share.

!

“The Company did not declare or pay any dividends during fiscal 2014, 2013 or 2012, A determination by the Company
whether of not to pay dividends in the future will depend on numerous factors, including the Company’s earnings, cash flow,
financial condition, gapital requirements, future prospects, acquisition opportunities, and other relevant factors. The Board of

Directors does not expect that the Coompany will pay any dividends or other distributions to shareholders in the
future.

foreseeable

The Company does not have any equity compensation plans, and it did not sell any securities, whether or no’;t registered

under the Securities Act of 1933, during the past three fiscal years.

From ftimc to time, the Company has repurchased shares of its common stock and may continue to do so. Se Note 2 of

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information. The Company maintaing a common stock

repurchase

program tlimt was implemented in 1987 in combination with the Company’s Management Incentive Plan. The Comp hny’s stock

repurchasé program remains in effect, but the Company did not repurchase any shares during fiscal 2014 and 2013,

18
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The following graph shows a five-year comparison of cumulative total retumn on the Company’s comunon {stock, the
Standard & Poor’s 500 Composite Index and the Standard & Poor’s Publishing MidCap Index and Standard & Poor’s Soflware
& ServicesiSelect Industry Index, assuming $100 was invested on September 30, 2009, and all dividends were rein\J;sted. The
Company 1];1as not declared a dividend in any of the fiscal years shown. ‘f

Daily Journal Corporation '

Total Cumulative Shareholder Return for Five Years Ended September 30,2014
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Item 6, Sclected Financial Data

The fo}lowing sets forth selected financial data for the Company as of, and for each of the five years ended Sepfembcr 30,
2014, Such data should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, the Company’s consolidated
financial sqatemen‘rs and the notes thereto and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and:Results of
Operations,” each included herein. ;

Yiscal Year Ended September 30 1,
2014 2013 2012 2011 12010
(Doltar amounts in thousands, ‘
exceptshare and per share amounts)

Consolidated Statement  of Comprehensive

Income
Revenues : :
Advertising, net $ 11435 § 14472 § 19221 § 21337 § : 23,185
Circulition 6,038 6,346 6,530 6767 | 7071
Advertising service fees and other 2,800 3,012 3,205 3,428 . 3,987
Licensing and maintenance fes 12,987 9,942 2,205 2,167 2,193
Consulting fees 4002 3,406 713 814 1,142
Other public service fees 6,161 498 - - —
43423 37,676 31,874 34,513 37,580
Costs and expenses ;
Salaries and employee benefits 25262 19,236 13,592 13473 ©16,003
Outside services 3212 3,086 2,956 3,168 3,075
Postage and delivery costs 1,281 1,328 1,375 1,437 1,479
Newsprint and printing expenses 1,221 1,307 1,321 1,382 1,471
Depregiation and amortization 5,516 2,441 503 535 613
Other general and administrative expenses 9,121 6,489 . 3445 3,716 3,498
: 45613 33,387 23,102 23,711 36,139
(Loss) income from operations (2,190} 3,789 8,082 10,302 - 11441
Other income and expenses :
Dividends and interest income 3,001 2,541 1,967 1,233 8467
Otherlincome 97 54 - ~en
Interest expense on margin loans (230) 07 . - -
Interest and penalty (cxpense} expense %
revdrsal  accrued for uncerfain  and
unrecognized tax benefits (337 —n 100 (36) | (36)
Gainsjon sales of capital assets - 1 7 T e
Other<than temportary impairment fosses on |
investment - (1,7119) (2.855) - i -
Income before taxes 141 4,569 7,901 12000 | 12272
Benefit from (provision for) income taxes 490 790} (2,360) (4,160) 1 (4,600)
Net income $ 631 § 3979 § 5,541 % 7840 § | 7672
t

Weighted . average humber of common shares

Outstanding“ basic and diluted 1,380,746 1,3 80,746 1,3 80,746 1,3 80,74’6 ;.,3 80,746

Basic and diluted net income per share $ 046 $ 274§ 401 § 568 §| 5.6
[
Comprehehsive income
Net income $ 631 & 3779 $ 5541 $ 7840 $! 7672
Net chiange in unrealized appreciation of
investments (net of taxes) 22,393 21292 15,085 (3,627) (2,325

Reclassification adjustment of other-than~

temporary impairment losses reco gnized in :
net income — 1,051 1,720 ! -

Net change in comprehensive income $ 23,024 § 26,122 % 22346 § 4213 $i 5347
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September 30 ,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets $ 243877 $ 203,063 $ 120964 $ 90,816 $ | 8392l
Shareholders' equity 136,371 113,347 87225 64,879 60,666
20
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Item7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionand Results of Operations
Results of Operations

The (?ompany continues to opetate as two different businesses; (I) The Traditional Business, being the k?usiness of
newspapet and magazine publishing and related services that the Company had hefore 1999 when it purchased a major interest
in Sustain, and (2) Joumal Technologies which () includes as of October 1, 2014, the combined operations jof Sustain
Technologies, Inc. (“Sustain”), a wholly-owned subsidiary since 2008; New Dawn Technologies, Inc, (*New Dawn’)), acquired
in DecemQJBr 2012; and ISD Technologies, Inc. (“ISD™), acquired in September 2013, and (il) supplies case management
sofiware systems and related products to courts and other justice agencies, including administrative law organizatiéns, county
govemmetits and bar associations. Even though the three companies were not combined into one entity until afterithe end of
fiscal 20 ltli, for ease of comparison, we refer to our technology business in this section as “Journal Technologies”.

Fiscal 2014 compared to fiscal 2013 |

Durini fiscal 2014, consolidated pretax income decreased by $4,428,000 (97%) to $141,000 from $4,569,000 Jn the prior
year, The Traditional Business segment’s pretax income decreased by $2,817,000 (32%) to $5,890,000 from $8,707,000,
primarily fesulting from a reduction in trustee sale notice and related service fee revenues of $2,825,000, partially dffset by an
increase i dividends and interest income of $460,000, There were pretax other than temporary impairment losses on
investmonts of $1,719,000 in fiscal 2013 but none in fiscal 2014. Journal Technologies’ business segment pretax loss increased
by $1,6111000 (39%) primarily because of the two acquisitions as further discussed below. (Joumal Technologies i{'wluded 12
months ofioperations for Sustain, New Dawn and ISD in fiscal 2014, 12 months for Sustain, less than 10 months for New Dawn
and 1 month for ISD in fiscal 2013.) :

i

Consqlidated revenues were $43,423,000 and $37,676,000 for fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively, This increase of
$5,747,000 (15%) was primarily from the additional Journal Technologies® revenues of $9,304,000, partially oéﬂvet by the
reduction Fn trustee sale notice and related service fee revenues of $2,825,000, The Company’s revenues derived fiom Journal
Technologies® operations constituted about 53% and 37% of the Company’s total revenues for fiscal 2014 land 2013,
respectively, ’
|
Consglidated operating costs and expenses increased by $11,726,000 (35%) to $45,613,000 from $33,387,002, primarily
for Journal Technologies, Total personnel costs increased by $6,026,000 (31%) to $25,262,000 from $19,236,000 including
additionall personnel costs for Journal Technologies of $4,645,000 and a reduced decrease of $1,740,000 in the expenses
related tolthe Company’s Management Incentive Plan (“Incentive Plan™). The reduced decrease in Incentive Pl{an expense
consisted of a reduction of $840,000 in the long-term Incentive Plan accrual during fiscal 2014 due to reduced estimated
current and future consolidated protax income before this accrual versus a reduction of $2,580,000 in the prior comparable year.
This redudtion occurred because the Incentive Plan is based primarily on the pretax income of the Company before jadjustment
for certain{ items. Depreciation and amortization costs increased by $3,075,000 (126%) to $5,516,000 mainty resulting from the
additional amortization of Journal Technologies® intangible costs of $3,001,000, Other general and administrativie expenses
also increased by $2,632,000 (41%) primarily resufting from additional rent, sales and marketing expenses F‘or Journal
Technologies and increased professionel fees, including those associated with the two acquisitions described below and the

fiscal 2013 audit,
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The Traditional Business segment advertising revenues, which declined by §3,037,000 (21%) to $11,435000 from
$14,472,000, are very much dependent on the number of Califomia and Arizona foreclosures for which pub,tlic notice
advertising is required by law. The number of foreclosure notices published by the Company decreased by 51% during fiscal
2014 as compared to fiscal 2013, Because this slowing is expected to continue, we anticipate there will be fewer foreclosure
notice advbrtisements and declining revenues in fiscal 2015, and the Company’s ptint-based eamings will al%o decline
significantly because it will be impractical for the Company to offset all revenue loss by expense reduction. The (iompany's
smaller newspapers, those other than the Los Angeles and San Francisco Daily Journals ("The Daily Joumals"), accounted for
about 96% of the total public notice advertising revenues in fiscal 2014, Public notice advertising revenucs ajud refated
advertising and other service fees constituted about 24% of the Company's total revenues. Because of this concentration, the
Company’s revenues would be significantly affected if California (and to a lesser extent Arizona) eliminated| the legal
requirement to publish public notices in adjudicated newspapers of general circulation, as has been proposed fiom time to time.
Also, if the adjudication of one or more of the Company’s newspapers was challenged and revoked, those newspapers would
no longer be eligible to publish public notice advertising, and it could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s

revenues, -

We do, not expect to experience an offsetting increase in commercial advertising because of the continuing challenges in
the commé;rcial advertising business, which declined $423,000 (10%) to $3,848,000 from $4,271,000, The Daily Joumnals
accounted jfor about 86% of the Company's total citculation revenues, which declined by $308,000 (5%) to $6,03§,000 from
$6.346,000. The court rule and judicial profile services generated about 11% of the total circulation revenucs, with the other
newspapers and serviees accounting for the balance. Advertising service fees and other are Traditional Business segment

revenues, which include primarily (i) agency commissions received fiom outside newspapers in which the advertising is placed
and (if) fees generated when filing notices with govemment agencies. g

The Traditional Business segment operating costs and expenses increased by $1,298,000 (8%) to $17,1 54000 from
$15,856,000 primarily due to annual salary adjustments and a reduced decrease of $1,740,000 in expenses related to the

Incentive Plan, i

Journal Technologies’ revenues inereased by $9,304,000 (67%) to $23,150,000 from $13,846,000 in the brior year,
primarily due to the acquisitions of New Dawn and ISD, Licensing and maintenance fees increased by $3,045,(}O§J (31%) to
$12,987,000 from $9,942,000, Consulting fees inoreased by $596,000 (17%) to $4,002,000 from $3,406,000, Ot;hcr public
service fees increased by $5,663,000 from $498,000 {1 month only as ISD was acquired in September 2013) to $6,561,000. In
most cases; revenues from new installation projects will only be recoghized, if at all, upon completion and acceptance of their
services by the various customers. Defarred revenues on installation contracts primarily represent the fair value of advances
from customers of Yournal Technologies for software licenses and instaliation services. Afler a customer’s acceptance of the
completediproject, the advances are generally no longer at risk of refund and are therefore considered earned, Deferred revenues
on maintetance contracts represent prepayments of annual maintenance fres.
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Journal Technologies® operating expenses increased by $10,428,000 (58%) to $28,459,000 from $18,03 1,000 in the prior
year primarily due to the two acquisitions, and included an increase in the amortization costs of $3,001,000.lldentiﬁable
intangible assets, including customer relationships and developed technology, are being amortized on a straight-line basis over
five years due to the short life cycle of technology that customer relationships depend on and over 15 years for t%ix purposes.
Goodwil], which is not amortized for financial statement purposes, is amertized over a 15-year period for tax purposes.
Goodwil! represents the expected synergies in expanding the Company’s software business. Goodwill is e?;aluated for
impairment annually, or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the value may not be recoverable.
Considered factors for potential goodwill impairment evaluation include the cument year’s business proﬁtal:‘iility before
intangible amortization, fluctuations of revenues, changes in the market place, the status of installation contracts and new
business, among other things. The Company is continuing to update and upgrade its software products. These costs are
expensed as incurred and will materially impact eamings at least through the foreseeable future, |

income tax

The: Company recorded an income tax benefit of $490,000 on pretax income of $141,000 in fiscal 2014, The
Huction and

benefit was higher than the amount computed using the statutory rate because of the dividends received de
the domestic production activity deduction. On pretax income of $4,569,000 for fiscal 2013, the Company redorded a tax
provision of $790,000 which was lower than the amount computed using the statutory rate primarily because of the available
dividends received deduction and the domestic production activity deduction. The Company’s effective tax raie was -348%
and 17%|for fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The% Company’s consolidated balance sheet at June 30, 2014, its consolidated statements of comprehensive i
for the thiree months and nine months ended June 30, 2014 and its consolidated statement of cash flows for the
ended Juhe 30, 2014 were restated to record a tiability for an uncertain tax position as discussed below.

At September 30, 2014, the Company accrued a liability of approximately $3,244,000 for uncertain and unrec
benefits relating to an acquisition in fiscal 2013. This is a result of the Company's evaluation of the tax position
prior yeat tax return resulting in the conclusion that the tax position does not meet more likely than not criteria. Tt
does not anticipate a significant increase or decrease in this liability in the next twelve months. If re

teome (loss)

ine months

ognized tax
taken in its
1e Company
ognized, it

is axpect{éd these unrecognized tax benefits would not have a significant impact to the Company’s effective tax raie. The prior
year’s inéome tax return which was filed in July 2014 reflected an income tax position contrary to the one accounted for in
purchase jaccounting in fiscal 2013, Interest and penalties of approximately $537,000 were recorded as “inferest Iand penalty
expense dccrued for uncertain and unrecognized tax benefits” in the statement of comprehensive income. i

At September 30, 2013 and 2012, there were no untecognized tax benefits for the uncertain tax positions as tlLe Company
settlod the previously claimed research and development credits in its tax returns for the fiscal 2002 to 2007 with|the Intetnal
Revenue Service in March 2012, The Company files federal income tax returns in the United States and with various state
jurisdictions and is no longer subject to exarninations for fiscal years before fiscal 2011 with regard to federal incczpe taxes and

fiscal 2010 for state income faxes.

Net incoine per share decreased to $0.46 from $2.74.

|
|
|
|
|
%
i

Fiscal 2013 compared to fiscal 2012

Dut‘iilg fiscal 2013, consolidated pretax income decreased by $3,332,000 (42%) to $4,569,000 from $7.501,000 in the
prior year. The Traditional Business segment’s pretax income decreased by $1,382,000 (14%) to $8,707,000 from $10,089,000,
primarilyl resulting from a reduction in trustee sate notice and related sorvice fee revenues of $4,454,000, partially foffset by an

increase in dividends and interest income of $574,000,

Conéo[idated revenues were $37,676,000 and $31,874,000 for fiscal 2013 and 2012, respectively. This| increase of

$5,802,000 (18%) was primarily from the additional New Dawn’s and 18SD’s revenues of $11,187,000, partially offset by the
reduction in trustee sale notice and related service fee revenues of $4,454,000. The Company’s revermes derived from the
operations of our technology business constituted about 37% and 9% (for Sustain only) of the Company’s total fevenues for

fiscal 2013 and 2012, respectively.

i
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Consolidated operating costs and expenses increased by $10,695,000 (46%) to $33,887,000 from $23,1 92,000} primarily
for Journal Technologies. Total personnel costs increased by $5,644,000 (42%) to$19,23 6,000 from $13,592,000 pritlnari!y due
to Joumal Technologies’ additional personnel costs of $8,331,000, partially offset by a decrease of $1,610,000 in tha expenses
related to the Incentive Plan. The decrease in Incentive Plan expense consisted of a reduction of $2,580,000 in the long-term
Incentive Plan accrual during fiscal 2013 due to reduced estimated current and future consolidated pretax income before this
accrual versus a reduction of $970,000 in the prior comparable year. Depreciation and amortization costs increased by
$1,938,000; (385%) to $2,441,000 mainly resulting fiom the amortization of Joumal Technologies® intangible costs of
$1,865,000) Other general and administrative expenses also increased by $3,044 000 (88%) primarily resulting fiom additional
rent, sales dnd marketing expenses for Joumal Technologies and increased professional fees, including those assoc ated with
the two acquisitions.

|

The Tiaditional Business segment advertising revenues declined by $4,749,000 from $19,221,000 to $14,472,000
primarily because the number of foreclosure notices published by the Company decreased by 51% during fiscal 2013 as
compared to fiscat 2012. Although public notice advertising revenues were down compared to the prior yeat, the Coalpany stil}
continued fo benefit from a relatively large number of foreclosures in California and Arizona compared to historical foreclosure
rates. Along with stowing due to general improvements in the economy, effective January 1,2013, the California Homeowner’s
Bill of Rigfhts imposed new requirements that have contributed to the slowdown in foreclosures. The Company's smaller
newspapers, those other than The Daily Journals, accounted for about 95% of the total public notice advertising rgvenues in
fiscal 2013, Public notice advertising revenues and related advertising and other service fees constituted about 35% of the
Company'sitotal revenues during fiscal 2013,

The commercial advertising business declined $358,000 from $4,629,000 ta $4,271,000. The Daily Journals accpunted for
about 85%iof the Company's total circulation revenues, which declined by $184,000 from $6,530,000 to $6,346,000 The court
rule and ju?licial profile services generated about 12% of the total circulation revenues, with the other niewspapers and services
accounting for the balance,

There were pretax other-than-temporary impairment losses on investments of $1,719,000 versus $2,855,000 ilLl the prior
year, Thes¢ losses impact the results of The Traditional Business, but it is important to note that these write-downs were the
result of an accounting requirement and they did not reflect that a loss was actually realized due to a sale of the gecurity.

JYournal Technologies® business 'sagment had a pretax loss of $4,138,000 compared to $2,188,000 in the prior year
primarily resulting from its intangible amortization costs of $1,865,000. Most of the intangible amortization costs related to
New Dawn, which was acquired in fiscal 2013 and therefore not part of our fiscat 2012 results.

In fiscal 2013, Journal Technologies’ recognized $9,942,000 in revenues from fees for the licensing and maintenance of its
software produets, compared to Sustain’s licensing and maintenance revenues of $2.205,000 in fiscal 2012. Sustain’s portion of
the 2013 licensing and maintenance revenues was $2,338,000, and the balance was attributable to New Dawn and I§D. Jounal
Technologics recognized consulting revenues of $3,406,000 in fiscal 2013 compared to $713,000 in fiscal 2012 (for Sustain

only).

2%
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On pretax income of $4,569,000 and $7,901,000 for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respe stively, the
Company recorded a tax provision of $790,000 and $2,360,000 respectively, which was lower in each case than the amount
computed using the statutory rate because of the available dividends received deduction, the domestic production activity
deduction and a change in California franchise taxes regarding revenue allocation among states resuiting in a Iowed California
tax rate which reduced the tax rate in fiscal 2013 and prior years® deferred taxes on the unrealized appreciation of the
Company’s investments by about $500,000. In addition, in fiscal 2012, there was a reversal of an uncertain fax liab.klity as the
Company feached an agreement with the Intemal Revenue Service in Match 2012 to settle the Company’s previously claimed
research arid development credits in its tax returns for the years 2002 to 2007. Consequently, the Company’s effective tax rate
was 17% and 30% for fiscal 2013 and 2012, respectively. One of the acquisitions was structured as a stock acquisitipn with an
Internal Revenue Code Section 338 (h) (10) election, which resulted in the acquisition being treated as an acquisition of assets
for income tax purposes. The other acquisition was structured as an asset purchase. As such, the amounts allocated tp customer
relationships and developed technology as well as goodwill are amortized over a 15-year period on a straight-line basis for tax
purposes. Differences in the amortization period and methods between book and tax useful lives will result in deferred tax

assets or liabilities.
Net income per share decreased to $2.74 from $4.01.

IR EREEERERE RN

Compiehensive income includes net income and unrealized net gains on investments, net of taxes, as summarized below:

Comprehensive Income ‘,

Fiscal |

2014 2013 2012
Net income $ 631,000 $ 3,779,000 § 5,541,000

Net increase in unrealized appreciation of investments (net of

taxes)! 22,393,000 21,292,000 15,085,000

Reclassilication adjustment of other-than-temporary |
impaifment losses reco gnized in net income (net of taxes) e 1,051,000 1,720,000

§  23024,000 $§ 26,122,000 § 22346000

25
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The Company’s Traditional Business is one reportable segment and the other is Journal Technologies. Additibnal detail

Includes (i) New Dawn’s financial results fiom December
$10,403,000 and expenses 0f $10,625,000 {inclu
September 2013 financial results with revenues 0
expenges of $278,000).

+% Tncludes only Sustain’s financial results.
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about each'of the reportable segments is set forth below:
Reportable Segments
Traditional Joumal
_ Business Technologies* Total
Fiscal 2014 |
Revenues 1
Advertising, net $ 11,435,000 §$ — § 1 1,435,000
Circulation 6,038,000 -— 6,q38,000
Advertising service fees and other 2,800,000 . 2,800,000
Licensing and maintenance fees o 12,987,000 12,9!87,000
Congulting fees — 4,002,000 4,002,000
Other public service fees 6,161,000 6,161,000
Income (loss) from operations 3,119,000 (5,309,000) (2,190,000)
Pretax:income (loss) 5,890,000 (5,749,000) 141,000
Incomé tax (expense) benefit (1,860,000) 2,350,000 490,000
Net ingome (loss) 4,030,000 (3,399,000) * 631,000
Amortization of infangible assets e 4,866,000 4,866,000
Fiscal 2013%
Revenues
Advertising, net $ 14,472,000 — §  14472,000
Circulation 6,346,000 - $,346,000
Advertising service fees and other 3,012,000 e 3,0[12,00C
Licénsing and maintenance faes - 9,942 000 9,942,000
Consulting fees — 3,406,000 3,496,000
Other public service fees — 498,000 498,000
Income (loss) from operations 7,574,000 (4,185,000) 3,789,000
Other-than-temporary impairment losses on investments 1,719,000 -—n 17 19,000
Protax income {loss) 8,707,000 4,138,000} 4,S|69,000
Income tax {expense) benefit (3,053,000) 2,263,000 (’{90,000)
Net ingome (loss) 5,654,000 (1,875.,000) 3,779,000
Anortization of intangible assets — 1,865,000 1,5%65,000
Fiscal2012X* i
Revenues :
Advertising, net $ 19,221,000 § — $ 19,221,000
Circulation 6,530,000 o 6,530,000
Advertising service fees and other 3,205,000 — 3 %OS,OOO
Licensing and maintenance fees — 2,205,000 2, 1 05,000
Consulting fees — 713,000 ?13,000
Income (loss) from operations 10,877,000 (2,195,000) 8,9’82,{)00
Otherithan-temporary impairment losses on investments 2,855,000 e 2,35 5,000
Pretax income (loss) 10,089,000 (2,188,000) 7,501,000
Incomie tax (expense) benefit (3,340,000) 980,000 (2,360,000)
Net income (loss) 6,749,000 (1,208,000) s,%m,ooo

]
5,2012 through September 30, 2013 with revenues of; {
ding intangible amortization expenses of $1,587,000), and (i)ISD’s
£$784,000 and expenses of $694,000 (including intangible amortization

i
|
|
L
f
:
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Disclosure of Confractual Obligations

The following table sets forth certain contractual obligations as of September 30, 2014:

Contracinal Obligations (000)

Less than More than f
1 year 2-3 years 4.5 years 5 years Total
Obligations under operating leases $ 1,042 % 983 $ 573 % 24 % 2,622
Long-term acerued liabilities —n 452 170 158 780
$ 1,042 % 1,435 % 743§ 182 § 3,402

In addition, during fiscal 2013 the Company borrowed $29,493,000 from its investment margin account for the a&quisitions
in fiscal 2013, These investment margin account borrowings de not mature. The interest rate for these investment margin
account borrowings fluctuates based on the Federal Funds Rate plus 50 basis points with interest only payable monthly, The
interest rate as of September 30, 2014 was 0.75%. Additionally, the Company accrued a liability of approximately
$3,244.000 for uncertain and unrecognized tax benefits relating to an acquisition in fiscal 2013, !
Liquidity and Capital Resources ,

During fiscal 2014, the Company's cash and cash equivalents and marketable security positions increased by $4!0,754,000.
Cash and cash equivalents were vsed primarily to complete the purchase of ISD ($480,000) and to purchase capital assets,
including computer software and office equipment ($435,000). The investments in marketable seourities, Wwhich cost
approximately $47,979,000 and had a market value of about $173,676,000 at September 30, 2014, generated approximately
$3,001,000 in dividends and interest income, which lowers the Company’s effective income tax rate because of the dividends
received deduction. As of September 30, 2014, there were unrealized investment pretax gains of $125,700,000 as compared to
$89,018,000 as of September 30, 2013, Most of the unrealized gains were in the common stocks of three U5, financial
institutions, :

The cash provided by operating activities of $4,507,000 included net increases in deferred installation cohtracts and
maintenance agreements of $2,095,000, partially offset by decreases in deferred subscriptions of $153,000, Cash F]ows from
operating activities decroased by $1,165,000 during fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2013 primarily because of the increases
in accounts receivable of $3,943,000, partially offset by the totel increases of $2.402,000 in deforred installation contracts and
deffered maintenance agreemenis and others, both of which are the result of the prior year's acquisitions. ;

As of Scptember 30, 2014, the Company had working capital of $127,465,000, including the liabilities for deferred
subscriptions and deferred installation contracts and maintenance agreements of $19,308,000, which are scheduled té) be earned
within one year, and the deferred tax liability of$48,896,000 for the unrealized gains described above. \

The Company believes that it will be able to fund its operations for the foreseeable future through its cash flows from
operating activities and its current working capital and expects that any such cash flows will be invested in its busiiwsses. The
Company may still have the ability to borrow against its marketable securities on favorable torms as it did for the New Dawn
and ISD acquisitions, The Company also may entertain additional business acquisition opportunities. Any excess|cash flows
could be used to reduce the investment margin account liability or invested as management and the Board of Dirgctors deem

appropriate at the time. 5

Such investments may include additional securities of the companies in which the Company has already invested,
securities of other companies, government securities (including U.S. Treasury Notes and Bills) or other instruinents. The
decision as to particular investments will be driven by the Company’s belief about the risk/reward-profile of thc various
investment choices at the time, and it may utilize govermnment securities as a default if attractive opportunities for a better refumn
are not available, The Company’s Chairman of the Board, Charles Munger, is also the vice chairman of Berkshire Hathaway
Ing., which maintains a substantial investment portfolio, The Company’s Board of Directors has utilized his judgment and
suggestions, as well as those of I.P. Guerin, the Company’s vice chairman, when selecting investments, and both of them will
continue to play an important role in monitoring existing investments and selecting any future investments. :

27
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As of September 30, 2014, the investments wers coficentrated in just six companies. Accordingly, a significant|decline in
the marketivalue of one or more of the Company’s investments may not be offset by the hypothetically better performance of
other investments, and that could result in a large decrease in the Company’s shareholders’ equity and, under certain
circumstanges, in the recognition of impairment losses in the Company’s income statement (such as the other-thanitemporary
impairment losses of $1,719,000 recognized in fiscal 2013 and $2,855,000 recognized in fiscal 2012). E

Critical Accounting Policics and Esfimates

The Company’s financial statements and accompanying notes are prepared in accordance with U.S, generally accepted
accounting principles. Preparing financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. These estimates and assumptions are affected by management’s '
application of accounting policies. Management believes that revenue recognition, accounting for software costs] fair value
measurement and disclosures (including for the long-term Incentive Plan liabilities), accounting for business conbbinations,
testing for goodwill impairment and income taxes are critical accounting policies and estimates,

For tHe Traditional Business, proceeds from the sale of subscriptions for newspapers, court rule books jand other
publications and other services are recorded as deferred revenue and are included in earned revenue only when the services are
provided, generally over the subscription term, Advertising revenues are recognized when advertisements are published and are
net of commissions. An allowance for doubtful accounts for receivable is recorded.

Journal Technologies recognizes revenues in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification
(“ASC”) ASC 985-605, Sofiware—Revenue Recognition and ASC 605-35 Construction-Type and Production-Type
Contracts. Revenues from leases of software products are recognized over the life of the lease while revenues frofn software
product sales are generally recognized upon delivery, installation or aceeptance pursuant to a signed agreement. Revenues from
annual license and maintenance agreements generally call for the Company to provide sofiware updates and upgrades to
customers -and are recognized ratably over the maintenance petiod. Consulting and other services are recognized upon
acceptance by the customers under the completed contract method. The Company elects to use the completed contract method
because each customer’s acceptance is unpredictable and reliable estimates of the progress towards completion canm?t be made.
Only after a customer’s acceptance of a completed project are customer advances genetally no longer at risk of refund and are
therefore considered eamned,

The Company has established Vendor Specific Objective Evidence (VSOE) of fair value of the annual mhintenance
because a substantial majority of the Journal Technologies’ actual maintenance renewals is within a narrow range of pricing as
a peroentage of the underlying license fees for the legacy contracts and is deemed substantive.
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ASC 98520, decounting for the Costs of Computer Software 1o be Sold, Leased, or Otherwise Marketed, prgvides that
costs related to the research and development of a new software product are to be expensed as incurred until the tecfmological
feasibility of the product is established. Accordingly, costs related to the development of new software products arg expensed
as inourred until technological feasibility has been established, at which time such costs are capitalized, subject t expected
recoverability, In general, “technological feasibility” is achieved when the developer has established the necess!ary skills,
hardware and technology to produce a product and a detailed program design has been (i) completed, (if) traced to the product
specifications and (iif) reviewed for high-risk development issues, The Company believes its process for developing software is
essentially completed concurrent with the establishment of technological feasibility, and accordingly, na software
development costs have been capitelized to date. }

ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement and Disclosures, requires the Company to (f) disclose the amounts of trans"fers in and
out of Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements and the reasons for the transfers and (ii) present separately information
about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements in the reconciliation of Level 3 measurements, This guidance alsp provides
clarification of existing disclosures requiring the Company to detenmine each class of its investments based on nisk and to
disclose the valuation techniques and inputs used to measute fair value for both Level 2 and Level 3 measurements. The
Company made no transfers in and out of Level 1 and Level 2 measurements in fiscal years 2012, 2013 and 2014, During that
time alt of the Company’s investments have been quoted on public markets and, therefore, all fair value calculations have been
based on Level 1 measurements. The estimated Incentive Plan’s future commitment is calculated using Level 3| inputs, as
defined in the fair value hierarchy, based on an average of the current year and the current expectation of fiscal 2015 pretax
eamings before certain items, discounted o the present value at 6% since each granted Incentive Plan Unit will exp?re oyer its
remaining Jife term of up to 10 years, g

ASC 805, Business Combinations, requires the use of the purchase method of accounting in connection with the
acquisition of businesses. This requires all of the acquired assets and liabilities to be recorded at their fair values and for the
purchase price to be allocated accordingly. Furthermore, intangible assets must be categorized and separated info t&o Zroups:
those with-an identifiable remaining useful life and those with an indefinite usefi! life. The latter is classified as goodwill, In
fiscal 2013, the acquisitions of New Dawn and ISD resulted in the Company allocating $13,400,000 to goodwiil. The
identifiable intangible assets acquired for New Dawn and ISD were based on Level 3 fair value measurements usinglan income
approach discounted to the present value.

The Company analyzes goodwill for possible impairment under ASC 350, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other, annually ot
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the value may not be recoverable. Considered factors for potential
goodwill impairment evaluation for the reporting units include current yeat’s business profitability before lintangible
amortization, fluctuations of revenues, changes in the market place, the status of installation contracts and new business, among
other things. In addition, ASC 2011-08, Testing Goodwill for Impairment, allows for the option of performing a qualitative
assessment before caleulating the fair value of a reporting unit, If it is determined based on qualitative factors that there is no
impairment to goodwill, then the fair value of a reporting unit is not needed. If a quantitative analysis is required and the unit’s
canying amount exceeds its fair value, then the second step is performed to measure the amount of potential impairment. The
Company’s annual goodwill impairment analysis in 2014 did not result in an impairment charge based on the hualitative
assessment using the above-mentioned considered factors for potential goodwill impairment, }

P
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ASC 740, Income Taxes, establishes financial accounting and reporting standards for the effect of income taxes. The
objectives of accounting for income taxes are to recognize the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and
the deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences of cvents that have been recognized in thﬁa financial
statementsior tax returns, This accounting guidance also prescribes recognition thresholds and measurement attributes for the
financial statements recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in 2 tax returh. Jﬂdgment is
required in assessing the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in the Company’s financial stzg‘tements or
tax returns, Fluctuations in the actual outcome of these firture tax consequences could materially impact the Company’s
finnancial position or its results of operations and its deferred tax liabilitios related to the net unrealized gains on inyestments,
See Note 3 of Notes to Congsolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

ASC 280-10, Segment Reporting, defines operating segments as components of a public entity that has discrete financial
information that is evaluated regularly by the Company’s Chief Executive Officer to decide how to allocate resoutces and to
assess performance. In accordance with ASC 280-10, the Company has twa reportable business segments which are: (i) the
Traditional Business and (if) Joumnal Technologies. Joumal Technologies is an aggregation of three technologyroperating
segments — Sustain, New Dawn and ISD. . J‘

|

The above discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements an¢1 the notes

thereto included in this repott. ;
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Ttem 7A. Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures about Market Risk

In December 2012, the Company borrowed from its investment margin account the purchase price of $14 mjllion for the
New Dawn acquisition, and in September 2013, it borrowed another $15.5 million for the ISD acquisition, [n each case
pledging its marketable securities as collateral, The interest rate for these investment margin account borrowmgs fluctuates
based on the Federal Funds Rate plus 50 basis points with interest only payable monthly. The interest rate as of S?ptember 30,
2014 was 0.75%, Because there has been no fluctuation in the interest rate since December 2012, the Company was not subject
to any significant interest rate risk during such period.

Eguity Pé‘ice Risk

The Company does invest in marketable securities and is subject to the equity price risk, The following table summarizes
our equity securities with significant eqmty price risk as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, The effects of a hypothetical 30%
increase and a 30% decrease in market prices as of those dates are also shown. The selected 30% hypothetical chinges do not
reflect what could be considered the best or worst case scenarios. Indeed, results could be far worse due both to fhe nature of
equity markets and the aforementioned concentrations existing in our equity investment portfolio.

Equity Price Risk (000)

Estimated I-Iypo{?hetical
Fair Value  Percentage

after Increase
Hypothetical Hypothetical (Decrgase)in
Price Change in  Shareholders’
Fair Value Change Prices Bquity
September 30,2014
30% 362
Equity securities $ 165,734  increase  $ 215454  increase
30% 36%
decrease 116,014  deciease
September 30,2013
30% 34%
Equity securities 129,699  incroase 168,609  increase
30% 34"/f
decrease 90,789  decieass
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Item$.  PFinancial Statements and Supplementary Dita
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Daily Journal Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Daily Journal Corporation as of September 30, 2014 and the
rolated consolidated statements of comptehensive incoms, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company s management, Our responsibility is to express an opinioh on these
financial statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards ofthe Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain jeasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are fiee of material misstatement, An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the antounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates|made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion, |
|

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements refened to above present fairly, in all material respects, fi‘lﬁ'} financial
position of Daily Journal Corporation at September 30, 2014, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows
for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boald (United
States), Daily Journal Corporation's intemal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2014, based on crileria

established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO) and our report dated January 28, 2015 expressed an adverse opinion thereon.

/s/ BDO USA,LLP |

Los Angeles, Califomia
Tanuary 28,2015
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Daily Journal Corporation
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance shoet of Daily Journal Corporation as of September 30, 201%3, and the
related consolidated staterments of comprehensive income, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the two years in the
period ended September 30, 2013, These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our andits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boagd (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are fice of material misstatement, An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the antounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and Significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe thatlour audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. :

In our opinion, the finahcial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of Daily Journal Corporation at September 30, 2013, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows
for each of the two years in the period ended September 30, 2013, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted gccounting

principles.
{s/ Bmst &Y oung LLP

Los Angglés, California
June 24,2014
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DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS ;
September 30 |

2014 2013
ASSETS
Current ggsets
CasH and cash equivalents $  15410,000 $ 11,338,000
Marketable securities, including common stocks of $165,734,000 and bonds of
$7,942,000 at September 30, 2014 and common stocks 0of $129,699,000 and
bonds of $7,295,000 at September 30,2013 173,676,000 186,994,000
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $250,000 at September '
30,2014 and 2013 8,566,000 6,314,000
Inventories 51,000 56,000
Prepaid expenses and other assets 983,000 1,958,000
Income tax receivable 2,051,000 305,000
Total curtent assefs 200,737,000 156,965,000
Propetty, plant and equipment, at cost ‘
Land, buildings and improvements 12,814,000 12,847,000
Furnjture, office equipment and computer sofiwate 2,389,000 2,712,000
Machinery and equipment 1,864,000 2,014,000
17,567,000 17,573,000
Lessaccumulated depreciation {(8,552,000) (8,343,000)
9,015,000 9,230,000
Intangibles, net 17,744,000 22,610,000
Goodwill 13,400,000 3,400,000
Deferred incoms taxes, net 2,981,000 858,000

$ 243,877,000 § 203,063,000

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities
Accéunts payable 8 4344000 § 4.259,000
Accrued liabilities 3,118,000 4,416,000
Deferred subseriptions 3,381,000 3,534,000
Deforred installation contracts - 8,896,000 6,879,000
Deferred maintenance agreoments and others 7,031,000 6,864,000
Defemed income taxes, net 46,502,000 32,132,000
Total current liabilities 73,272,000 58,084,000
Long term liabilities
Investment margin account borrowings 29,493,000 29,493,000
Deferred maintenance agreements 180,000 269,000
Income tax payable 3,244,000 ——
Accured interest and penalty for uncertain and unrecognized tax benefits 537,000 -
Acerued liabilitics 780,000 1,870,000
Total long term abilities 34 234,000 31,632,000

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 4 and 5) — —

Shareholders' equity
Preférred stock, $.01 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized and no shares issued --- -
Common stock, $.01 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized; 1,805,053 shares

issued, including 424,307 treasury shares at September 30, 2014 and 2013 14,000 14,600
Additional paid-in capital 1,755,000 1,755,600
Retained eamings 58,301,000 57,670,000
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Accurnulated other comprehensive income i 76,301,000 531,908,000
Total shareholders' equity 136,371,000 113,347,000
' ' § 243877000 § 203,063,000

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION
CONSOLATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2014 2013 2012

Revenues : |
Adverfising, net $ 11435000 $ 14472000 § 19,221,000
Cireulation 6,038,000 6,346,000 4.530,000
Adverlising service fees and other 2,800,000 3,012,000 3205000
Licensing and maintenance fees 12,987,000 9,942,000 2,205,000
Consulting fees 4,002,000 3,406,000 i 713,000
Other public service fees 6,161,000 498,000 | —

43,423,000 37,676,000 31,874,000

Costs and expenses ‘ [

Salaries and employee benefits 25,262,000 19,236,000 13,5 62,000
Qutside services 3,212,000 3,086,000 %,956,000
Postage and delivery expenses 1,281,000 1,328,000 1,375,000
Newsptint and printing expenses 1,221,000 1,307,000 1,321,000
Depreciation and amortization 5,516,000 2,441,000 503,000
Other general and administrative expenses 9,121,000 6,489,000 3,445,000

45,613,000 33,887,000 23,192,000

(Loss) income from operations (2,190,000) 3,789,000 8,682,000

Other income {expenses)

Dividends and interest income 3,001,000 2,541,000 1,967,000
Other income 97,000 54,000 -
Interest expenge on margin loans (230,000) (97,000) —
Interest and penalty (expense) expense reversal accrued for

uncertain and unrecognized tax benefits (537,000} - | 100,000
Gains on sales of capital assets — 1,000 v 7,000
Otherthan-temporary impairment losses on investments - {1,719,000) (2,855,000)

Tncome before taxes 141,600 4,569,000 7,901,000

Benefit fiom (provision for) ingome taxes 490,000 (790,000) (2,360,000)

Net income $ 631,000 § 3,779.000 3 5,541,000

Weightod average number of common shares outstanding ~ basic and

diluted 1,380,746 1,380,746 1,380,746

Basic and diluted net income per share $ 046 § 274 % 4.01

Comprehensive income
Net income $ 631,000 $ 3,779,000 $ .F,S4 1,000
Net chiange in unrealized appreciation of investments (net of
taxes of $ 14,286,000, $13,544,000 and $9,821.000,
respectively) 22,393,000 21,292,000
Reclagsification adjustment of other-than-temporary impairment
losses recognized in net income (not of taxes of $0, $668,000

and’$1,135,000, respectively) - 1,051,000 1,720,000
§ 23024000 § 26,122,000 § 22,346,000
i

—i

5,085,000
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DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION : L
CONSOLIDATED STAYEMENTS OF SHAREHOLPERS' EQUITY

Acocumulated 5

Additional Other Total
Common Stock Treasury Stock Paid-in Retained  Comprehensive Shaieholders‘
Share  Amount Share  Amount  Capital Barnings Income quity

Balance af,

September:30,2011 1,805,053 § 18,000 (424,307) § (4,000) § 1,755,000 $48,350,000 § 14,760,000 ¥ 64,879,000
Net income e - - — 5,541,000 — 5,541,000
Unrealized
gains on
investments - e - — nem 15,085,000 15,085,000
Reclagsification
adjustment of
otherthan-
temporary
{mpaimmernt
losses

recognized in

net inbome {net

oftaxes) - - - - — - 1,720,000 1,720,000
Balance ab :
September 30,2012 1,805,053 18,000 (424,307) (4,000) 1,75 5,000 53,891,000 31,565,000 87,225,000

Net income - e — 3,779,000 . 3,779,000

Unrealized gain

on investments - — o -— - -

Reclagsification

adjustment of

other-than- -

temporary

impaiiment

fosses

recognized in

net intome (net

21,292,000 21,292,000

of taxes) T o= - e — e 1,051,000 1,051,000
Balance at
September 30,2013 1,805,053 $ 18,000 (424,307) (4,000) § 1,755,000 $57,670,000 § 53,908,000 $113,347,000
Net iricome - - e 631,000 — 631,000

Unrealized gain
on investments - - - - -~

Balance at
Septomber 30,2014 1,805,053 § 18000 _(424307) $ (4,000 § 175,000 $58,301,000 § 76,301,000 $136,371,000

22,393,000 22,393,000

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
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2014 2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities }
Nat income $ 631,000 § 3,779,000 § i ,541,000
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by ,
operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 5,516,000 2,441,000 503,000
Deferred income taxes (2,039,000) (493,000) (261,000}
Discount eamed on bonds (3,000) (2,000) {4,000)
Other-than-temporary impairment losses on investments e 1,719,000 2,855,000
Changes in assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in current assets (et of acquisitions)
Accounts receivable, net (2,252,000) 1,691,000 886,000
Inventories 5,000 {13,000) 1,000
Prepaid expenses and other assets 975,000 252,000 {9,000)
Income tax receivable (1,746,000) (109,000) -
Increase {decrease) in liabilities (net of acquisitions)
Accounts payable §5,000 (155,000) (235,000)
Accrued liabilities (1,851,000) (3,016,000) (1,415,000)
Income taxes 3,244.000 - (952,000}
Deferred subscription (153,000) {115,000) (170,000}
Deferred instatiation contracts 2,017,000 (593,000) -
Deferred maintenance agreements and others 78,000 286,000 219,000
Net cash provided by operating activities 4,507,000 5,672,000 6,959,000
Cash flows from investing activities
Maturities and sales of U.S. Treasury Bills - 800,000 I’%AO0,000
Purchgses of U.S, Treasury Bills - e (7,099,000)
Purchases of marketable securities - - (20,961,000)
Acquisition of New Dawn Technologies, Inc, (net of cash
acquired) - (11,878,000) -
Acquisition of ISD Technologies, Inc. (net of cash acquired) - {13,454,000) —
Purchases of propetty, plant and equipment (435,000) (280,000) {(372,000)
Net cash used for investing activities (435,000) (24,812,000) (9,032,000}
Cash flows from financing activities
Tnvestment margin account borrowing - 29,493,000 n—
- 29,493,000 -
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,072,000 10,353,000 (2,073,000)
Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year 11,338,000 985,000 3,058,000
End ofyear $ 15410000 $ 11,338,000 985,000
Interest paid during year $ 230,000 § 97,000 186,000
Income taxes paid during year 3 28,000 3§ 1,354,000 3,573,000
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _

1. THE GOMPANY AND OPERATIONS i

Daily Joumnal Corporation (the “Company™) publishes newspapers and web sites covering Califomia and Arizo}%a, as well
as the California Lawyer magazine, and produces several specialized information services, It also serves as a newspaper
representative specializing in public notice advertising.

Journal Technologies, Inc. (“Journal Technologies”), a wholly-owned subsidiary, includes as of October 1, 2014, the
combined loperations of Sustain Technologies, Inc. (“Sustain™), a wholly-owned subsidiary since 2008, New Dawn
Technologies, Inc. (“New Dawn”), acquired in December 2012); and ISD Technologies, Inc, (“ISD”), acquired in September
2013. Jouma! Technologies supplies case management sofiware systems and related products to courts and othier justice
agencies, including administrative law organizations, county governments and bar associations, These organizations use the
Joumal Teéhnologies family of products to help manage cases and information electronically, to interface with other critical
justice parthers and to extend electronic services to the public, including a secure website to pay traffic citations online, and bar
membets, These products are licensed to more than 500 organizations in 41 states, 3 {J.8. territories and 2 other countries. Even
though the three companies wore not combined into one entity until after the end of fiscal 2014, for ease of comparison, we
refer to our'technology business in these Notes as “Tournal Technologies”.

Essentially all of the Company’s operations are based in California, Arizona and Utah,
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and Jourhal
Technologies. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation,

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year financial statement presentation.

Concentrations of Credit Risk: The Company extends unsecured credit to most of its advertising custotmers. Thel Company
recognizes: that extending credit and setting appropriate reserves for receivables is largely a subjective decision based on
knowledge of the customer and the industry. Credit exposure also includes the amount of estimated unbilled sg?es' Credit
Limits, setting and maintaining credit standatds, and managing the overall quality of the credit portfolio is largely centralized.
The level of credit is influenced by the customer’s credit and payment history which the Company monitors when eitabl ishing
a reserve.

The Company maintains the reserve account for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customefs to make
required payments. If the financial conditions of its customers were t0 deteriorate or its judgmenis about their abilifies to pay
are incorrect, additional allowances might be required and its results of operations could be materially affected.
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Cash equivalents: The Company considers all highly liquid investments with insignificant risk of change in va;]ue within
3 months to be cash equivalents, !
1
|

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: The canying amounts of cash, accounts receivable and accountjs payable
approximage fair value because of their short maturities. In addition, the Company has investments in marketable seéurities, all
categorized as “available-for-sale” and stated at fair market value, with the unrealized gains and losses, net of taxes, teporfed in
“Accumulated other comprehensive income” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The Company uges quoted
prices in active matkets for identical assets (consistent with the Level 1 definition in the fair value hierarchy) to measure the fair
value of its investments on a recurring basis pursuant to Accounting Standards Codification (“*ASC™) Topic 820, Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosures, At September 30, 20 14, the aggregate fair market value of the Company’s marketable securities
was $173,676,000. These investments had approximately $125,700,00¢ of unrealized gains before taxes of $48,896,000. Most
of the unrealized gains were in the common stocks of three U.S, financial institutions. The bonds have a maturity date in 2039
and are classified as “Current assets” because they are available for sale. At September 30, 2013, the Company had EAjmu'keikable:
securities at fair market value of approximately $136,994,000, including approximately $89,018,000 of unrealized gllins before

taxes 0f$34,610,000.
Investment in Financial [nstruments

September 30,2014 September 30,2013
~Aggregate  Amortized/Adjusted =~ Prefax Aggregate  Amortized/Adjusted  [Pretax
fairvalue cost basis unrealized fair value cost basis unrealized
gaing rgains
Marketable |
securifies
Common stocks  $165,734,000 § 43,042,000 $122,692,000 $129,699,000 $ 43,042,000 $8§,657',000
Bonds 7,942,000 4,934,000 3,008,000 7,295,000 4,934,000 2,361,000
$173,676,000 § 47976000 $125,700,000 $136,994,000 $ 47,976,000 $89,018,000

{
The Company performed separate evaluations for impaired equity securities quarterly to determine if the unrealjzed losges
were otherithan-temporary. This evaluation considered a number of factors including, but not limited to, the length of time and
extent to which the fair value had been less than cost, the financial condition and near term prospects of the issuer and the
Company’s ability and intent to hold the securities until fair value recovers. The assessment of the ability and intént fo hold
these seculities to recovery focuses on liquidity needs, asset/liability management and portfolio objectives, As of September
30, 2014, there were no unrealized losses related to +the marketable securities. In fiscal 2013 there were other-thanrtemporary
impairment losses of $1,719,000 ($1,051,000 net of taxes) related to the marketable socurities of one issuer; and were
recognized in camings as U.S. GAAP requires that the Company recognize other-than-temporary impairment losses In earnings
yather than in accumulated comprehensive income when the security prices remain below cost for a period of time that may be
deemed excessive even in instances where the Company possesses the ability and intent to hold the security, However, the
recording of these impairment losses does not necessarily indicate that the loss in value of these securities is permanept,
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Acquisitions:  In December 2012, the Company purchased zll of the outstanding stock of New Dawn for $14,Q(}0,000 in
cash. The results of operations of New Dawn from December 5, 2012 through September 30, 2013 have been included in the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements for fiscal 2013: revenues were $10,403,000, expenses were $10,625,000
(including lintangible amortization expenses of $1,587,000), and its pretax loss was $222,000, On September 13,2013, the
Company acquired substantially all of the operating assets and liabilities of ISD Corporation for about $16,000,000 in cash.
The resultsiof operations of ISD for the month of September 2013 have been included in the Company’s Consolidated Financial
Statements: for fiscal 2013: revenues were $784,000, expenses were $694,000 (including intangible amortization expenses of
$278,000), and its pretax income was $90,000, Both acquisitions were accounted using the purchase method of accpunting in
accordance with ASC 805, Business Combinations. The Company incurred legal and tax fees of approximately $96,000 for the
New Dawn acquisition and approximately $202,000 for the ISD acquisition during fiscal 2013, These costs were included in
“QOther geteral and administrative expenses” on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income in fiscal
2013. Thei Company acquired New Dawn and ISD to expand ifs case management software business and to broaden its
customer base in key markets,

On July 25, 2014, the Company finalized its valuation of ISD, which resulted in an allocation of $1,700,000 tg goodwiil
and a reduction of the same amount in its intangible assets. The Company allocated the ISD purchase price to tangible assets
($4,410,000 including cash of $2,546,000; accounts receivable of $1,636,000; fixed assets of $141,000; and prepaid assets of
$87,000), identifiable intangible assets (purchased software and customer relationships of $14,975,000 pursuant to the results
of a third party valuation) and liabilities ($5,112,000 including accounts payable and accrued expenses of $2,2’f0,00{) and
deferred maintenance agresments of $2,842,000) based on their fair values with the remaining balance in excess|of the net

assets allocated to goodwill ($1,700,000).

]
Deforred revenues on installation contracts primerily represent the fair value of advances fiom customers of ttle Joumal
Technologies for software licenses and installation services. After a customer’s acceplance of the completed project, the
advances are generally no longer at risk of refund and are therefore considered earned, Deferred revenues on maintenance
contracts represent prepayments of annual license and maintenance foes. ;

revenues and eamings of New Dawn and ISD as if the acquisitions had ocourred on October 1, 2011 because sither New
Dawn norISD previously maintained its books on an accrual basis in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles, and New Dawn’s and 1SD’s owners further operated each of the entities as an 8 corporation. As ajresult, the
Company is unable to produce meaningful pro forma numbers through the use of reasonable efforts. Hlad the apquisitions
occurred on October 1, 2011, the Company would have recorded additional interest expenses of $133,000 and $221,000 in
2013 and 2012, respectively, related to the margin account bomowings incurred to fund the acquisitions and would have
recorded additional intangible amortization of $3,370,000 and $5,235,000 in 2013 and 2012, respectively. !

The Company has determined that jt is impracticable to include supplemental pro forma information regfrding the

Intangible Assets: At September 30, 2014 and 2013, intangible assets were composed of (i) customer relatlj‘onships of
$15,946,000 and $20,310,000 (net of the accumulated amortization expenses of $6,004,000 and $1,640,000), respeoﬁtively, and
(iiy developed technology of $1,798,000 and $2,300,000 (net of accumulated amortization expenses of $727,000 and
$225,000), respectively. These intangible assets are being amortized over five years based on their estimated useful lives,
Future annual intangible amortization costs are estimated to be approximately $4,895,000 for fiscal 2015 thmugﬂ 2017 and
$3,058,000 for fiscal 2018 and none thereafter, Intangible amortization expense was $4,866,000, $1,865,000 and $0 for fiscal

2014,2013 and 2012, respectively,
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Intangible Assets
September 30,2014 September 30, 2013
Customer Developed Custotner Developed

Relationships Technology Total Relationships Technology Totgl

Gross intangible $ 21,950,000 $ 2,525,000 $24,475000 § 21,950,000 § 2,525,000 $ 24,475,000
Accumulated amortization _ (6,004,000) (727,000)  (6,731,000) (1,640,000} (225,000)  (1,865,000)
$ 15,946,000 § 1,798,000 §17,744,000 $ 20,310,006 $ 2,300,000 $22,610,000

Goodwill:  The Company accounts for goodwill in accordance with ASC 350, Intangibles — Goodwill gnd Other.
Goodwill is not amortized for financial statement purposes but evaluated for impairment annually, or whenever events or
changes in-circumstances indicate that the value may not be recoverable. The Company performed qualitative assesrsments for
its New Dawn and ISD reporting units and determined there were no substantive changes during the current year and no
indication of impairment. Goodwill represents the expected synergies in expanding the Company’s software; business.
Considered factors for potential goodwill impairment evaluation for the reporting units include the current year’s business
profitability before intangible amortization, fluctuations of revenues, changes in the market place, the status of ibstal]ation
contracts and new business, among other things, As of September 30, 2014 and 2013, there was goodwill of $ 13,400,P00.

|

Prepaid and Other Assets: Included in other asssts are in-progress installation service costs for New Dawn prcl»jects from
the acquisition for which revenues have not yet been recognized and are deferred. ;

i

Inventories: Inventories, comprised of newsprint and paper, are stated at cost, on a first-in, first-out basis, which d;oes not
exceed curtent market value. [

T

Property, plant and equipment: Property, plant and equipment are carried on the basis of cost or fair valua‘ for assets

acquired in business combinations, Depreciation of assets is provided in amounts sufficient to depreciate the cost of related
assets over their estimated vseful lives ranging from 3 — 39 years, At September 30, 2014, the estimated useful lives V&ere {5 -
39 years for building and improvements, (i) 3 — 5 years for fumiture, office equipment and software, and (iii) 3 ~ 10 years for
machinery:and equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the term of the related leases or the useﬁllllife of the
assets, whichever is shorter. Assets are depreciated using the straight-line method for financial statements and lecelerated
method for tax purposes, Depreciation and amortization expenses were $650,000, $576,000 and $503,000 for fiscal 2014,2013

and 2012, respectively.

Significant expenditures which extend the useful lives of existing assets are capitalized, Maintenance and repajr costs are
expensed as incurred. Gains or losses on dispositions of assets are reflected in current camings.

Impatrment of Long-Lived Assets: The Company ev aluates long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. There were no such impairments identified

during fiscal 2014,2013 and 2012,

Journal Technologies’ Software Development Costs: Development costs related to software products developed for sale or
licensing are expensed as incurred until the technological feasibility of the product has been cstablished. Thereafter, until the
product isireleased for sale, software development costs are capitalized and reporfed at the lower of unamottized gost or net
realizable ivalue of the refated product. The establishment of technological feasibility and the ongoing ass;ssment of
recoverability of costs require considerable judgment by the Company with respect to certain internal and exte ral factors,
including,: but not limited to, anticipated future product revenue, estimated economic life and changes in har{dware and

software technology, ‘t

The Company believes its process for developing software is essentially completed concurrent with the establifishmcnt of
technological feasibility, and accordingly, no sofiware development costs have been capitalized to date. !

M
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Revenue Recognition: For the Traditional Business, proceeds from the sale of subscriptions for newspapers,icout*t rule
books and other publications and other services are recorded as deferred revenue and are included in eamed revenue only when
the services are provided, generally over the subscription term. Advertising revenues are recognized when advertisements are
published and are net of commissions. The change in allowance for doubtful accounts is as follows, *‘

Additions Accounts J
Balance at  Chargedio  Charged Balance

Beginning Costs and off less htEnd
Dreserviption of Year Lxpenses  Recoverics of Year
Zojjlowance for doubtful accounts $ 250,000 $ 41000 $ (41,000) $§ {250,000
zoi?lowwice for doubtful accounts $ 200000 $ 144000 $§ (94,000) $ | 250,000
Zojflzlowance for doubtful accounts $ 250000 $ 49000 $ (99,000) $ | 200,000

Joumal Technologies recognizes tevenues in accordance with the provisions of ASC 985-605, Software—Revenue
Recognition and ASC 605-35 Construction-Type and Production-Type Contracts. Revenues from leases of software products
are recognized over the life of the lease while revenues from software product sales are generally recognized upo{a detivery,
instaflation or acceptance pursuant to a signed agreement. Revenues from annual license and maintenance contract§ generally
call for the Company to provide software updates and upgrades to customers and are recognized ratably over the maintenance
period. Consulting and other services are recognized upon acceptance by the customers under the completed contract method.
The Company elects to use the completed contract method because each customer’s acceptance is unpredictable ahd reliable
estimates f the progress towards completion cannot be made. Only after a customer’s acceptance of a completed project are
customer advances generally no longer at risk ofrefund and ere therefore consideréd eamed.

Approximately 53%, 37% and 9% of the Company’s revenues in fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, th\',e derived
from sales, and leases of software licenses, anhual maintenance contract and support services and consulting services that

typically include implementation and training.

The Company has established Vendor Specific Objective Bvidence (VSOE) of fair value of the annual maintenance
because a substantial majority of the Joumal Technologies’ actual maintenance renewals is within a narrow range of pricing as
a percentage of the underlying license foes for the legacy contracts and is deemed substantive.

Management Incentive Plan: In fiscal 1987, the Company implemented & Management Incentive Plan {the|“Incentive
Plan”) thaf entitles a participant to participate in pretax earnings before adjustment for certain items of the Company. In 2003,
the Company modified the Incentive Plan to provide participants with three different types of non-negotiable incentive
certificates based on the nature of the particular participants’ responsibilities. Each certificate entitles the participant to a
specified share of the applicable pretax earnings in the year of grant and to receive the same percentage of pretax earings to be
generated iin cach of the next nine years pravided they remain with the Company or ate in retirement after working for the
Company to age 65. If a participant dies while any of his or her certificates remain outstanding, future payments under those
certificates will be made to the deceased participant’s beneficiaries, During fiscal 2012, the Company added a supplemental
Addendurh to the Sustain Certificate, This Addendum defines how the value of a Sustain Certificate will be paid upon a
triggering event sach as a sale of Sustain or an initial public offering.
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Employees and consultants of New Dawn and ISD were not eligible to participate in the Incentive Plan, but itarting in
fiscal 2015:the Company has combined Sustain, New Dawn and ISD into one company, and the employess and consultants of
the combined entity will be able to pasticipate in new “Journal Technologies Certificates”. !

Certificate interests entitled participants to receive 3.85%, 3.66% and 3.60% (amounting to $265,490, $35P,120 and
$513,500, respectively) of Daily Joumal non-consolidated income before taxes, workers’ compensation, squlemental
compensation and certain other items, 9.25%, 7.95% and 8.23% (amounting to $0 for all three years) for Sustain and 8.2%,
8.2% and 8.2% (amounting to $0, $241,240 and $701,520, respectively) for Daily Joumnal consolidated in fiscal 2014, 20 13
and 2012, The Company accrued $780,000 and $1,620,000 as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, for the Plan’s
future com{nitment, which included a decroase in fiscal 2014 of $840,000 or $.61 per share outstanding on a pretax basis and a
decrease in fiscal 2013 of $2,580,000 or $1.87 per share outstanding on a protax basis due to reduced estimated future pretax
income. The estimated Incentive Plan’s future commitment is calculated using Level 3 inputs, as defined in the|fair value
hierarchy, based on an average of the current year and the current expectation of fiscal 2015 pretax eathings before certain
items, discounted to the present value at 6% since each granted Unit will expire over its remaining Life term ofup fo IE years.

Fecome taxes: The Company accounts for income taxes using an asset and liability approach which reguires the
recognition of deferred tax liabilities and assets for the expected future consequences of temporary differences between the
cartying aounts for financial reporting purposes and the tax basis of the assets and liabilities. The Company accounts for
uncertainty in income taxes under ASC 740-10 which prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement methodology to
recognize and measure an incoms tax position taken, or expected to be taken, i a tax return. The evaluation of a tax position is
based on a two-step approach. The first step requires an entity to evaluate whether the tax position would “more likely than
not” be sustained upon examination by the appropriate taxing authority. The second step requires the tax position bi measured
at the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. Ity addition,
previousfy:recognized benefits from tax positions that no longer meet the new criteria would be derecognized. The Company
records Habilities related to uncertain tax positions in accordance with ASC 740, Tax Provisions. At September 3 0’ 2014, the
Company accrued an approximately $3,244,000 tax liability for uncertain and unrecognized tax benefits relative to an
aquisition ‘in fiscal 2013, At September 30, 2013 and 2012, there were no unrecognized tax benefits for the unkertain tax
positions as the Company sottled the previously claimed research and development credits in its tax returns for the ?rears 2002

to 2007 with the Internal Revenue Service in March 2012. [
|
Net income per common share; The net income per common share is based on the weighted average number of shares

outstanding during each year, The shares used in the calculation were 1,380,746 for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012, Thé Company
does not have any common stock equivalents, and therefore basic and diluted net income per share is the same.
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i

Use of Estimates: The presentation of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with accounting iprinciples
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect thie reporied
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The long-term Incentive Plan accrual is a $igniﬁcant
estimate and relies on projections of future pretax income. The estimated Incentive Plan’s future commitment is caletlated
using Level 3 inputs, as defined in the fair value hierarchy, based on an average of the current year and the current expectation
of fiscal 2015 pretax eamings, discounted to the present value at 6% since each granted Unit will expire over its remgining life
term of up'to 10 years, Additionally, the purchase prico allocations for New Dawn and ISD were based on asti:nltes of fair
value at the respective acquisition dates, using Level 3 measurement inputs under the fair value measurement hierarchy. Actual

results could differ from these estimates,

Accounting Standards Adopted in 2013: In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASU”) No. 2013-02, Reporting of Amounts Reclassified out of Accumulgied Other
Comprehensive Income, requiring ontities to disclose additional information with respect to changes in accumulated other
comprehensive income (AOCI) balances by component and significant items reclassified out of AOCL This ASU WT effective

beginning October 1, 2013 for the Company, and the adoption has no impact on the Company’s consolidated resuits of
operations:or financial positions because it only represents a change to the presentation and disclosure requirements.
i

New Accounting Pronouncement: In September 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-15, “Presentation of Financial fmrem ents
~ Going Concern {Subtopic 205-40): Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity's Ability to Continue as a GoingConcern”
which defines when and how companies are required to disclose going concem uncertainties; Certain disclosure are jrequired if
substantial doubt that the entity will be unable to meet its obligations as they become due within one year after the date that
the financial statements are issued (or avaitable to be issued) exists, The new standard applies prospectively to annyal periods
ending after December 15, 2016 and to annual and interim periods thereafier, Barly adoption is permitted under ULS. GAAP.

The Company will adopt this standard when necessary. 1‘

In May 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)". The amendants in this
Update establish a comprehensive revenue recognition standard for contract between a vendor and a customer for the provision
of goods and services, and the standard requires five basic steps: (i) identify the contract with the customer, (if) 1 entify the
performan¢e obligations in the contract, (iii) determine the transaction price, (iv) allocate the transaction p iice to the
performange obligations in the contract, and (v) recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance ?bligation.
This update will be effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim periods therein. Early
adoption is prohibited under U.S. GAAP. The Company has not evaluated the impact of the adoption of the ASU on the

consolidated financial statements.
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3. INCOME TAXLES

The (b:eneﬁt from) provision for income taxes consists of the following: !
'i

2014 2013 2012
Current;
Federal ' $ 1,065,000 $ 1,011,000 § 1,840,000
State 7 484,000 (228,000) 781,000
. 1,549,000 783,000 2,621,000
Deferred:
Federal (1,790,000) (30,000) (223,000)
State {249,000 37,000 (38,000)
' {2,039,000) 7,000 (261,000)

$ (490,000} $ 790,000 § 2,360,000

The differenice between the statutory foderal income tax rate and the Company’s effective rate is summarized be[r%w:

|
2014 2013 2012

Statutory federal income tax rate 34.0% 34.0% L340%
Staté fianchise taxes (net of federal tax benefit) (38.3) - 5.0 P58
Business meals/gifts 36.1 1,0 i 0.2
Domestic production activity deduction (135.7) 2.0) P (26)
Dividends received deduction (424.6) (10.2) 4.2)
Penalties for uncertain and unrecognized tax benefits 1155 — —
Reversal of uncertain tax position - (3.6)
Prior year true-up 84.70 o —
Foreign tax credits (17.9) 0.3) 0.3)
Rifect of state rate change on beginning balance of deferred

‘tax liabilities - 24 -
Other (1.3) (7.8) 0.5

Effective tax rate (347.5%) 17.3% 29.8%

At September 30, 2014, the Company s deferred income tax assets and liabilities were comprised of the following:

2014 2013 2012
Deferred tax assets attributable to:
Accrued liabilities, including supplemental compensation
and vacation pay acerual $ 1,063,000 § 1,083,000 $ 1,817,000
Impairment losses ot investments 1,779,000 1,778,000 1,135,000
Bad debt reserves not yet deductible 78,000 78,000 30,000
Depreciation and amortization 1,822,000 356,000 49,000
Deferred revenues 1,116,000 - -
QOther 12,000 41,000 262,000
Total deferred tax assets 5,870,000 3,336,000 3,343,000
Deferred tax liabilities attributable to: ,
Unrealized gains on investments (48,896,000) (34,610,000} (20,898,000)
Goodwill (495,000) - -
Total deferred tax liabilities (49,391,000) (34,610,000) (20,898,000)
Net deferred income taxes $ (43,521,000) $  (31,274,000) $ (47,555,000)

The Company recorded an income tax benefit of $490,000 on pretax income of $141,000 in fiscal 2014. The income tax
benefit was higher than the amount computed using the statutory tate because of the dividends received deduction and the
domestic production activity deduction, On pretax income of $4,569,000 for fiscal 2013, the Company recarded a tax
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provision of $790,000 which was lower than the amount computed using the statutory rate primarily because of the available
dividends received deduction and the domestic production activity deduction. The Company’s effective tax rate vyas -348%
and 17% for fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively. B ' \
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The Company evaluated a tax position taken on its prior year tax return and determined that the position does not meet
the more likely than not criteria. At September 30, 2014, the Company accrued a liability of approximately $3,2:fr4,000 for
uncertain and unrecognized tax benefits relating to an acquisition in fiscal 2013, The Company does not anticipate a
significant:increase or decrease in this liebility in the next twelve months, If recognized, it is expected these unrecognized tax
benefits would not have a significant impact to the Company’s effective tax rate. The prior year’s income tax retum hich was
filed in July 2014 reflected an income tax position contrary to the one accounted for in purchase accounting in December 2012,
Interest and penalties of approximately $537,000 wers recorded as “interest and penalty expense accrued for uncertain and
unrecognized tax benefits” in the statement of comprehensive income, A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance
for liabilities associated with these uncertain and unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

Uneertain Tax Liabilify
2014 2013 2012

Beginning balance $ —_— 3 — } 700,000

Added liability for the prior year 2,393,000 - s

Added liabitity for the current year 851,000 — o

Tax payment upon setflement — — (418,000)

Reduction adjustment — - (282,000)
Ending balance $ 3244000 § — 3 —

At September 30,2013 and 2012, there were no unrecognized tax benefits for the uncertain tax positions as thg Company
settled theipreviously claimed resoarch and development credits in its tax retums for the fiscal 2002 to 2007 with the Intemal
Revenue Service in March 2012, The Company files foderal income tax returns in the United States and with various state
jurisdictions and is no longer subject to examinations for fiscal years before fiscal 2011 with regards to federal ncome taxes

and fiscal 2010 for state income taxes.

The subject acquisition was structured as a stock acquisition with an Intemal Revenue Code Section 338(h)(10) election,
which results in the acquisition being treated as an acquisition of assets for income tax purposes. The othér acquisition was
structured as an asset purchase. As such, the amounts alocated to customer relationships and purchased developed technology
as well as goodwill are amortized over a 15-year period on a straight-line basis for tax purposes, Differences in the amortization
petiod and methods between book and tax useful lives will result in deferred tax assets or liabilities.
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4. DEBTS AND COMMITMENTS !

In Degember 2012, the Company borrowed from its investment margin account the purchase price of $14 milljon for the
New Dawn acquisition, and in September 2013, it borrowed enother $15.5 million for the ISD acquisition, in|each case
pledging its marketable seourities as collateral, The interest rate for these investment margin account borowings fluctuates
based on the Federal Funds Rate plus 50 basis points with interest only payable tnonthly. The interest rate as of September 30,
2014 was 0.75%. These investment margin account borrowings do not mature. lL

The Company owns its facilities in Los Angeles and leases space for its other Daily Jounal offices under opera ing loases
which expire at various dates through fiscal 2020, During fiscal 2014, the Company renewed its office lease bor its San
Francisco office for five years to end on October 31, 2019 with currently a monthly rent of approximately $22,00£ for about
6,200 square feet. The Logan, Utah office operating lease entered into in December 2012 in connection with the New Dawn
acquisition requires a monthly rent of $42,000 for about 30,200 square foet and will expire in December 2015,|subject to
certain extension options, Part ofthis office space is sub-leased to third parties under short-term leases for approximately $5,000
per monthISD leases about 7,100 square feet of office space, expiring in March 2017, in Corona, California, for a monthly rent
of about $12,000, The Company is responsible for a portion of maintenance, insurance and property tax expenses relating to
these leased properties and ceftain other leased properties. Rental expenses for fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012 were

$1,182,000, $884,000 and $455,000, respectively.
The following table represents the Company’s future obligations:

Payments due by Fiscal Year

2020
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 and after Total
Obligations under operating leases ~ $1,042,000 $ 583,000 $400,000 $283,000 $290,000 $ 24,000 $2,622,000
Long-termiaccrued liabilities — 323000 129000 97,000 73,000 158,000 780,000

$1,042,000 $906,000 $529,000 380,000 §363,000 §$182,000 $3,402,000

5, CONTINGENCIES
From time to time, the Company is subject to litigation arising in the normal course of its business. While it is not possible

to predict the results of such litigation, management does not believe the ultimate outcome of these mattors will ha.v? amaterial
effect on the Company s financial position or results of operations or cash flows.
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6. REPORTABLE SEGMENTS

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise which has discrete financial information that is evaluated
regularly by the Company’s Chief Executive Officer to decide how to allocate resources and to access performance.

In accordance with ASC 280-10, Segment Reporting, the Company has two segments of business, The G}ompany’s
reportable segments are: (i) the Traditional Business and (if} Joumnal Technologies. Journal Technologies is an aggregation of
three techhology operating segments — Sustain, New Dawn and ISD. All inter-segment transactions were eliminated.
Summarized financial information concerning the Company’s reportable segments is shown in the following table:

hltp:fmvww.sac.golerchives!edgarldataﬁ83412/00014377491 £001398/d co20140930_10K.him

Reportable Segments
Traditional Journal
Business Technologies* Total
Fiscal 2014
Revenues
Advertising, net $ 11,435,000 § — $ 11435000
Circulation 6,038,000 —_ 6,038,000
Advertising service fees and other 2,800,000 _— 2,800,600
Licensing and maintenance fees — 12,987,000 12,987,000
Censulting fees - 4002000 4,002,000
Other public service fees — 6,161,000 6,161,000
Income (foss) from operations 3,119,000 (5,309,000) (2,190,000)
Pretax income (loss) 5,890,000 (5,749,000) 141,000
Income tax (expense) benefit (1,860,000) 2,350,000 490,000
Net income (loss) 4,030,000 (3,399,000) 631,000
Total assets 191,904,000 51,973,000 243,877,000
Capital expenditures 110,000 325,000 435000
Amortization of intangible assets wm 4,866,000 4,866,¢00
I
Fiscal 2013% l
Revenues
Advertising, net $  14472,000 $ — 14,4’72,%00
‘Circulation 6,346,000 - 6,346,000
Advertising service fees and other 3,012,000 - 3,01 2,600
Licensing and maintenance fees e 9,942,000 9,942,%00
Consulting fees e 3,406,000 3,406,000
Other public service fees - 498,000 498,000
Income (loss) from operations 7,974,000 (4,185,000) 3,789,000
Other-than-temporary impairment fosses on
investments 1,719,000 -— 1,719,%00
Pretax income (loss) 8,707,000 (4,138,000) 4,569,000
Income tax (expense) benefit (3,053,000) 2,263,000 {7 90,900)
Net income (loss) 5,654,000 (1,875,000} . 3,779,000
Total assots 155,452,000 47,611,000 203,063,900
Capital expenditures 96,000 184,000 280,000
Amortization of intangible assets -— 1,865,000 1 ,865,5500
Fiscal 2012%* }
Revenues {
Advertising, net $ 19221,000 § 19,221,000
Circulation 6,530,000 - 6,530,000
Advertising service foes and other 3,205,000 — 3,205,000
Licensing and maintenance fees — 2,205,000 2,205,000
Consulting fecs - 713,000 713,000
Tcome (loss) from operations 10,877,000 (2,195,000) 8,682,000
Other-thantemporary  impairment  losses  on '
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investments 2,855,600 -—
Pretax income (loss) 10,089,000 (2,188,000)
Income tax benefit (cxpense) | (3,340,000) 980,000
Net income (loss) 6,749,000 (1,208,000)
Total assets 119,833,000 1,131,000
Capital expenditures 320,000 52,000

* Includies (i) New Dawn’s financial results from Deceraber 5,2012 through September 30, 2013 with revenues of

2,855,000
7.901,000
(2.360,000)
5,541 ,00
120,964,000
372,000

$10,403,000 and expenses of $10,625,000 (including intangible amortization expenses of $1,587,000), and (ii)ISD’s
Septemiber 2013 financial results with revenues of $784,000 and expenses of $694,000 (including intangible amortization

expenses of $278,000),

## Includes only Sustain’s financiel results,
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7. RESULTS OF OPERATIONS BY QUARTER (UNAUDITED) i

Quarter ended i
December 31 March 31 June 30 September 30
(in thousands except per share amounts)
2014
Revenues $ 9,951 § 10,828 § 11,147  § 11,497
Costs and expenses 11,220 11,346 11410 11,637
Loss from operations (1,269) (518) (263) (140)
Othér income 619 591 276 845
Tncome (loss) before taxes (650) 73 13 705
Benéfit from (provision for) incotne taxes 10 (20) 25 47
Net income (loss) (640) 53 38 1,18
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per
sharé - (46) 04 03 8 I
2013 J
Revenues $ 7693 § 9753 % 9204 $ 11,02 )
Costs and expenses 6,992 8,616 8,758 9,521
Income from operations 701 1,137 446 1 ,503
Other income 563 524 715 697
Other-than-temporaty impatrment losses 4
on investments - e — (1,719)
Income before taxes 1,264 1,661 1,161 483
Bengfits from (provision for) income taxes 430) (510) (335) 483
Net income - 834 1,151 826 96%
Basic and diluted net income per share 60 83 60 7

The Gompany amended its Form 10-Q for the third quarter of fiscal 2014 to restate amounts due to errors in the gecounting
for income taxes in connection with one of its acquisitions in fiscal 2013 as discussed in detail in Note 3. A rec?noilia’tion
showing the effects of the restatement on the fnancial statements included in the original Form 10-Q is provided below:

Three months ended June 30,2014

Previously
Reported Adjustment Restated
(in thousands except per share amounts)
2014 -

Ravenues $ 11,147 § - $ 11,147
Costs and expenses 11,410 - i 1,41!'0
Loss from operations (263) - (263)
Other income 794 (518) 276
Income (loss) before taxes 531 (518) 13
Benefit from (provision for) income taxes 2,310 (2,285) 25
Netiincome {loss) 2,841 {2,803) 3‘8
Baste and diluted net income {loss) per share 2.06 2.03) 03

8. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has completed an evaluation of all subsequent events through the issuance date of these financial
statements and concluded that no subsequent events occurred that required recognition to the financial statements or

disclosures in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Item9.  Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Net applicable.

Item 9A. iCountrols and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

An eyaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management including
Gerald L. Salzman, its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of
the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of September 30,2014, Based on that evaluation, management concluded
that because of certain material weaknesses in its intemal control over financial reporting, as further described pelow, the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of September 30,2014,

Managenient’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Repo rting

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Rulfe 13a-15(f) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, The Company’s internal
sontrol over financial reporting has been designed to provide reasonable assurance to the Company’s management and Board
of Directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements. All internal
confrols, no matter how well designed, have irherent limitations, and sometimes they can have one or more material
wealknesses. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financia} reporting,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that e material misstatement of the company's annual or inferim consolidated financial
statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. :

Bach: year, management is required by SEC rules to evaluate the effectiveness of the Company’s intemal control over
financial reporting, That evaluation is conducted under the supervision and with the participation of Mr. Salzman, ahd is based
on the famework in Jnternal Control-Integrated Framework (1992 framework) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizatlons of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”). If we identify any material weaknesses, the rules do not Wlow us to
conclude that our internal conirol over financial reporting is effective. ' I

As 2 small company, we have seven experjenced employees in the accounting department, and three in the IT department.
Accordingly, we are not able to segregate duties to the extent we could if we had more people, and we have not sufficiently
designed and documented controls that support an offective assessment of our internal controls relating to the prevention of
fraud and possible management override of controls. Our controller and the assistant to the controller post and review gertain
joumal enries and also generate the system based financial reports used in key management review controls. Additjonally, the
controler and the assistant to the controller and department heads had administrative access to their respective IT sthemS.

Also, we do not have sufficient in-house technical accounting expertise to assess and apply accounting sta#xdards that
pertain to non-routine fransactions, to review the quartesly and annual tax analysis and provision, and to assess the adequacy of
disclosures in our quarterly and annual consolidated financial stalements. i

i

Recognizing our deficiencies, we use mitigating controls, including a vaniety of internal procedures to check and double-
check theiareas whers one person is responsible for nmultiple duties. Among other things, the Company’s monitorir{g activities
include monthly review and comparative analysis of financial, production and public information in prior perfods by the
Company!s department supervisors, the CEO/CEO and the Board of Directors, We also use a third party tax oxpert t assist with
the quarterly and annual tax ascounting, and on matters related to non-routine transactions. In addition, we belieye our most
important internal control is our hiring and retention of honest and capable people, whom we trust to do thein jobs well,
Accordingly, we believe our overall intemal control environment is sufficient for a company of our size,

In the context of the COSO framework, however, we believe that the above mentioned deficiencies constitute material
weaknesses, and therefore we must conclude that our internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of September
30,2014, In this regard, as noted elsewhere in this Form 10-K, we were required to amend our Form 10-Q for the third quarter
of fiscal 2014 to correct a misstatement in connection with our income tax accounting for one of our acquisitions. Fhis regulted
in material audit adjustments that primarily offset a previously recorded income tax benefit as well ag additional dtilosures in
our consolidated financial statements.
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Hiring additional experts and clerks to work in the accounting and IT departments would certainly help ad%lress these
issues, but we do not believe it would be a wise use of sharcholder money given how infrequently we undertake “non-routine”
transactions. That said, we intend to consider engaging additional third party consultants as appropriate to identifyj and assist
us with aceounting, tax and financial reporting issues, In addition, we intend fo analyze whether we can improve the level of
precision and redundancy in our mitigating conirols. We will also focus on improving security access controls to| determine
whether access fo the departments’ own operational systems by the controller, the assistant to the controller and depariment

heads could be limited in a way that would enhance our segregation of duties controls.

ort on o

BDO:USA, LLP, the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, has included an attestation ref
rlts in ftem

internal coptrol over financial reporting, which appeats below, Also, the Company’s consolidated financial stateme
8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Duta contain an unqualified audit opinion from BDO USA, LLP.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Daily Journal Corporation

We have gudited Daily Joumal Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2014/ based on
criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Qrganizations
of the Treddway Commission (the COSO criteria). Daily Journal Corporation’s management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Intemal Control over Financial Repo ing. Our
responsibility is fo express an opinion on the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. r

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (U niied States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether effectiye internal
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evalklating the
design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion, |
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance reéarding the
reliability of finanoial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transabtions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that r;{eipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Because of its inherent limitations, intemal control over financial reposting may not prevent or detect misstatem%ents. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become nadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over financial reporting, such that
thers is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement ofthe company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be
prevented-or detected on a timely basis. We have concluded that there are the following material weaknesses| which the
Company has identified and described in management’s assessment:

The Company does not have sufficient technical expertise in assessing and applying accounting standards to non-routine
transactions, reviewing fhe quarterly and annual tax analysis and provision, and assessing the adequacy of discloém‘cs in the
quarterly and annual consolidated financial statements. The Company amended its Form 10-Q for the third qualier of fiscal
2014 to restate amounts to comect a misstatement in the accounting for income taxes in connection with one ofits & squisitions.
This resulted in material audit adjustments the Company recorded to primarily offset the previously recorded |ncome tax
benefit as well as additional disclosures in the consolidated finaneial statements.

Additionally, the Company has not adequately designed and’ documented sufficient internal controls to sapport effective
intemal controls relating to the risk of fraud and management override of internal controls. The controtler and the iassistant to
the controller post and review journal entries and also generate the system based financial reports used in key njanagement
review cohtrols, Further, the controller and the assistant to the controller and department heads had administrati\fe access to

their respective IT systems,

These material weaknesses were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of sudit tests applied in pur audit of
the 2014;consolidated financial statements, and this report does not affect our reporl dated January 28, 2015 on those
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, Daily Journal Corporation did not maintain, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
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reporting ag of September 30, 2014, based on the COS0 critetia. We do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance
on management’s statements referring to any comective actions taken by the Company after the date of management’s
assessment, '

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Unitled States),
the consolidated balance sheet of Daily Joumal Corporation as of September 30, 2014 and the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for the year then ended and our report dated January 28, 2015
expressed an ungualified opinion thereon.

fs/ BDO USA, LLP

Los Angeles, California
January 28{2015
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Clianges in Internal Conirol over Financial Reporting ‘

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, the Company critically assessed and refined its intemal control over financial reporting
and made certain changes as deseribed below:

s moved responsibility for setting up user access rights of the Company’s Sage financial system from the accou nting
department to the IT department;

e updated some of the Company’s process documentation, primarily for the technology business;

o ad opted a control whereby the Chief Executive Officer/Chief Financial Officer or Controller initial and decyment
their review of all of the tax schedules received from the Company’s third-party tax expert; and

e instituted a process whereby the accounting and humen resources departments cross-check each other with respect to
new hires and salary changes,

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

32
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'PART I
Tiem 10, l;)irectors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance '
i

The information set forth in the tables, the notes thereto, and the paragraphs under the captions “Hlection of Directors”,
“Corporate Governance” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Company's Proxy Ftatement
for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on or about March 25, 2015 (the “Proxy Statement™), is incorporated herein

by reference.

The Cdmpany has adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to all directors, officers and emplayees of the Company, including
the Chief E_Xecutive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Controller. The Company’s Code of Ethics has been filed as Exhibit 14

hereto.
Tiem 11, Exccutive Compensation

The information set forth under the captions “Bxecutive Compensation” and “Corporate Governance” in the Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference. '

Ttem12. Security Ownership of Cerfain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stoekholder Matters

The information set forth under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in the
Proxy Statément is incorporated herein by reference.

ftem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information set forth under the caption “Corporate Govemance” in the Proxy Statement is incorporatediherein by
reference, |

Ttem 14. Principal Accouniing Fees and Services

The information set forth under the caption “Other Matters Regarding Independent Registered Public Accouniing Firm” in
the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference. '
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PART IV

Tem 15,  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

)

22
3.1

32
10.1

14
21
31

32

)
1£))
)

The following documents are filed as part of this Report:

Consolidated Financial Statements:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Cohsolidated Balance Sheets at September 30, 2014 and 2013

Congsolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended September 30,2014,2013 and 2012
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Bquity for the years ended September 30, 2014,2013 and 2012
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended September 30,2014,2013 and 2012

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Exhibits

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated September 13, 2013, by and between Daily Joumal Corporation; Technology
Acquisition Corporation; ISD Corporation; ISD Investments, LLC; Hans Imhof, Ronald C, Beach; and Matk Nielsen,

@):

Acquisition Agreement with respect to New Dawn Technologies, Inc., dated December 4, 2012, by and among Daily

Joumal Corporation, Thomas Higgins and Frank Felice, (#)
Articles of Incorporation of Daily Journal Corporation, as amended.
Amended and Restated Bylaws of Daily Journal Corporation.

Foim of Non-Negotiable Certificate Representing an Erployee Participant Interest in the Daily Joumal Corporation
(“IDJC7) Plan for Supplemental Compensation to an Employee as long as that Employee Remains Employed|by DJC or

one of its Subsidiaries, Based on Pre-tax Eamings of DIC and its Subsidiaries on a Consolidated Basis. (})
Daily Journal Cotporation Code of Ethies.
Daily Journal Corporation’s List of Subsidiaries.

i

Ceitification by Chief Bxecutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002,

Cettification by ChiefExecutive Officer and ChiefFinancial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

0f2002.

Filed jas an Exhibit bearing the same number to the current report on Form B-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange

Comenission on September 13,2013,

Filed|as an Exhibit fo the Company’s 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the Securities and, Exchange

Comuission on December 14,2012,
Management Compensatory Plan.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Sccurities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrmft has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly aunthorized,

Date: January 28,2015

DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION

By /s/ Gerald L. Salzman

Gerald L, Salzman
President

Pursupnt to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registranf and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature
s/ Charles T, Munger

Charles T. Munger

/s! Gerald L. Salzman

(Gerald L. Salzman

Jsf 1. B, Guerin

I P. Guerin

Peter Kaufinan

Gary Wilcox

Title

Chairman ofthe Board

President, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Treasurer and Director (Principal Executive
Officer, Principal Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer)

Pirector

Director

Director
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Date

January 28,2015

January 28,2015

January 28,2015
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101.INS* XBRL Instance

101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
101.CAL# ?(BRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation
101 DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition
101.LAB*XBRL Taxonmy Extension Labels
101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation
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EXHIBIT INDEX i

E |

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated Soptember 13, 2013, by and between Daily Joumal Corporation; Technology
Acquisition Corporation, ISD Corporation; ISD Investments, LLC; Hans Imhof Ronald C. Beach; and Mark
Nielsen. (&)
Acquisition Agreement with respect to New Dawn Technologies, Inc., dated December 4, 2012, by and among
Daily Journal Corporation, Thomas Higgins and Frank Felice. (#)
Atticles of Incorporation of Daity Journal Corporation, as amended.
Amended and Restated Bylaws of Daily Journal Corporation,

Yorm of Non-Negotiable Certificate Representing an Employee Participant Interest in the Daily Joumal Corporation
(“DJC™) Plan for Supplemental Compensation to an Employee as long as that Employee Remains Employgd by DIC
or one of its Subsidiaries, Based on Pre-tax Eamings of DIC and its Subsidiaries on a Consolidated Basis. (])
Daily Journal Corporation Code of Ethics.
Daily Joumal Cotporation’s List of Subsidiaries.
Certification by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act 02002,
Certification by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbangs-Oxley

Act of 2002,

Filed hs an Exhibit bearing the same number to the current report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on September 13,2013,
Filed ias an Exhibit to the Company’s 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the Securities and |Exchange

Commission on December 14,2012,

Management Compensatory Plau,
%BRY information is furnished and not filed as a part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of sections 11

or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, is deemed not filed for purposes of section 18 of the Securities|Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise is not subject to Hability under these sections.
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ACORD
‘-—/

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/CD/YYYY)
112212016

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICAYE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must be endorsed,
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

If SUBROGATION 1S WAIVED, subject to

PrRODUCER Bojtan & Compan
3475 E. Foothill Bvd Suite 100

CONTACT
NAME:

Pasadena, CA 91107 (AN e (626)799:7000 | no. (626) 583-2117
ADDRESS:
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
www.boltonco.com 0008309 INSURER A ; Hartford Fire Insurance Company
'N?JURED [ Technol | INSURER B : Trumbull Insurance Company
D%lﬁl;pgoufncalngo?ggarsatlgg INSURER C : Twin City Fire Insurance Company’
915 E. First Street INSURER D :
Los Angeles CA 20012 INSURERE :
INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 28240461

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY. THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLIGIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

-
ik TYPE OF INSURANGE Neo | POLICY NUMBER (DO Y 1) | (MO Lr) LTS
A |/ | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 112016 112017 EAGH OGCURRENCE 3 1,000,000
AMAGE TO REI
| crams-wave [ v ] occur PREVISES (Ea ocurrence) - § 1,000,000
| v | Deducible $0 MED EXP (Any one person) | 3 10,000
- PERSONAL & ADVINJURY | 8 1,000,000
GEN' AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
< | FoLicy D e |:I LOG PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § 2,000,000
OTHER: ) $
B | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY _ 11112016 | 17172017 ] GOMEIED SINGLELMIT 1 g 1,000,000
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per parson} | $
I ﬁblf &y;vNED - 28¥SQULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| §
/| HReonnos | v} RS e N E
¥ Ded $1000 $
A |/ | UMBRELLALIAB OCCUR 11/2016 | 111/2017 | EACH OCCURRENGE $ 10,000,000
EXCESSLIAB CLAIMS-MACE AGGREGATE % 10,000,000
DED | v | rReTenTION S 10,000 $
C |WORKERS COMPENSATION 17120168 | 1/1/2017 PER [
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN v | STATUTE | ER
AN PROrHEIORTSIERERECVE Ty sLewdconee s 1000000
(MandatnrymNH) E.L, DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 1,000,000
If yas, dascribe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICYLIMIT | $ 1,000,000
A |Software Etrars & Omissions & Cyber 1142016 | 1/172017  |Limit $5,000,000 per Glitch / Aggregate
Liability GLAIMS MADE FORM Retention $250,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS f LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 181, Additlehal Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Nassau County Office of Purchasing
Attn: Contact Vita Virgilio

1 West Street

Minecla NY 11501

i

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOYE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREQF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

PrAe Rz —

Debra Rosas

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

2824046) | DAILJOU-CL | 16/17 GL,A,WC,UMB,ELC - Journal Tech, Inc.
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